PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY PUBLIC AGENDA
Thursday, October 20, 2022 Time: 8:30 a.m.

Place: 55 International Drive —Board Conference Room
Watch Meeting Via Live Stream: https:/townhailstreams.com/towns/pease_dev nh

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
AGENDA
I. Call to Order / Roll Call:

II. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: Board of Directors’ Meeting of October 20, 2022 *
(Anderson)

I11. Public Comment:

Iv. Committee:
A. Report:
1. Audit Committee *

V. Old Business:
A. Report:
1. Aviation Avenue Group LLC — 100 New Hampshire Avenue — Presentation
(See Materials at V.B.1.)

B. Approval:
It Aviation Avenue Group LLC — 100 New Hampshire Avenue — Concept Approval
and Amendment of Option Agreement * (Fournier)
2. North Forty Group LLC — Termination of Option Agreement * (Lamson)

VI.  Finance:
A. Executive Summary *

B. Reports:
L. FY2023 Financial Report for the Two Month Period Ending August 31, 2022 *
2 Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending June 30, 2023 *
3. Audit Summary and GASB 87 — Presentation by Berry Dunn *

C. Approval:
1. Certified Annual Financial Statements and the Uniform Guidance Audit of Federal
Awards Update * (Ferrini)

VII. Licenses/ROEs/Easements/Rights of Way:
A. Approvals:

1. Lonza Biologics, Inc. — Parking License for 55 International Drive * (Parker)
e Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. — 35 Airline Avenue *
(Levesque)



VIIIL.

IX.

XL

XII.

Leases:
A. Report *:
. Sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership and the Housing
Partnership — 222 International Drive

B. Approvals:

1. T-Aviation LLC — Skyhaven Airport — Exercise of last one year option *
(Fournier)
2 Seacoast Newspaper, Inc. — 111 New Hampshire Avenue —Special Exception’

Application and Lease Amendment * (Ferrini)

Contracts:
A. Approvals:
1. Portsmouth International Airport at Portsmouth - Digital Communications Radios *
(Lamson)
2. Piscataqua [L.andscaping and Tree Service, LLC — Landscaping / Snow Removal —
Option Exercise and Rate Increase * (Levesque)
Signs:
A. Reports *:
l. Lonza Biologics, Inc. — 164 Corporate Drive

2. RafterOne — 75 New Hampshire Avenue

B. Approvals:
1. City of Portsmouth Water Treatment Plant — 97 Grafton Drive * (Anderson)

Executive Director:

A. Reports:
1. Golf Course Operations *
2. Airport Operations

a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) *
b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW)
c) Noise Line Report

(1) September, 2022 *

B. Approvals:
l. Bills for Legal Services * (Parker)
2. Northeast Chapter of AAAE — 2024 Annual Conference — PSM Host Sponsorship *
(Ferrini)
3. New Positions - PDA Director of Operations & Executive Administrative Assistant
* (Levesque)

Division of Ports and Harbors:

A. Reports:
1. Port Advisory Council Meeting Minutes of June 14, 2022 *
2. Port Advisory Council Meeting Minutes of September 14, 2022 *
3. Portsmouth Fish Pier Borings and Sampling - Fuel System *

2



XIII. New Business:
XIV. Special Event:

XV. Upcoming Meetings:

Golf Committee November 14, 2022 @ 8:30 a.m.
Finance Committee November 14, 2022 @ 9:00 a.m.
Board of Directors November 17, 2022 @ 8:30 a.m.

All Meetings begin at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise posted.
XVI. Directors’ Comments:
XVII. Adjournment:

XVIII. Press Questions:

s Related Materials Attached

L Related Materials Previously Sent

L2 Related Materials will be provided under separate cover
+ Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting

= Confidential Materials

PABOARDMTG\AGENDAS - Current\Agenda October 20, 2022 (Public).docx



>

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION

Director Anderson:

| make a motion to accept the meeting minutes of the Board of

Directors’ meeting held on September 15, 2022.

N:ARESOLVES\2022\Approve Minutes 9-15-22 (10-20-2022).docx

OCOO TAKING YOU THERE

wWww.peasedev.org



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Thursday, September 15, 2022
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING

MINUTES

Presiding: Stephen M. Duprey, Chairman

Present: Neil Levesque, Vice Chair; Thomas G. Ferrini, Treasurer; Erik Anderson; Margaret F. Lamson;
and Susan B. Parker

Absent: Steve Fournier

Attending:  Paul E. Brean, Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Executive Director; Anthony I.
Blenkinsop, Deputy Director / General Counsel; Maria Stowell Engineering Manager; Suzy
Anzalone, Finance Director; Geno Marconi, Division of Ports and Harbors (“DPH”) Director;
Grant Nichols, Asst. Director of DPH; Scott DeVito, Pease Golf Course General Manager;
Jessica Patterson, IT Administrator; Andrew Pomeroy, Manager, Aviation Planning &
Regulatory Compliance; Chasen Congreves, Manager of Airport Administration and Raeline A.
O’Neil, Legal Executive Assistant

I. Call to Order / Roll Call:

Chairman Duprey (“Duprey”) called the roll with only Director Steve Fournier not in attendance; the
meeting commenced at 8:30 a.m.

II. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: Board of Directors’ Meeting of August 18, 2022

Director Anderson moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded to approve the minutes of the
Pease Development Authority Board of Directors meeting dated Thursday, August 18, 2022.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.

1. Public Comment:

Susan Reynolds (Rye Harborside) stated she previously provided a letter dated September 1, 2022,
addressed to the Board to correct erroneous comments made regarding Rye Harborside and she requested that
the letter (including attachments) be affixed to the September 15, 2022 minutes.

IV.  Finance:
A. Executive Summary

Suzy Anzalone (“Anzalone”) Finance Director spoke to the Executive Summary and stated revenues
are favorable to budget by just under 20% (seeing strong performance in fuel flowage fees, parking fees,
public play at the golf course as well income on short term options). Operating expenses are performing under
budget by approximately 10%; looking out, Anzalone does not see anything that may challenge the budget.
Where it is early in the year, there is nothing to report regarding the individual business units as currently all
are performing favorable to budget. Further, she spoke to the financial strength of the organization helping
PDA as it embarks on its capital initiatives during FY23. Anzalone spoke to non-current liabilities at year
end, there is an adjustment made to the pension and OPEB liability which is based on the valuation done by
the actuarial consultants from the State. Whether PDA’s liability goes up or down, is dependent on

1

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors _ September 15, 2022



investment performance. Anzalone informed the Board that the valuations are a year behind (June 30, 2021)
and for the plan year the returns on investments were 29.4% versus 1.1% in 2020.

PDA’s cash flow is looking steady and as capital projects progress, this may change, but does not
anticipate having to draw on PDA’s Revolving Line of Credit (“RLOC”) in the near future.

Duprey asked of the Division of Ports and Harbors (*“DPH”) operating sales revenues as being
favorable which is indicated by higher fuel sales. Anzalone indicated it was a result of fuel sales and stated
how fuel sales are strong against what was budgeted; this is an estimated figure that tends to vary during the
seasons.

Anderson asked if any appropriations from Concord are a consideration in the revenues; Anzalone
indicated there are no appropriations included in operating revenues.

Parker asked if the number of customers are increasing or is the increase as a result of higher fuel
costs; Anzalone indicated she thought some was as a result of the higher fuel costs as fuel purchases are
unfavorable. Anzalone reminded the Board that [ast year at this time the Portsmouth Fish Pier was not
operational.

Ferrini asked what percentage of operating revenue are not fuel and rather contractual income;
Anzalone estimated it to be about 25% being fuel sales and then wharfage / dockage fees and mooring fees.
Brean indicated there had also been an increase in the wharfage due to the work being performed at the
Portsmouth Naval Shipyard (“PNSY™) as the contractor was utilizing the Market Street facility as a staging
area during certain aspects of the project.

Geno Marconi (“Marconi”), Division Director of DPH, stated DPH is self-funding and it has a couple
of base tenants and the use of the wharfage area utilized by the PNSY contractor will be ramping back up
shortly with the next phase of the project. Marconi spoke to the various revenue streams (dockage, wharfage
and ground rentals) at the facility.

B. Reports:
1. FY2023 Financial Report for the One Month Period Ending July 31, 2022
2. Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending May 31, 2023

C. Approvals:
1. Updated Corporate Resolution — Bank Accounts

Director Levesque moved the motion and Director Parker seconded that the Pease Development
Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors hereby authorizes PDA employee Michael R. Mates to endorse all
checks, drafts, depository agreements and/or other related bank documents in accordance with the
powers previously granted by this Board to the Treasurer, Executive Director, General Counsel, and
Manager of Engineering of the PDA concerning PDA bank accounts, and consistent with bank resolutions
previously adopted; The authority hereby conferred shall be and remain in full force and effect until
written notice of the revocation is presented.

The following appointed official and employees are authorized to endorse all checks, drafts,
depository agreements and/or other related bank decuments in accordance with the powers so granted:

2

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2022



Thomas G. Ferrini Treasurer

Paul E. Brean Executive Director
Anthony I. Blenkinsop Deputy Director/General Counsel
Michael R. Mates Engineering Project Manager

The authority hereby conferred upon the above named Agents shall be and remain in full force
and effect until written notice of the revocation is presented;

Further, the Board respectfully revokes such authority of Manager of Engineering Maria J.
Stowell;

All in accordance with a memorandum from Suzy Anzalone, Finance Director, dated September
1,2022.

Discussion: Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.

V. Licenses/ROEs/Easements/Rights of Way:
A. Report:

1. PlaneSense — Right of Entry — 105 Flightline Road

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of
License Agreements,” PDA entered into the following Right-of-Entry:

1. Name: PlaneSense
License: Right of Entry
Location: 105 Flightline Road
Purpose: For the purpose of survey / site inspection
Term: September 1, 2022 through November 30, 2022
VI.  Leases:
A. Reports:

1. Sublease from One New Hampshire Avenue, LLC to Boulos Holdings, LLLC - 1
New Hampshire Avenue (Suite #207)

2. Sublease from 200 International Limited Partnership to IPC TFIC LLC d/b/a
Infraspect

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of
License Agreements,” PDA entered into the following Right-of-Entry:

1. Tenant: Boulos Holdings, LLC :

Space: One New Hampshire Avenue (Suite 207)

Use: Office and Related Use

Term: Five (5) years with commencement anticipated to be no later than August 1, 2022.
2 Tenant: IPS TFIC LLC d/b/a Infraspect

Space: 200 International Drive

Use: General Office Use and Light Industrial

Term: Five (5) years and three (3) months

3

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2022



VILI. Contracts:
A. Report:
I. US Ecology (successor to NRC East Environmental) — Exercise of option

In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, I am pleased to report the following:

1. Project Name: US Ecology (successor to NRC East Environmental)
Board Authority: In accordance with the authorization provided by the Board of
Directors at its meeting on August 22, 2019
Summary: Exercise the first of its two, one year options to September 30,

2023 for emergency spill response & waste disposal services

B. Approvals:
1. Insurance Producer / Broker Services

Director Ferrini moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to enter into an insurance producer
service agreement with Fred C. Church, Inc., for up to a five (5) year term, in an amount not to exceed
$216,355.00; all in accordance with the memorandum of Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy Director /
General Counsel, dated September 14, 2022.

Discussion: Anderson asked for confirmation that the amount referenced was for the five (5) year period;
Blenkinsop affirmed it was the total for the five (5) year term.

Ferrini thanked Blenkinsop for the time and effort expended on the RFP process regarding the specialty
use insurance that PDA has and in understanding the differences in price coverage.

Duprey too thanked Blenkinsop for the detailed memo and thorough review provided to the Board.
Provides the confidence necessary to move forward.

Blenkinsop did inform the Board that PDA is taking a different view than it has in the past; previously
the brokers have worked off commission through the insurance companies. This has been set up so that a single
producer / broker will be working for PDA so there will be streamlined capability to work with one company
so it will advise / assist over all lines of coverage. Blenkinsop indicated we will be back before the Board to
bind specific lines of coverage.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.
2. Non-Hazardous Solid Waste Removal — Bid Award

Director Lamson moved the motion and Director Parker seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract with
Win Waste Innovations of Northern New England Inc. for the purpose of providing non-hazardous
solid waste removal services at Pease Development Authority facilitics for a period of two (2) years at an
estimated monthly cost of $4,917.00, with potential fluctuations due to increased trash pick-ups at PDA
facilities during business seasonality, along with two (2) one (1) year options to extend; all in accordance

4

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2022



with the memorandum of Jared Sheehan, Environmental Compliance Coordinator, dated September 2,
2022,

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.
3. Seacoast Security — Duress Alarm System

Director Anderson moved the motion and Director Levesque seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter into an
agreement with Seacoast Security of Portsmouth, NH, in the amount of $11,110.00 for the provision and
installation of emergency duress alarm systems at certain PDA facilities, as well as 2 monthly monitoring
fee of $210.00; all in accordance with the memorandum of Ed Pottberg, Airport Security Administrator,
dated September 7, 2022.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, the Board justifies the waiver of the RFP
requirement as Seacoast Security is under contract with the PDA for the provision of security services.

Discussion: Duprey asked for confirmation these were emergency duress buttons for the various
facilities; Brean affirmed.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.
4. HID Security — Airport Badge System Updates

Director Levesque moved the motion and Director Parker seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with HID in a
total amount not to exceed $12,000.00 for the purpose completing an upgrade to the Airport Badge System
at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (“PSM?”); all in accordance with the memorandum of Ed
F. Pottberg, Airport Security Administrator, dated August 31, 2022.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8, VIII, the Board justifies the waiver of the RFP
requirement as HID is the existing provider of PSM’s badging equipment and software.

Discussion: Duprey asked if this were to comply with TSA regulations; Brean affirmed (insider threat).
Disposition: Resolved by unanimeus (6-0) vote for; motion carried.
S. Skyhaven LED Taxiway Lighting

Director Parker moved the motion and Director Anderson seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract
with ADB Safegate Americas LLC, at a cost not to exceed $31,000.00, for the purchase of one hundred
fifty (150) LED taxiway light fixtures for Skyhaven Airport; all in accordance with the memorandum of
Andrew B. Pomeroy, Manager Aviation Planning and Regulatory Compliance, dated September 8, 2022.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, the Board waives the RFP requirement for
the following reasons:

1. The Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (“PSM”) currently uses ADB LED Taxiway

lights, and utilizing the same taxiway lights will save considerable amounts of time, money,
and effort by maintaining one common interchangeable parts inventory to serve both

5

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2022



airports.
2. ADB LED taxiway edge lights have performed well at PSM over the past decade.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.

VIII. Executive Director:
A. Reports:
1. Golf Course Operations

Scott DeVito (“DeVito”) Pease Golf Course (“PGC”) General Manager recapped information contained
on the PGC slide in the Board packet. The public rounds played have been very strong through the month of
August and are currently at approximately 58,000 total rounds for the calendar year; anticipate by the weekend
will be over 60,000 rounds played. Averaging out the typical rounds played in the months of October and
November, DeVito anticipates seeing the total rounds of play to exceed 70,000 for the calendar year, a record
high.

The August figures indicated for Grill 28 have been the largest numbers they have seen since starting in
2011.

Group / Tournament play continues to be high; on pace to do 4,200 tournament rounds of play with
75% being charity fundraisers. DeVito indicated that during the Sig Sauer event, which utilized all 27 holes, it
raised $125,000 of charitable funds (donated to Disabled Veterans); Portsmouth Rotary raised $20,000 for its
charitable scholarship fund.

DeVito indicated that through the month of July, PGC utilized just over 12 million gallons of water.
2. Corporate Drive Project Update

Jared Sheehan (“Sheehan”), Environmental Compliance Coordinate, spoke to the Board regarding the
joint Corporate Drive project between PDA and the City of Portsmouth (“City”). Several digital photos were
displayed showing various outfall locations along (231, 249 and 273) Corporate Drive in order for the Board
view the improvements. Sheehan indicated the 273 Corporate Drive improvements involved building a road
out to the outfall area resulting in a wetland impact. This is just the first phase of the project and the City will
be going out to bid by the end of the year for improvement to the utilities along Corporate Drive.

Blenkinsop reminded the Board that it authorized the funds for this work earlier this year. This work is
a prerequisite to getting the road repaved.

3. Airport Operations
a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)

Brean spoke to the airport slides in the Board’s packet and stated PSM had a successful August with a
39.1% increase in acronautical revenues tied commercial enplanements. Of which, there were 5,182 Allegiant
passenger enplanements contributing to revenues received regarding pay for parking. There has been a strong
and consistent military tech stop supporting several geo-political missions, also generating 1.2 million gallons
in fuel flowage for the month. This is also carrying over to the commercial aviation sector which is utilizing
PSM for technical stops as well.

6

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2022



Brean also spoke to the overall enplanements for the year trending well at approximately 61,000 and
indicated it has surpassed last year’s goals.

Further, Brean stated that UNH Wildcats athletic teams will be flying out of PSM through Avelo

Airlines for out of town athletic events. Further, Allegiant has contracted with many of the visiting UNH
sports teams.

Brean spoke to diminished support by US Customs and Board Patrol due to staffing issues.

Brean spoke to a second slide provided to the Board so it could see how the activity of Allegiant
passengers has progressed over the past five years during the months of May to November. Staff have been
working hard to prove to Allegiant that PSM / Portsmouth is a gateway destination to New England during the
summer months as well as a year round gateway into New England. The only capacity reduction with
Allegiant has been on its end due to labor / resources. Flights are going out very full (except Myrtle Beach
which has not responded as well since COVID). Brean indicated this helps to provide an overview on how the
marketing funds are utilized which can be seen with the receptiveness of flights to Florida and Nashville.

b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW)

c) Noise Line Report
(i) August, 2022

Brean indicated PSM received a total of six (6) noise complaints for the month of August, 2022. Two
were received when Runway 34 was in use regarding the increased military aircraft activity arriving which
included based and non-based aircraft.

Further, there were four (4) noise complaints when Runway 16 was in use. Three (3) from Portsmouth

residents asking if the flight paths had changed as a result of military practice procedures and transportation of
military personnel.

Brean spoke to a digital display showing work being performed at 30 New Hampshire regarding the
Aclara’s Corporate World Headquarters (manufacturer of utility metering systems).

Duprey asked if Aclara were already in New Hampshire; Brean indicated Somersworth. Duprey asked
whether there would be an addition of employees from its current base; Brean indicated it is anticipated there
will be an onboarding of employees eventually.

Anderson asked if there was any new information to be relayed to the Board concerning PROCON/Kane
projects and the status of the Million Air development. Brean stated PROCON/Kane continues to perform its
due diligence / feasibility study on the proper fit at PDA and believes conceptual plans are in the works for the
100 New Hampshire Avenue parcel. They have not brought anything forward regarding the North Apron
option. Million Air’s consultants and PDA staff have been working on 90% drawings and the next step would
be a submittal to bring forward for Technical Review.

Lamson spoke to Million Air having planes and refueling; Brean affirmed that they would be a Fixed
Base Operator (“FBO”) that fuels planes.

7

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2022



Duprey asked about having the same level of service being requirements written into the Minimum
Standards to ensure that PSM does not have a lower level of overall service between FBO entities. Brean
spoke to PSM’s Airport Minimum Standards for FBO’s outlining all requirements (hangar, lobby space, stafT,
equipment, equipment to support a variety of aircraft etc.) which are to protect the airport’s interest and FAA
requirements to protect the flying public. Further, Brean stated that PSM’s Minimum Standards are
appropriate for its size of airport. The current FBO has requirements within its private contractual agreements
with certain entities which may go beyond PSM’s Minimum Standards.

Lamson indicated the United States Air Force always had fuel at the north apron and after PDA took
over, there had been a push to have the fuel tank on the aquifer. Lamson stated her trepidations about the
location of Million Air’s fuel tanks and the need to be very cautious.

Duprey indicated Million Air has undergone permitting with the State and has been provided a wetland’s
permit, although the permit is being appealed.

Anderson asked if the Board, in a land use position have the ability to question the DES approval,
Blenkinsop indicated DES has jurisdiction to issue a wetlands permit, which has been issued for the
construction of the access road. PDA does not have the ability to deny the wetlands permit. Maria Stowell
(“Stowell”), Engineering Manager, indicated DES looks solely at the demarcation of wetland itself. Beyond
that, locally PDA has wetland buffer rules. Stowell indicated Million Air proposes to fill in some of the
wetland buffer to build the access road. Further, a special conditional use permit will be requested and
reviewed by a PDA Committee and then the full Board.

Ferrini indicated some municipalities have in its zoning ordinances that exceed the state minimum and
asked if that were something in PDA zoning. Stowell indicated the State does not have any wetland buffer.
Stowell stated Portsmouth has a municipal ordinances for buffers and PDA has its own buffers, which are not
the same. Ferrini asked why they are not the same. Stowell informed the Board that Portsmouth has a blanket
100’ buffer so all land owners would be treated equally. PDA, who owns the land, did a study on the wetlands
and have graduated wetland buffers ranging from 25’ to 100°.

Duprey asked about the location of the access road and the type of wetland where it would be located;
Stowell stated the area has been designated with a 25” buffer. Duprey asked if the bufter (25”) had been
previously determined prior to the suggestion of the access road; Stowell affirmed.

Brean spoke to an Op-Ed in the Herald which stated the access road would be utilized for the fuel trucks.
However, that is not the case; it is an access road for the “front of the house” retail (passenger vehicles,
limousines, shuttle buses) component of the FBO. Further the fuel trucks would access the facility as they do
already through a commercial gate for commercial activity; exception would be the Air National Guard
(“ANG?), which has a difterent location for fuel delivery.

Parker asked if military servicing has increased in 2022 in comparison to last year. Brean indicated there
had been recent upticks due to certain geo-political events, but believes PSM is on track from last year.
However, what has been seen is an uptick in commercial activity (technical stops, troop flights being moved
under commercial airlines). Parker asked if the Air Guard has been re-designated by the Air Force as a more
active squadron. Brean stated the NH ANG is self-sustaining and the ramp up of the KC-46 was a five (5)
year process (these planes do more than the previous KC-135). Parker asked of articles seen regarding the

8

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2022



addition of approximately 160 Air Force personnel; Brean affirmed and further stated that at one point the 160

employees were removed from the base during the transition from the KC-135 to the KC-46, but they will be
returning to the ANG.

B. Approvals:
1. Bills for Legal Services

Director Ferrini moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease Development
Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to expend funds
in the amount of $4,466.00 for legal services rendered to the Pease Development Authority from Sheehan,
Phinney, Bass & Green for the period of July 1, 2022 — July 31, 2022, in the amount of $522.00 for Permit
Implementation; July 1, 2022 — July 31, 2022, in the amount of $667.00 (for Ports and Harbors; August
1, 2022 — August 31, 2022, in the amount of $638.00 for Tradeport General Representation; and August
1, 2022 — August 31, 2022, in the amount of $2,639.00 for Permit Implementation. And, to expend funds
in the amount of $531.00 for legal services rendered to the Pease Development Authority from Anderson

Kreiger as outside counsel for Federal Regulatory Advice from July 1, 2022 through July 31, 2022. For
a total amount of $4,997.00 in legal services.

Discussion: Duprey asked if there would be a consideration to approve the bills on a quarterly basis
instead of monthly. Blenkinsop indicated it can be handled whichever manner the Board prefers, but historically
the Board wanted them on a monthly basis.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.

IX.  Division of Ports and Harbors:
A. Reports:
1. Foreign-Trade Zones Board - Annual Report

Division Director Geno Marconi (“Marconi”) spoke to the excerpt provided on this matter to indicate
they are areas designed by the US Foreign Trade Zone Board and are under the supervision of the US Customs
and Board Patrol. The purposes of assessment is to allow duty on foreign merchandise, the merchandise is
considered to not have entered the commerce of the US while in the FTZ. Marconi spoke to Millipore
Corporation, a company which has been operating in a FTZ for a long time as it has some extensive imported
merchandise; also, Textiles Coated International in Manchester. Both entities are two companies engaged in
manufacturing. Further, Marconi also spoke to Rochester Electronics, a facility located on Pease, is doing
FTZ general warehousing. There is another company which will be utilizing a FTZ in the near future, being a
company that manufactures aluminum cans.

Ferrini asked of the reference of employees (1,501 to 2,000); Marconi responded number refers to the
number of employees with the company utilizing the FTZ. Ferrini further asked if there were revenues tied to
the companies who utilize the FTZ areas; Marconi affirmed. Further, the fees collected can only be utilized to
offset administrative costs, education and promotion.

Marconi indicated due to timing, the Port Advisory Council minutes will be provided in the October
Board materials.

Marconi spoke to digital photos displayed so the Board to see the ongoing project at the Market Street
9

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2022



terminal. Duprey asked of the anticipated completion; Marconi indicated the entire project would not be
completed until next fall due to a delay with wetlands permits that DPH has encountered. It is anticipated the
deck should be completed by 1% of November in order to receive ships. Marconi commended his staff in
overseeing this project which includes a vast amount of paperwork that accompanied the grant received for the
project.

Lastly, Marconi informed the Board that in working with DOT, DPH is setting up a date of mid-July to
go out to bid for the work to be performed on the functional replacement. This will be done after the pier is
operational.

B. Approvals:
1. Appledore Marine Enginecring, LLC — Proposal for Portsmouth Fish Picr Repairs

Director Parker moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to finalize and execute a contract with
the Division of Ports and Harbors contracted on-call marine engineering service provider, Appledore
Marine Engincering, LLC, for the purpose of providing marine engineering and construction services
related to the repair of the pier at the Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier facility, in an amount not to
exceed $193,174.00; all in accordance with the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director of
Ports and Harbors, dated August 26, 2022.

Discussion: Anderson asked when this project would be going out to bid; Marconi indicated as soon as
drawings / specs are received.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.

2. Swell Oyster Company LLC — Hampton Harbor — Proposed Expansion of Back
Building

Director Lamson moved the motion and Director Levesque seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to approve an amendment to the
Right of Entry with Swell Oyster Company to enlarge the size of its approved building at the Hampton
Harbor Marine Facility; all in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum
of Geno J. Marceni, Division Director, dated September 1, 2022.

Discussion: Marconi indicated one of the owners, Connor, was available to speak to the Board regarding
this request. Connor indicated what his company has been allowed to do has afforded them to bring Swell
Opyster to the next level as it is the only oyster farm with a brick and mortar facility in New Hampshire; are now
looking to grow the wholesale side of the business.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.
X. Special Event:
A. Reports:

1. Newington School Supporters — Road Race on Arboretum Drive
2. Wentworth Douglass — Seacoast Cancer Sk

10

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2022



Brean reported that Newington School Supporters, Fox Point Sunset, will be having a 5 Miler Course
and will use a portion of Arboretum Drive for a race to be held on Saturday, September 24, 2022; and
Wentworth Douglass Hospital will be holding a 5K race to benefit Seacoast Cancer which will be held on
Sunday, September 25, 2022. Brean indicated historically the Wentworth Douglass road race has been held in
Dover and it is being moved to Pease this year.

XI.  Upcoming Meetings:
Port Committee October 6, 2022 @ 8:00 a.m.
Brean reported the Port Committee meeting will be rescheduled.

Audit Committee October 17, 2022 @ 8:30 a.m.
Board of Directors October 20, 2022 @ 8:30 a.m.

All Meetings begin at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise posted.

XII. Directors’ Comments:

Lamson asked Blenkinsop whether or not she would be able to sit in the audience during the Audit
Committee meeting; Blenkinsop indicated it could be discussed further but it would put a quorum of the Board
in the meeting room. Having a quorum raises a question of a Board meeting versus a Committee meeting.
Blenkinsop indicated past practice had been a certain way but he could look into it and get back to her. Brean
indicated a summary of the Committee meeting could be provided to the Board.

Brean thanked Ferrini on his guidance on procurement of insurance services (his insight was very
helpful to Blenkinsop). Further, Brean commended Blenkinsop for his efforts in taking a comprehensive look
at insurance policies, spearheading the RFP, and coordinating a committee to review the bids received.

Presentation to Maria J. Stowell, Engineering Manager who is retiring the end of September. Brean
provided background regarding Stowell and presented her with a runway taxi light which symbolizes guiding
Stowell to her PDA home. He further indicated Stowell has agreed to assist PDA on a part-time basis in the
future. Duprey read several initiatives that Stowell has achieved during her 29 years at PDA. Stowell thanked
everyone and especially PDA co-workers who have assisted her throughout the years and who have educated
her on everything from airports to boats.

XIII. Non-public Session:

Director Lamson moved the motion and Director Levesque seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors will enter non-public session pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3 for the purpose
of discussing:

1. Dismissal, Promotion, or Compensation of any Public Employee [NH RSA 91-A:3, II (a)];

and

2. Consideration of Legal Advice provided by Legal Counsel [NH RSA 91-A:3, 11 (1)].

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.

Entered Non-public session at approximately 9:56 a.m.
11

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2022



Director Parker moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded to return to public session.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.
Came out of non-public session at 10:20 a.m.
XIV. Vote of Confidentiality:

Director Parker moved the motion and Director Ferrini seconded that be it resolved, pursuant to NH
RSA 91-A:3, the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby determines that the
divulgence of information discussed and decisions reached in the non-public session of its September 15,
2022, regarding Dismissal, Promotion, or Compensation of any Public Employee; and Consideration of
Legal Advice provided by Legal Counsel are confidential matters which, if disclosed publically, would
render the proposed actions ineffective and further agrees that the minutes of said meeting be held
confidential until, in the opinion of a majority of the Board of Directors, the aforesaid circumstances no
longer apply.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) vote for; motion carried.

XV. Adjournment:

Director Ferrini moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded to adjourn the Board meeting.
Meeting adjourned at 10:21 a.m.

XVL. Press Questions:
No comments from the press.

Respectfully submitted,

Paul E. Brean
Executive Director

PABOARDMTG MINUTES\2022\Bd Minutes 9-15-22 docx

12

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2022



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Monday, October 17, 2022

AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Time: 8:30 A.M. - Board Meeting Room
Place: 55 International Drive
Pease International Tradeport
Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801
L. Call to Order (Ferrini)
II.  Acceptance of Committee Meeting Minutes: April 18, 2022 *

III. Public Comment

IV.  FY 2022 External Audit (Suzy Anzalone, Robert Smalley, and
Katherine Balukas)

A. Reports
1. Management Representation Letter *
2. Executive Summary of Audit Engagement *
3. Auditor Required Communication Letter *
B. Approvals (Anderson)* +
1. Certified Financial Statements *
2. Uniform Guidance Audit of Federal Awards *
V.  Next Meeting- TBD
VI. Director's Comments
VII. Adjournment

VIII. Press Questions

* Related Materials Attached
Proposed Motion



N

TE

—
ASE

1O N

ol-

E
A

=Hg=

A
N
Y

vl

A
OPME
ORIT

T |z

R
VE
urT

MOTION

Director Fournier:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors approves the
concept plan for 100 New Hampshire Avenue as submitted by Aviation
Avenue Group LLC for the development at 100 New Hampshire Avenue,
and authorizes the Executive Director to execute any and all documents
necessary to amend the Option Agreement between the PDA and Aviation
Avenue Group LLC by terminating the agreement as it relates to 7 Lee
Street, and to refund a pro rata share of the remaining option payment to
Aviation Avenue Group LLC consistent with the amendment and partial
termination; all in accordance with the memoranda of Paul E. Brean
Executive Director dated October 13, 2022, and Michael R. Mates,

Engineering Manager, dated October 13, 2022.

N:ARESOLVES\2022\ Aviation Group LLC Concept Plan for 100 NH Avenue.docx

OOOOC TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedev.org

55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801



55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801

MEMORANDUM

To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors

From: Paul Brean, Executive Director /%

Date: October 13, 2022

Re: Aviation Avehue Group LLC — Partial Termination of Option Agreement

In January of 2022, the Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors granted an Option
Agreement to Aviation Avenue Group LLC (“Aviation Avenue”) regarding potential development at 14
Aviation Avenue, 7 Lee Street, and 100 New Hampshire Avenue. In June of 2022, the Option Agreement
was amended to remove 14 Aviation Avenue, the only aeronautically zoned parcel, from the option area.
At that time, Aviation Avenue indicated a desire to focus its due diligence on a potential
commercial/manufacturing development in the Pease Industrial Zone consistent with other developments
at the Pease Tradeport.

At this month’s PDA Board meeting, Aviation Avenue is seeking concept approval for an advance
manufacturing facility development on the 11+/- acre parcel at 100 New Hampshire Avenue. This is an
exciting development opportunity for a parcel at the Tradeport that has remained vacant for over a decade
since an old Air Force warehouse was removed from the parcel to spur economic development
opportunities. Detailed information on the proposed development has been provided by Aviation Avenue
and its engineers at Tighe & Bond, as well as in a PDA staff memorandum prepared by Engineering
Manager Michael Mates, which I incorporate herein.

Given the development proposed by Aviation Avenue involves only the parcel at 100 New Hampshire
Avenue, it is requesting a partial termination of the Option Agreement concerning the parcel at 7 Lee
Street and removal of obligations under the Option Agreement to construct a new PDA Maintenance
Facility should the option agreement be exercised and a lease agreement negotiated. In light of the
advanced manufacturing development being proposed at 100 New Hampshire Avenue and given no
development is proposed that involves the parcel at 7 Lee Street, I have no objection to the partial
termination that has been requested. The parcel at 7 Lee Street will continue to serve the PDA as the
location of its maintenance operations headquarters.

At the PDA Board of Directors’ October 2022 meeting, I request authorization to partially terminate the
Option Agreement with Aviation Avenue in regards to the parcel at 7 Lee Street and amend the Option
Agreement consistent therewith, and to refund a pro rata share of the remaining option payment to
Aviation Avenue.

PABOARDMTG\2022\Board Memo - Aviation Avenue Group - Partial Termination of Option Agr.docx

J TAKING YOU THERE

Phone: 603.433.6088 Fax: 603.4270433 www.peasedev.org



-
A

(Vs

E

55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

o=
>m

A
o)
z

c<
= i
= T|1=
oQ|>
-z
—m
<Z|5
~ |-

MEMORANDUM

To: Paul E. Brean, Executive Director Q “ﬂ;

From: Michael R. Mates, PE, Engineering Manager Hﬁ"'t
Date: October 13, 2022
Subject: 100 New Hampshire Avenue Concept Approval

In January of this year, the PDA Board of Directors authorized entry into an Option Agreement with Aviation
Avenue Group, LLC, regarding potential development at 14 Aviation Avenue, 7 Lee Street, and 100 New
Hampshire Ave. Consistent with the intent of the agreement, staff recently received concept plans from the
developer regarding a development on 100 New Hampshire Avenue. The developer is proposing to create a
parcel of approximately 11.4 acres and construct a 209,750 square foot building as shown on the attached
plans. An end user has not been identified at this juncture as explained by the developer in the attached
correspondence. The intended uses include 18,144 square feet of office space and 191,606 square feet of
advanced manufacturing space, both of which are allowed uses in the Industrial Zone.

The site will be accessed from both New Hampshire Avenue and Rochester Avenue. New Hampshire Avenue
will serve as the main entrance for general passenger vehicles and Rochester Avenue will be used for access to
the loading areas. Sidewalk access has been provided along the entire frontage on New Hampshire Avenue as
well as along Stratham Street with two connections to the building at the north and south ends. In addition,
site improvements include six loading docks at both the north and south ends of the facility, 147 parking stalls,
utilities, lighting, landscaping, and other appurtenances. As part of the site design, stormwater management
and treatment measures will be provided by filtration best management practices in accordance with NHDES
and PDA rules and regulations. A Traffic Impact Assessment (attached) was conducted by Tighe & Bond,
Professional Engineers licensed in NH, who estimate that the development is expected to generate 149
passenger vehicle trips and 6 truck trips during the weekday, peak hour. This estimate is based on formulas
and data presented in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Handbook for historical manufacturing
and office uses. The actual number of trips may differ once a specific end user is identified. If the Board grants
conceptual approval for this development, PDA will engage VHB, our on call transportation engineer, to
complete a third party peer review of the assessment.

There are no wetlands on the subject parcel so there will be no wetland or wetland buffer impacts associated
with this proposal. Parking and open space requirements have been met.

One variance is requested to reduce the front yard setback from 70’ to 51'+. According to the project memo
submitted by the applicant and attached hereto, the most common layout for these types of advanced
manufacturing buildings includes 50’ x 50 bays and a building footprint with a 2 to 1 length to width ratio. It
is for this reason the applicant is seeking relief from the front yard setback.

OO0OO0OO TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedev.org



Staff has reviewed the proposal and we believe the use is appropriate for this site and the development can be
constructed in conformance with PDA’s Land Use Controls with the exception of the front yard setback. If
received favorably by the PDA Board, Aviation Avenue Group, LLC will continue with design work and, with

staff concurrence, submit plans for a variance, as well as subdivision and site review applications to the City of
Portsmouth for consideration.

Representatives from Aviation Avenue Group, LLC will be at the October meeting to present the project and
answer questions.

At the October PDA Board of Directors meeting, please ask the Board to provide concept approval for the
proposed development at 100 New Hampshire Avenue.

N:\\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2022\100 NH Ave Concept.docx



Aviation Avenue Group LLC

October 13, 2022

Paul Brean

Executive Director

Pease Development Authority
55 International Drive
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Re: PDA Concept Approval
Proposed Advanced Manufacturing Building
100 New Hampshire Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Dear Mr. Brean,

Aviation Avenue Group LLC is pleased to submit this project memo and the attached conceptual site
plans for our proposed Advanced Manufacturing facility project at 100 New Hampshire Avenue located
in the PDA Industrial Zone. This memo provides a project history, general project overview, and strategy
for project advancement, and detailed summaries of key project features.

PROJECT HISTORY:

In December of 2021, following months of preliminary site investigation, this project team requested
Option Agreements from the PDA for parcels including 14 Aviation Avenue, 7 Lee Street and 100 New
Hampshire Avenue, as well as an additional Option Agreement for 19.8 +/- acres on the North Apron.
The Options were granted and each Option Period commenced in February 2022. The term of each
Option Agreement was thereafter extended through January 31, 2023 pursuant to those certain Amended
Option Agreements effective as of June 22, 2022. We have used the time since then to thoroughly
investigate each site and the impact our development will have on Pease and the surrounding
communities. We have worked with multiple local consultants and experts to better understand each
Option Area and explore detailed development plans. The exclusivity provided by our Option Agreements
during that time has enabled us to engage with multiple potential end users so that we can find the best
users for the sites and for Pease

It was this development team’s original intention to investigate and pursue air cargo distribution
developments for these parcels, but after receiving feedback from the community and a deep exploration
of the market, including many conversations with real end users, we pivoted, deciding to focus our
development on 1) non-airside uses at 100 New Hampshire Avenue and 7 Lee Street, and 2) non-air
cargo-focused development on the North Apron.



We have widely marketed the 100 New Hampshire Avenue and 7 Lee Street properties and have been
pursuing numerous potential tenants. Most of the interest has been from manufacturing companies for
built-to-suit opportunities, and we have entered serious conversations with several cornpanies. We'rc
thrlled to report that these companies have consistently expressed their interest in developing a facility
with our tcam at Pease. They have reviewed the quality of the labor force on the Seacoast, and the
manufactaring infrastructure at Pease. These end users understand that their facilities would {it in
naturally and complement the existing roster of world-class manufacturing organizations at Pease. They
apprectate New Hampshire's pro-business environment and the willingness of the Pease Development
Authority Lo partner with out-of-stale organizations to bring high-quality business leadership and job
opportunities to New Hampshire. In planning for our development, there are some distinct commonalities

among the companies we have been Lalking to:

. Allarc involved in highly automated manufacturing processcs or what we are referring to as
“Advanced Manufacturing” where intensive unskilled labor manufacturing has been substitute
by robotized assembly requiring fewer, but more highly skilled and highly compensated
employees. These processes require fewer truck bays and far less traffic than a (raditionat
manufacturing facility, while providing morc high-quality jobs and leadership opportunities.
Their program requirements range between 100,000-230,000 s0
3. Allare currently Massachuselts-based and are apprehensive about committing Lo an unapproved
and unentitled project. This apprehension stems (rom having immediate needs and the inability
to plan for (with certainty) the timing of taking possession of space. We have high confidence
that the removal of the uncertainty surrounding entitlements will allow and inspire one or more of
these high-end Advanced Manufacturing users to comnmit to New Hampshire, Pease, and our

project.

Based on the quantity and quality of discussions we have had with prospective tenants, and these
commonalities, it is our intention to proceed with eatitling the project at 100 Mew [lampshire Avenue. As
you will see in the following site matertals, we are proposing a 209,750 SF building which allows us to
offer maximum flexibility to these potential Advanced Manufacturing tenants while minimizing
disruptions to the cxisting infrastructure. After much due diligence, we feel confident that an Advanced

Manufacturing facility represents the highest and best use of the 100 New Hampshire Avenue site.

We think this program works cleanly with the existing area and infrastructure and we know it fits well
within the zoning requirements with one exception: the most common structural column layout distance
(bay size) for these types of Advanced Manufacturing buildings is 50° by 50” and the building footprint
most desired is a 2-to-1 length-to-width ratio. To achieve these goals and provide 2 200,000 sf building,
we are requesting a front-yard setback variance along New Hampshire Avenue, consistent with the

existing building directly across the strect.

(ncluded in this package for the board are a conceptual site plan and technical memo from Tighe and
Bond as well as building renderings from PROCON. As the project, as proposed, does nol require the use
of'the 7 Lee Street parcel, we are requesting a partial termination of the Aviation Avenue Group LLC
Option Agreement solely as it relates to the 3.6 +/- acre Lee Street parcel. Additionally, via separate



correspondence, we are requesting a termination of the Option Agreement concerning the North Apron
parcel. Thank you and the entire Board for consideration of our project.

Aviation Avenue Group LLC



TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM T'lghe&Bond

100 New Hampshire Avenue - Technical Overview

To: Paul Brean, Executive Director, Pease Development Authority
Michael Mates, P.E., Pease Development Authority

FROM: Patrick Crimmins, PE, Vice President, Tighe & Bond
Neil Hansen, PE, Project Manager, Tighe & Bond

Cory: Aviation Avenue Group LLC

DATE: October 10, 2022

Tighe & Bond has prepared this technical memorandum to supplement the Conceptual project
overview prepared by Aviation Avenue Group LLC. This memo provides additional technical
summaries of key project features including stormwater and utilities, and calculations for
parking and open space.

Wetlands

There are no wetlands located on the project site. Off-site wetlands in the vicinity of the site
are located to the northwest of Aviation Avenue, Rochester Avenue, and Stratham Street and
to the southwest of Rochester Avenue, and opposite Newfields Street. There is no work
proposed in the wetlands or wetland buffers.

Site History

The proposed project site was the location of an air force industrial building that was
demolished approximately 10 years ago in order to attract potential development. The site
was leveled off after the building and foundations were removed.

Excess Soils

It is anticipated that excess soils will be generated by the project that are unsuitable for use
under the building. All excess soils will remain on-site and will be used to construct the
landscape berms along the New Hampshire Avenue frontage.

Stormwater

All the stormwater from the impervious surfaces on site will be directed to offline deep sump
catch basins for pre-treatment. As the entire site is located within a Groundwater Management
Zone (GMZ) infiltration of stormwater is not permitted on the site. Stormwater runoff will be
treated via off-line deep sump catch basin, two (2) underground detention systems, before
being directed to a stormwater filtration device to provide full treatment prior to being
discharged into the existing municipal closed drainage system. The stormwater will be
designed to meet PDA's updated stormwater regulations as well as the regulations for an

Alteration of Terrain Permit as required by New Hampshire Department of Environmental
Services.

Utilities
Proposed water, sewer, gas, electric, telecom and cable for the project are anticipated to be
connected to the existing services along Rochester Ave.



TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM Tighe&Bond

Parking Calculations

Our understanding from coordination with the project team is that typical parking demand for
an advanced manufacturing facility such as this is one (1) space per 1,500 SF, which is
approximately 140 spaces. The proposed parking provided is 147 spaces.

The PDA regulations require two (2) spaces for every three (3) employees on the largest
manufacturing shift and one (1) space per two (2) employees for office use. Given the end
user is not know at this time, we have assumed the number employees on the largest shift
for advanced manufacturing will be 1 employee per 2,000 SF (96 employees) and office will
be 1 employee per 350 SF (52 employees). Using these employee estimates, the parking
required by PDA regulations is 92 spaces and the parking provided exceeds this requirement.

If the future tenant(s) require additional parking beyond the 147 spaces provided, the
applicant acknowledges that it will need to seek amended Site Plan approval from the PDA
Board to provide additional parking.

Traffic Impact

A traffic impact study has been included in the submission package.

Open Space

The proposed lot is approximately 11.4 acres. The PDA regulations require 25% of the upland
area be retained as open space which is 2.85 acres. Proposed plan calls for approximately
35% (3.99 acres) open space on site.

J:\P\PO595 Pro Con General Proposals\P0595-015 100 NH Avenue\Report_Evaluation\Reports\20221006 PDA Conceptual Scope.docx



HN HLMOWS140d AR G = T
TAY UHSINVH MIN 001
2zozkLoL | ONRINLOYANYA Q3ONYAQY Z m .

4

¢ M3IA JNILO3dSHId ae O

} M3IA SAILD3dSHd ae @




an.dwao Lavout Tab: Concent

PROPOSED ADVANCED
MANUFACTURING FACILITY
100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

SITE DATA:

| LOCATION: TAX MAP 308, LOT 1

80 ROCHESTER AVENUE
PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

| ZONING DISTRICT:  INDUSTRIAL

ALLOWED USE: INDUSTRIAL / WAREHOUSE

NTS: REQUIRED PROPOSED

DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS:
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 10 ACRES 211.4 ACRES

MINIMUM STREET FRONTAGE: 200 FT +1,200 FT

| MINIMUM SETBACKS:

o FRONT: 70 FT £51 FTV
+ SIDE: 50 FT £202 FT
« REAR: 50 FT £50 FT@
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: PER FAA 36 FT
MINIMUM OPEN SPACE: 25% +35%

{1} - VARIANCE REQUIRED
(2) - REQUIRES TAKING PORTION OF ROCHESTER AVERUE RIGHT OF WAY

PARKING REQUIREMENTS:
PARKING STALL LAYOUT:
*  STANDARD 90°

DRIVE AISLE WIDTH:
o 90° (2-WAY TRAFFIC)

PARKING SPACE REQUIREMENTS:
INDUSTRIAL:
2 / 3 EMPLOYEES (LARGEST SHIFT)
+i/ COMPANY-OWNED-VEHICLE
= 161 EMPLOYEES x 2/3 Ef
+ 2 COMPANY-OWNED-VEHICLE =

[ 2 EMPLOYEES

REQUIRED PROPOSED
WIDTH: 8.5' MIN
AREA: 160 SFMIN 9" X 18' (162 SF)

24 FT 24 FT (MIN)

110 SPACES

MPLOYEES x {1 / 2 EMPLOYEES) = 37 SPACES

TAL REQUIRED PARKING:

(1) - SIX (6) ADA SPACES PROVIDED

147 SPACES 147 SPACESY/

SCALE IN FEET

GRAPHIC SCALE

Tighe&Bond




X

v =
N
-

o

e, = —

Advanced Manufacturing Facility
100 New Hampshire Avenue

TRAFFIC IMPACT
ASSESSMENT

Procon, INC.
October 7, 2022

Tighe&Bond

100% Recyclable é‘:




Table of Contents Tighe&Bond

Section 1 Introduction

Section 2 Existing Conditions

2.1

2.2

2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6

oY= 16 1T 7= )Y 2-1
2.1.1 New Hampshire AVenue ...........cviiiiiiiiii i, 2-1
2.1.2 Pease BoUleVaArd .. 2-1
2.1.3 Grafton ROAA .i.iiiiiieiir e e 2-2
2.1.4 Route 33 (Greenland Road) ........ccovviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiin e 2-2
Study Area IntersectionS .....cvcoviiiiivriie 2-2
2.2.1 Gosling Road at US Route 4 Northbound Ramps.............c.oeenieie. 2-2
2.2.2 Pease Boulevard at US Route 4 Southbound Ramps ................... 2-3
2.2.3 Pease Boulevard at International Drive .......coovvviiiiii e, 2-3

2.2.4 Pease Boulevard at Arboretum Drive and New Hampshire Avenue 2-3
2.2.5 New Hampshire Avenue at Exeter Street and Manchester Square.2-3
2.2.6 New Hampshire Avenue and Corporate Drive at Durham Street and

International DrivVe ..o 2-4
2.2.7 Corporate Drive at Grafton Road.............ooooiiii 2-4
2.2.8 Grafton Road at Aviation AVENUE ..o 2-4
2.2.9 Grafton Road at Golf Course and Park & Ride Driveways ............. 2-4
2.2.10 Grafton Road at I-95 Southbound Off-Ramp ......ccevevveviiniinnninnn. 2-4
2.2.11 Grafton Road at Route 33 (Greenland Road)...........coovviviiiiinnnns 2-5
2.2.12 Route 33 (Greenland Road) at I-95 Southbound Ramps............ 2-5
2.2.13 Route 33 (Greenland Road) at I-95 Northbound Ramps ............ 2-5
TraffiC VOIUMIES 1ttt 2-5
Capacity and Queue Analyses - Existing Conditions ..............ccoooininns 2-6
ColliSION HISEOTY © i e 2-7
Public Transportation .......cccoviiiiiiii 2-9

Section 3 No Build Conditions

3.1
3.2

TraffiC GrOWEN ..t iv e e 3-1
Capacity and Queue Analyses - No-Build Conditions ............ccoiviiins 3-2

Section 4 Proposed Conditions

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4

YL S 2 Yoo <. 4-1
Multi-Modal AcCOmMMOdatioNS.....cceviiiiii i s e 4-1
TriP GENEIALION . ittt e 4-2
Arrival and Departure Distribution .........coooviviiiinnn 4-3

Section 5 Build Conditions

5.1

Capacity and Queue Analyses - Build Conditions............ocoiiiiiiinnn 5-1

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment



Table of Contents Tighe&Bond

Section 6 Conclusions & Recommendations
Section 7 Additional Tables

Section 8 Figures

100 New Hampshire Traffic Impact Assessment ii



Table of Contents Tighe&Bond

Appendix

®

“ " I @@ m™MmOUO

Traffic Count Data

NHDOT Historical Traffic Volumes, Seasonal Adjustment Factors & Historical
Growth Rates

Traffic Volume Adjustment Calculation
Background Development Traffic Volumes
Collision History Summary

Capacity Analysis Methodology

Capacity Analysis Worksheets

Site Development Plan

Traffic Control Signal Plans

COAST Bus Schedule & Map

\\Tighebond.com\data\Data\Projects\P\PO595 Pro Con General Proposals\P0595-015 100 NH
Avenue\Report_Evaluation\Traffic Impact Study\100 New Hampshire Ave Traffic Impact Study.docx

100 New Hampshire Traffic Impact Assessment iii



Tighe&Bond

Section 1
Introduction

This Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) evaluates the potential traffic impact of the proposed
manufacturing facility, located at 100 New Hampshire Avenue within the Pease
International Tradeport in Portsmouth, NH. The TIA was prepared in accordance with
NHDOT and industry standards. The Project Site is bounded by Rochester Avenue to the
west, New Hampshire Avenue to the east, Stratham Street to the north, and Newfields
Street to the south. The site is bounded by industrial, manufacturing, and office land uses,
consistent with the Tradeport as a whole. The Site location is shown in Figure 1.

The applicant plans to construct a 209,750+ square foot advanced manufacturing facility
on the presently vacant lot on site and within a portion of the roadway right-of-way of
Rochester Avenue from Stratham Street to Newfields Street. Access to the Site will be
provided via four driveways - two on New Hampshire Avenue providing access to
employee and visitor parking, and two on Rochester Avenue providing access to loading
areas at the north and south ends of the proposed facility. As part of the project, parking
will be provided by two on-site surface parking lots accessible with a total of 147 parking
spaces. The proposed Site Plan Layout is enclosed in Appendix H. The proposed facility is
expected to be complete and occupied in 2025.

Based on the analyses conducted herein, it is the professional opinion of Tighe & Bond
that the traffic expected to be generated by the proposed manufacturing development is
has a negligible effect on traffic operations within the study area.

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment 2-1



Tighe&Bond

Section 2
Existing Conditions

The Project Site is bounded by Aviation Avenue to the west, New Hampshire Avenue to
the east, Stratham Street to the north, and Newfields Street to the south. The following
sections describe the roadways and intersections included within the study area.

2.1 Roadways

2.1.1 New Hampshire Avenue

New Hampshire Avenue is classified as an urban major collector and maintained by the
City of Portsmouth. The roadway runs primarily in the north to south direction connecting
Pease Boulevard to the north and Durham Street, International Drive and Corporate Drive
to the south. Near the project site, New Hampshire Avenue is generally a two-lane
roadway with approximate 15-foot travel lanes separated by a double yellow center line.
No marked shoulder or edge lines are provided. The roadway widens to provide marked
left turn lanes northbound at Rochester Avenue, and both northbound and southbound at
Exeter Street/Manchester Square.

A five-foot (min.) sidewalk is located on the east side of the roadway for the entirety of
New Hampshire Avenue. The speed limit is posted at 35 mph in both directions.

2.1.2 Pease Boulevard

Pease Boulevard is classified as an urban major collector and is maintained by the City of
Portsmouth and Town of Newington. The roadway is located north of the site location and
runs primarily in the east-west direction connecting US Route 4 On/Off Ramps to the east
and Pease Air National Guard Base to the west. Between Arboretum Drive/New Hampshire
Avenue and International Drive, the Pease Boulevard cross section varies. Pease
Boulevard at Arboretum/New Hampshire Avenue starts as a three-lane roadway (two
westbound, one eastbound) with 11-foot travel lanes and narrow shoulders. The single
eastbound travel lane widens to two lanes approaching International Drive, with two 11-
foot travel lanes in each direction and narrow shoulders, a dedicated eastbound left turn
lane, and two westbound feft turn lanes. Pease Boulevard widens to a five-lane section
eastbound with four 11-foot wide through lanes and a right-turn lane to the US Route 4
southbound on-ramp, with the four travel lanes aligning with two left turn lanes and two
through lanes at the US Route 4 northbound ramps. Four 11-foot travel lanes are also
carried westbound under the US Route 4 overpass, with two left turn lanes to the
southbound on-ramp and two through lanes. The roadway continues west of US Route 4
as Gosling Road.

A five-foot sidewalk is provided on both sides of Pease Boulevard between Arboretum
Drive/New Hampshire Avenue and International Drive, with a 10-foot buffered multi-use
path provided on the north side of the roadway between International Drive and the US
Route 4 southbound off-ramp. A 6-foot sidewalk is provided on the north side of Pease
Boulevard between the US Route 4 ramps. The speed limit is posted at 35 mph in both
directions.

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment 2-1



Section 2 Existing Conditions Tighe&Bond

2.1.3 Grafton Road

Grafton Road is classified as an urban major collector and maintained by the City of
Portsmouth. The roadway runs in a northeast to southwest alignment connecting
Corporate Drive to the northeast and Route 33 (Greenland Road) to the southwest.
Grafton Road is typically a two-lane roadway with 12-foot travel lanes, widening to provide
a two-lane approach with separate left and right turn lanes at its northeastern termini at
Corporate Drive and its southern termini at Route 33. Shoulder lane widths vary along the
roadway. Narrow shoulder widths are found near the Aviation Avenue intersection which
gradually increases to 3-foot shoulders on the west side of the roadway and 5-foot
shoulder on the east side of the roadway. Near Pease Golf Course Driveway/Park & Ride
Driveway, the shoulder lane width increases to 10 feet on the east side of the roadway.
Between Pease Golf Course Driveway/Park & Ride Driveway and Route 33, the shoulder
width on both sides of the roadway is 10 feet which reduces to 3 feet on the west side of
the roadway with no marked shoulder on the east at Route 33 intersection. A 10-foot
buffered multi-use path is provided on the northwest side of the roadway. The speed limit
is posted at 35 mph in both directions.

2.1.4 Route 33 (Greenland Road)

Route 33 (Greenland Road) is classified as an urban minor arterial and maintained by the
State of New Hampshire. The roadway runs primarily in the east to west direction
connecting Route 151 (Portsmouth Avenue) to the west of the study area and US Route 1
(Lafayette Road) to the east of the study area. Between the I-95 Southbound ramps and
Grafton Road, Route 33 is a four-lane divided roadway with 11-foot travel lanes and 8-
foot-wide shoulders on both sides of the roadway. Route 33 continues as an undivided
four-lane roadway east of Grafton Road, with 11-foot travel lanes and 8-foot shoulders.
Shoulder widths are narrower were dedicated turn lanes are provided at Grafton Road and
at the I-95 Northbound ramps. No pedestrian accommodations are provided east of
Grafton Road, with a speed limit of 35 mph.

2.2 Study Area Intersections

2.2.1 Gosling Road at US Route 4 Northbound Ramps

Gosling Road intersects the US Route 4 Northbound Ramps to the east of the US Route 4
(Spaulding Turnpike) overpass at a signalized intersection, with the Northbound off-ramp
approaching from the south and the Northbound on-ramp departing to the north. The
Gosling Road eastbound approach provides four lanes, with two left-turn lanes and two
through travel lanes. The Gosling Road westbound approach consists of three lanes, with
two through lanes and one shared through/right-turn lane. The left-most westbound
through lane aligns with a left-turn lane at the downstream southbound ramp intersection.
The northbound off-ramp approach provides four lanes, with two left-turn lanes and two
right-turn lanes. Left turn movements from Gosling Road eastbound and from the
northbound off-ramp are controlled with exclusive signal phases. The northbound on-ramp
provides two lanes departing the intersection. As previously described, a sidewalk is
provided on the north side of Gosling Road through the intersection, with a crosswalk
across the northbound on-ramp. A concurrent pedestrian traffic signal phase is provided
for this crosswalk. Marked edge lines are provided on all approaches with a 1-to-2-foot
offset from the curb or edge of roadway.

100 New Hampshire Traffic Impact Assessment 2-2



Section 2 Existing Conditions Tighe&Bond

2.2.2 Pease Boulevard at US Route 4 Southbound Ramps

Pease Boulevard intersects the US Route 4 Southbound Ramps to the west of the US Route
4 (Spaulding Turnpike) overpass at a signalized intersection, with the Southbound off-
ramp approaching from the north and the Southbound on-ramp departing to the south.
The Pease Boulevard westbound approach provides four lanes, with two left-turn lanes
and two through travel lanes. The Pease Boulevard eastbound approach consists of five
lanes, with four through lanes and one exclusive right-turn lane. The two left-most
eastbound through lanes align with the left-turn lanes at the downstream northbound
ramp intersection. The southbound off-ramp approach provides four lanes, with two left-
turn lanes and two right-turn lanes. Left turn movements from Pease Boulevard
westbound and from the southbound off-ramp are controlled with exclusive signal phases.
The southbound on-ramp provides two lanes departing the intersection. As previously
described, a sidewalk is provided on the north side of Pease Boulevard through the
intersection, with a crosswalk across the southbound off-ramp. A concurrent pedestrian
traffic signal phase is provided for this crosswalk. Marked edge lines are provided on all
approaches with a 1-to-2-foot offset from the curb or edge of roadway.

2.2.3 Pease Boulevard at International Drive

International Drive intersects Pease Boulevard from the north and south to form a 4-way,
signalized intersection. Pease Boulevard is median divided, with the eastbound approach
providing an exclusive left-turn lane and two through travel lanes, while the westbound
approach provides two left-turn lanes and two through lanes. The north leg of
International Drive is median divided and provides a wide, unmarked southbound
approach, which is of adequate width to accommodate two vehicles side-by-side.
International Drive northbound provides one shared left/through lane and two channelized
right turn lanes under signal control. Sidewalks are provided on both sides of Pease
Boulevard west of the intersection, on both sides of International Drive to the south, on
the west side of International Drive to the north, and on the north side of Pease Boulevard
to the east. Crosswalks are provided across all four approaches and across the channelized
northbound right-turn lanes, and concurrent pedestrian traffic signal phases are provided.
Marked edge lines are provided on Pease Boulevard, with a 1-to-2-foot offset from the
curb or edge of roadway. Variable width shoulders are provided on International Drive
south of the intersection, ranging from 2 to 8 feet.

2.2.4 Pease Boulevard at Arboretum Drive and New Hampshire Avenue

Arboretum Drive intersects Pease Boulevard from the north and New Hampshire Avenue
intersects from the south to form a 4-way, stop controlled intersection. Pease Boulevard
provides two lanes eastbound, with an exclusive left-turn lane and a shared through/right-
turn lane. All other approaches provide one general purpose lane. Sidewalks are provided
on the north side of Pease Boulevard on both sides of the intersection, and on the south
side of Pease Boulevard east of the intersection. Crosswalks are provided across the east
and north legs of the intersection. Marked edge lines with a 1-to-2-foot offset are provided
on Pease Boulevard east of the intersection, with 6-foot shoulders on Arboretum Drive
north of the intersection.

2.2.5 New Hampshire Avenue at Exeter Street and Manchester Square

Exeter Street intersects New Hampshire Avenue from the west and Manchester Square
intersects from the east to form a 4-way, unsignalized intersection with stop control on
Exeter Street and Manchester Square. Exclusive left turn lanes are provided on New
Hampshire Avenue in both directions, and an exclusive right turn lane is provided on

100 New Hampshire Traffic Impact Assessment 2-3



Section 2 Existing Conditions Tighe&Bond

Manchester Square westbound. All other movements are provided through single general
purpose or shared lanes on each approach. Sidewalks are present on the east side of New
Hampshire Avenue and on the south side of Exeter Street and Manchester Square, with
crosswalks across the south and east legs of the intersection. No marked shoulders are
present.

2.2.6 New Hampshire Avenue and Corporate Drive at Durham Street and
International Drive

New Hampshire Avenue and Corporate Drive form the north and south legs, respectively,
of a 4-way unsignalized intersection, with Durham Street approaching from the west and
International Drive approaching from the east under stop control. All approaches provide
single general-purpose lanes, with no marked shoulders. Sidewalks are provided on the
north side of Durham Street and International Drive, on the east side of New Hampshire
Avenue, and on both sides of Corporate Drive. Crosswalks are provided across the north
and west legs of the intersection.

2.2.7 Corporate Drive at Grafton Road

Grafton Road intersects Corporate Drive from the southwest under stop control at a 3-
way, T-intersection. Corporate Drive southbound provides a through travel lane and a
right-turn lane, while Corporate Drive northbound provides a left-turn lane and a through
lane. Grafton Road widens at its approach to Corporate Drive to provide separate left and
right turn lanes. No shoulders or edge lines are present. Sidewalks are provided on the
south side of Grafton Road and on the east side of Corporate Drive, with a crosswalk
across the south leg of the intersection.

2.2.8 Grafton Road at Aviation Avenue

Aviation Avenue intersects Grafton Road from the north to form a 3-way, T-intersection,
with Aviation Avenue under stop control. All approaches provide a single general-purpose
lane, with a wide departure lane on Aviation Avenue to accommodate truck turns from
Grafton Road. A muiti-use path is provided along the northwest side of Grafton Road, with
a wide crosswalk across Aviation Avenue. 1-to-2-foot shoulders are provided on Grafton
Road, with 1-to-4-foot shoulders on Aviation Avenue.

2.2.9 Grafton Road at Golf Course and Park & Ride Driveways

The driveway for the Pease Golf Course approaches from the west and the combined
driveway for the Portsmouth Transportation Center and Park & Ride lot approaches from
the east to form a 4-way, unsignalized intersection with Grafton Road. The golf course
and Park & Ride driveways are stop controlled. Grafton Road provides a single general-
purpose lane in each direction at this intersection with typical 8-foot shoulders that taper
and narrow to approximately 1-foot at the intersection. The driveway approaches also
feature a single general-purpose lane, with no marked shoulders. A multi-use path is
provided along the west side of Grafton Road, with a wide crosswalk across the golf course
driveway.

2.2.10 Grafton Road at I-95 Southbound Off-Ramp

I-95 Southbound Exit 3A includes a direct off-ramp to Grafton Road. Grafton Road is
median divided in the vicinity of the off-ramp, prohibiting left turns to Grafton Road
southbound. The ramp provides a single-lane approach under stop control, while Grafton
Road provides a single lane northbound through the intersection.

100 New Hampshire Traffic Impact Assessment 2-4



Section 2 Existing Conditions Tighe&Bond

2.2.11 Grafton Road at Route 33 (Greenland Road)

Grafton Road intersects Route 33 (Greenland Road) from the north to form a 3-way, T-
type, signalized intersection. Grafton Road southbound has a two-lane approach with
exclusive left and right turn lanes. Route 33 eastbound provides an exclusive left-turn lane
and two through lanes, while the westbound approach provides two through lanes and a
right-turn lane. The north and west legs of the intersection are median divided. The multi-
use path along the west side of Grafton Road continues adjacent to the intersection,
turning towards the west and continuing on the north side of Route 33; however, no
connection to the intersection is provided and no crosswalks or other pedestrian
accommodations are provided. A narrow 2-foot shoulder is provided on the Grafton Road
approach, with 7-to-10-foot shoulders provided on Route 33.

2.2.12 Route 33 (Greenland Road) at I-95 Southbound Ramps

1-95 Southbound Exit 3B provides an off-ramp to Route 33 (Greenland Road) to the west
of Grafton Road, creating a 3-way, T-type signalized intersection. Route 33 westbound
provides a four-lane approach with two left-turn lanes and two through lanes, while Route
33 eastbound provides three through lanes and a right-turn lane to the I-95 southbound
on-ramp. The I-95 southbound off-ramp provides two left turn lanes and a right turn lane,
while the on-ramp contains two lanes departing the intersection. The multi-use path
continues along the north side of Route 33, but does not directly connect to the
intersection, and no crosswalks or other pedestrian accommodations are provided.

2.2.13 Route 33 (Greenland Road) at I-95 Northbound Ramps

The 1-95 Northbound ramps intersect Route 33 (Greenland Road) at a 3-way, T-type
signalized intersection. Route 33 eastbound provides two through lanes at the
intersection, with a channelized ramp departing Route 33 in advance of the intersection,
yielding to, and merging with the on-ramp serving the left turn from Route 33 westbound,
which provides an exclusive left-turn lane and two through lanes. The northbound off-
ramp provides separate left and right turn lanes. 6-foot shoulders are provided on Route
33, with 1-to-2-foot left and right shoulders on the off-ramp. No pedestrian
accommodations are provided in the vicinity of the intersection.

2.3 Traffic Volumes

Turning movement counts (TMC) were collected at the study area intersections on a typical
weekday in February 2022 during the weekday morning (7:00 AM to 9:00 AM) and
afternoon peak hour (4:00 PM to 6:00 PM). Automatic traffic recorder (ATR) data was
collected on Pease Boulevard, just west of the US Route 4 southbound ramps during a 96-
hour period from Wednesday thru Saturday. The ATR location was strategically chosen to
align with the NHDOT Count Station (LOC ID 82379024) to serve as a basis for comparison
of existing traffic volumes to recent NHDOT traffic volumes to determine if adjustments
to traffic volumes should be made. The historical traffic volumes on Pease Boulevard at
this location are presented below in Table 1 below.

100 New Hampshire Traffic Impact Assessment 2-5



Section 2 Existing Conditions Tighe&Bond

TABLE 1
Pease Boulevard Historical Traffic Volumes

Peak Hour Traffic Volumes Source

Year AADT AM Peak PM Peak
(8:00 AMto (4:00 PM to

9:00 AM) 5:00 PM
2015 21,000 2,160 2,272 NHDOT (October)?
2016 21,420 Not Available NHDOT Growth Estima_te2
2017 21,848 Not Available NHDOT Growth Estimate?
2018 20,100 1,835 2,052 NHDOT July?
2019 20,341 Not Available NHDOT Growth Estimate?
2020 17,168 Not Available NHDOT Growth Estimate?
2021 15,807 1,212 1,558 NHDOT (August)
2022 12,894 1,161 1,428 Tighe & Bond February 2022 ATR#

!Peak Hour Traffic Volumes Adjusted based on 2017 Seasonal Adjustment Factor to Peak

2Based on NHDOT Yearly Growth Rates

3Peak Hour Traffic Volumes Adjusted based on 2018 Seasonal Adjustment Factor to Peak

“Total Daily Traffic and Peak Hour Traffic Volumes Adjusted based on 2019 Seasonal Adjustment Factor to Peak

The variance in volumes over time, and specifically the decrease in volume between 2018
and 2021, represent the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on work schedules and
commuting patterns. Traffic volume trends nation- and region-wide confirm that traffic
volumes have generally returned to pre-pandemic levels in 2022. Based on this
understanding, it is prudent to assume that post-2020 traffic volumes represent current
conditions, and that it would be overly conservative to apply adjustment factors to
conform current traffic volumes to a pre-pandemic level. Adjustments were considered
and have been applied to peak hour intersection volumes based on a comparison of post-
pandemic 2022 traffic volumes to 2021 volumes.

Based on a review of the collected traffic volumes and comparison to the historical
volumes, it was determined the existing morning and afternoon peak hour traffic volumes
should be adjusted by a factor of 4% during the weekday morning peak period, and 9%
during the weekday afternoon peak period. These adjustment factors were determined by
reviewing the historical NHDOT traffic volume data during the peak hour time periods and
comparing it to the 2021 peak hour volumes. NHDOT seasonal adjustment factors were
applied to both the historical volumes and existing traffic volumes per NHDOT guidelines.
The raw TMC and ATR data are provided in Appendix A. The Traffic Volume Adjustment
Factor calculation and NHDOT traffic volumes on Pease Boulevard are provided in
Appendix B. Adjusted 2022 Existing Peak Hour Traffic Volumes are provided in Figure 2.

2.4 Capacity and Queue Analyses - Existing Conditions

Capacity and queue analyses were performed for the study intersections for the 2022
Existing Conditions during the weekday morning and weekday afternoon peak hours.
Analyses were conducted using Trafficware Synchro Studio 11 software, which conducts
the analysis based on Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) methodology. Consistent with
NHDOT guidelines, analyses for signalized intersections were conducted using methods of
the 2000 HCM, while analysis for unsignalized intersections utilized the HCM 6 Edition

100 New Hampshire Traffic Impact Assessment 2-6




Section 2 Existing Conditions Tighe&Bond

methodology. The analysis results are categorized in terms of Level of Service (LOS),
which describes the qualitative intersection operational conditions based on the calculated
average delay per vehicle. A summary of the HCM capacity analysis methodology and a
detailed definition of LOS is provided in Appendix F. The queue analysis results are
summarized based upon the length of vehicle queueing on an intersection approach. For
unsignalized intersections, queues are quantified for 95™ percentile (design queues). For
signalized intersections, queues are quantified by 95™ percentile (design) and 50%
percentile (average) queues. Tables 4 and 5 in Section 7 summarize the capacity and
queue analyses results, respectively. Capacity analysis worksheets with full inputs,
settings, and results are provided in Appendix G.

As shown in Table 3, most of the overall intersections and individual intersection
approaches operate at acceptable LOS D or better during the peak hours with the
exception of the following:

« Route 33 (Greenland Road) at Grafton Road:

o The eastbound left movement operates at LOS F during the weekday morning
and weekday afternoon peak hour.

o The intersection operates at overall LOS E during the weekday afternoon peak,
with failing operations on the eastbound left and southbound right movements.

« Route 33 (Greenland Road) at I-95 Northbound Ramps:

o The westbound left turn from Route 33 operates at LOS E during the weekday
morning and weekday afternoon peak hour. Predicted 50%" and 95% percentile
gqueues exceed available storage.

o The northbound left turn from the off-ramp operates at LOS E during the
weekday morning and weekday afternoon peak hour.

» Grafton Road at Pease Golf Course/Park & Ride Driveways:

o The westbound movement from the Park & Ride and Portsmouth Transportation
Center driveway operates at LOS F during both peak periods.

¢ New Hampshire Avenue/Corporate Drive at International Drive/Durham
Street:

o The stop-controlled International Drive approach operates at LOS F during the
weekday afternoon peak hour.

2.5 Collision History

Crash data was collected from police reports from the City of Portsmouth Police
Department and Town of Newington Police Department for the most recent three-year
period between January 2019 and December 2021 for the study area intersections. At the
time of study completion, updated crash data was not available for the intersections of
New Hampshire Avenue/Corporate Drive at Durham Street/International Drive and
Corporate Drive at Grafton Road; in lieu of updated data, crash data from 2007 to 2009
has been provided from a historical report, and will be supplemented by more recent data
once available. Table 2 on the following page provides a summary of the collisions within
the study area. Appendix E includes detailed collision summaries for each of the study
intersections.

100 New Hampshire Traffic Impact Assessment 2-7



Section 2 Existing Conditions Tighe&Bond

As shown in Table 2, there were 66 motor vehicle collisions reported in the study area
during the three-year period analyzed. Crashes occurred most frequently at the
intersection of New Hampshire Avenue at Exeter Street and Manchester Square, with
eleven collisions, accounting for about 17% of the reported total. The intersection of
Grafton Road at the Pease Golf Course and Park & Ride Driveways experienced the second
highest number of collisions with nine, accounting for about 14% of the reported total.
The Route 33 (Greenland Road) at Grafton Road and Corporate Drive at Grafton Road
each experienced eight collisions, each representing approximately 12 percent of the total.
The intersections of Pease Boulevard at the Us Route 4 Southbound Ramps and New
Hampshire Avenue/Corporate Drive at Durham Street/International Drive each
experienced seven collisions, each representing approximately 11 percent of the total. The
remaining intersections experienced five or fewer crashes within the study period. For the
three-year period, the intersections of Grafton Road at the I-95 Southbound off-ramp and
Route 33 (Greenland Road) at the I-95 Southbound ramps did not have any reported
collisions based on data provided by the City of Portsmouth.

TABLE 2
Study Area Collision History Summary

2007 2008 2009 2019 2020 2021 | Total | Percent
Route 4 NG Ramps FELSATRYN S 0Ly o,
Eiii: Eosu I_l,eF\{::gpast ps 1 3 3 7 10.6%
?r? taesr?l : tci)c;J rlsllal‘)rgi vaet 1 0 0 1 1.5%
ey 1 St sibg | gt igige,
ugn/(\:\lflzsizs )ézter i 4 4 3 11 16.7%
E\:?afz?onn ';(:/aec:\ 3 (te 2 2 0 4 6.1%
ggifrtsoen/ Isaoridaztd GR?LIfe 4 1 4 9 13.6%
Eg:(tje 33 at Graton 5 0 - g peap—
Egumtss33 at I-95 NB 4 d . 3 Sxtiol
S e LS S 7 | 10.6%
gcr’;?c?r:aéia%rwe = 8 5 0 8 | 121%
TOTAL 4 7 4 20 13 18 66 100%

More detailed collision history summary data is provided in Appendix E. The most frequent
types of collision were angle and rear-end, accounting for about 39% and 24% of the total
collisions within the study area, respectively. The third most frequent collision type was
single vehicle crashes with animal or fixed objects which made up about 8% of the total
collisions. The remaining crashes were sideswipe — same direction, accounting for about
5% of the total collisions. The fifteen crashes summarized from historical data from 2007
to 2009 are unclassified, as detailed data was not available for these intersections.

100 New Hampshire Traffic Impact Assessment 2-8



Section 2 Existing Conditions Tighe&Bond

About 86% of collisions occurred on weekdays, spread throughout the day. With the
remaining 14% occurring on weekends. Weather and road surface conditions were only
provided by the Newington Police Department and was available for the two intersections
where historical data was utilized. 24 out of the 32 reported collisions in the study area
for which weather data was available occurred when the weather was clear. The remaining
eight collisions occurred when it was raining or snowing. 22 of the 32 reported collisions
occurred when the road surface was dry.

The collision data indicates no reported fatalities. One reported serious injury was reported
for an angle collision at the intersection of New Hampshire Avenue at Exeter
Street/Manchester Square. An additional serious injury crash was reported in the historical
data reviewed for the intersection of Corporate Drive at Grafton Road. The remaining 64
crashes resulted in minor injuries or property damage only. There were no pedestrian or
cyclist crashes reported in the three-year period.

2.6 Public Transportation

The Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST) provides transit service
within the study area. Bus Route 42 is the primary bus route in the study area with stops
along New Hampshire Avenue including two bus stops at the site location (New Hampshire
Ave at Stratham Street and New Hampshire Avenue at Newfields Street). Bus Route 42
also have bus stops along Grafton Road to the Portsmouth Transportation Center/Park &
Ride and provides service to downtown Portsmouth. The route operates from 6:43AM to
6:34PM Monday through Friday. Bus Route 40 also operates in the study area with a bus
stop at the Portsmouth Transportation Center and provides access to downtown
Portsmouth. The route operates from 7:24 AM to 7:46 PM Monday through Friday. Bus
Route 42 and 40 map and schedule are included in Appendix J.

100 New Hampshire Traffic Impact Assessment 2-9



Tighe&Bond

Section 3
No Build Conditions

The No-Build Condition represents the projection of traffic volumes. and operating
conditions without the anticipated additional site generated traffic. Consistent with NHDOT
guidelines, the study area is analyzed for an Opening Year (2025) and Design Year (2035).
This section describes the growth and development considerations included in the 2025
and 2035 No-Build traffic volumes.

3.1 Traffic Growth

To develop the traffic volumes for the 2025 and 2035 No-Build Conditions, the 2022
Existing traffic volumes were grown by one percent per year to represent the general
growth of traffic on the study area roadways. This growth rate is consistent with the
average growth rate in NHDOT Region E - Southeast, the region in which Portsmouth is
located. Background NHDOT growth data is included in Appendix B.

NHDOT and the Pease Development Authority (PDA) were contacted about other
planned/approved developments in the area that may add new traffic to the study area
prior to 2025. The following developments were identified:

e Lonza Biologics: This project proposes to construct 1,046,000= sf of new industrial
space and 700 new parking spaces contained within two garages along Corporate
Drive as an expansion of existing facilities located between Goose Bay Drive and
International Drive.

e 73 Corporate Drive: This project proposes to construct additional medical office
space adjacent to the existing Wentworth-Douglass facility on Corporate Drive.

o Pease Surface Transportation Master Plan: Traffic volumes for the full occupancy
of existing buildings and projects that are planned or under construction are
included in the No-Build Condition.

Traffic volumes for these projects were obtained from record studies and assigned to the
study area intersections in the No-Build conditions. Data for background development
projects are included in Appendix D. It is assumed that other smaller developments or
small vacancies in existing developments are captured by the background traffic growth
rate.

The 2025 and 2035 No-Build traffic volumes for the weekday morning and weekday
evening peak hours are shown in Figures 3 and 4, respectively.

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment 3-1



Section 3 No-Build Conditions Tighe&Bond

3.2 Capacity and Queue Analyses - No-Build Conditions

Capacity and queue analyses were conducted for the 2025 and 2035 No-Build Conditions
traffic volumes for both peak periods using the methodology described in Section 2.4.
Tables 3 and 4 in Section 7 summarize the capacity and queue results, respectively.
Capacity analysis worksheets with full inputs, settings, and results are provided in
Appendix G.

The increase in expected future traffic based on the 1 percent per year compounded
growth rate and the site-specific development added to the future No-Build Conditions
result in some degradation of operations when compared to existing conditions. Most of
the overall intersections and individual intersection approaches operate at acceptable LOS
D or better during the peak hours except for the following:

e Route 33 (Greenland Road) at Grafton Road:

o The eastbound left movement continues to operate at LOS F during the
weekday morning and weekday afternoon peak hour, with increases in
approach delay and queue increases of approximately one vehicle in the 2025
No-Build Condition and up to four vehicles in the 2035 No-Build Condition in
the weekday morning peak, and up to two vehicles in 2035 in the weekday
afternoon peak.

o The intersection degrades to LOS F in the 2035 No-Build Condition during the
weekday morning peak hour. It continues to operate at LOS E in the weekday
afternoon peak hour in the 2025 No-Build Condition, degrading to LOS F overall
in the 2035 No-Build Condition.

+ Route 33 (Greenland Road) at I-95 Northbound Ramps:

o The westbound left turn from Route 33 continues to operate at LOS E during
the weekday morning and weekday afternoon peak hour in both No-Build
conditions. Predicted queue lengths continue to exceed available storage.

o The northbound left turn from the off-ramp continues to operate at LOS E
during the weekday morning peak hour in the 2025 No-Build Condition and
during the weekday afternoon peak hour in both No-Build conditions. It
degrades to LOS F in the weekday morning peak hour in 2035, with increases
in predicted 95 percentile queues which are still contained within the available
storage.

o The eastbound right turn to I-95 degrades from LOS D to LOS F in the weekday
afternoon peak hour between the 2025 and 2035 No-Build conditions.

o The overall intersection degrades to LOS E in the 2035 No-Build condition in
the weekday afternoon peak hour.

+ Grafton Road at Pease Golf Course/Park & Ride Driveways:

o The westbound movement from the Park & Ride and Portsmouth Transportation
Center driveway continues to operate at LOS F during both peak periods.

o The eastbound movement from the Pease Golf Course degrades from LOS D to
LOS F during the weekday afternoon peak hour between the 2025 and 2035
No-Build conditions.

e Pease Boulevard at International Drive:

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment 3-2



Section 3 No-Build Conditions Tighe&Bond

o The signal-controlled northbound right turn from International Drive degrades
from LOS C to LOS F in the weekday afternoon peak hour between the 2025
and 2035 No-Build conditions.

o The overall intersection also degrades from LOS C to LOS F in the weekday
afternoon peak hour between the 2025 and 2035 No-Build conditions.

* Pease Boulevard at US Route 4 Southbound Ramps:

o The southbound right turn from the US Route 4 southbound off-ramp degrades
from LOS C to LOS F in the weekday morning peak hour between the 2025 and
2035 No-Build conditions.

» Pease Boulevard/Gosling Road at US Route 4 Northbound Ramps:

o The northbound left turn from the US Route 4 northbound off-ramp degrades
from LOS D to LOS E in the weekday morning peak hour between the 2025 and
2035 No-Build conditions.

e Pease Boulevard at Arboretum Drive/New Hampshire Avenue:

o The northbound New Hampshire Avenue approach operates at LOS E in the
weekday afternoon peak hour 2035 No-Build condition.

¢ Route 33 (Greenland Road) at I-95 Southbound Ramps:

o The left turn from the I-95 southbound off-ramp degrades to LOS E in the both
peak periods in the 2025 No-Build condition, and to LOS F in the 20235 No-
Build condition. Increases in predicted 95% percentile queues are contained
within the available storage.

o The left turn from Route 33 to the I-95 on-ramp operates at LOS F in the
weekday afternoon peak hour in the 2035 No-Build condition.

¢ New Hampshire Avenue/Corporate Drive at International Drive/Durham
Street:

o The stop-controlled International Drive approach continues to operate at LOS
F during the weekday afternoon peak hour during both No-Build conditions.

e Corporate Drive at Grafton Road:

o The eastbound left turn to Grafton Road degrades from LOS C to LOS F between
the 2025 and 2035 No-Build conditions in the weekday morning peak hour, and
from LOS D to LOS F between the 2025 and 2035 No-Build conditions in the
weekday afternoon peak hour.

¢ Grafton Road at Aviation Avenue:

o The Aviation Avenue approach degrades from LOS C to LOS E between the 2025
and 2035 No-Build conditions in the weekday afternoon peak hour.

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment 3-3



Tighe&Bond

Section 4
Proposed Conditions

The proposed 209,750+ square foot manufacturing facility will include approximately 147
surface parking spaces. The proposed development is expected to be complete and
occupied in 2025. The Site Layout Plan is presented in Appendix H.

4.1 Site Access

Access to the Site will be provided via four full access, unsignalized driveways, with two
on New Hampshire Avenue for passenger cars, and two on Rochester Avenue for trucks.
The proposed northern site driveway on New Hampshire Avenue is located approximately
280 feet south of Stratham Street and provides access to a 68-vehicle space surface
parking lot, while the second driveway is located approximately 700 feet south on New
Hampshire Avenue and provides access to a 47-space surface parking lot. The two
proposed driveways on Rochester Avenue provide access to two truck loading dock areas
at the northern and southern end of the proposed facility. It is anticipated that trucks will
access the Site to/ from Rochester Avenue to the south.

Intersection sight distance was reviewed at the proposed Site driveways in accordance
with criteria set forth in the AASHTO publication A Policy on the Geometric Design of
Highways and Streets, 7t Edition, 2018. Available site distances were estimated based on
the site layout plan and available aerial mapping. The posted speed of 35 miles per hour
on New Hampshire Avenue was used as a basis for the analysis.

Based on AASHTO guidelines and the posted speed of the roadway, the intersection sight
distance requirement is 386 feet for passenger cars and 592 feet for combination trucks
turning left under Case B - Left Turn from Stop. Each site driveway provides intersection
sight distance exceeding the AASHTO requirements for passenger vehicles and
combination trucks except for the northern site driveway on Rochester Avenue.
Intersection sight distance is limited looking to the north due to the sharp curvature at
Rochester Avenue/ Stratham Street. While the available sight distance is approximately
250 feet, this is not expected to be a safety issue due to the perceived low traffic volumes
in this industrial area and the expected reduced vehicle speeds due to the 90 degree turn
between Rochester Avenue and Stratham Street.

4.2 Multi-Modal Accommodations

Multi-modal access is provided in the general vicinity of the proposed development. Site
improvements include a sidewalk along the western side of the facility, with connections
to the employee and visitor parking areas and the building itself, as well as a proposed
crosswalk across New Hampshire Avenue at Newfields Street which connects to existing
sidewalk on the east side of New Hampshire Avenue. Near the site location there is a
sidewalk network that connects to Pease Boulevard and to Grafton Road. Just east of the
proposed development on the eastern side of New Hampshire Avenue there is a 5-foot-
wide sidewalk that connects to the multi-use path along Grafton Road and Route 33
(Greenland Road). These facilities may encourage cycling and walking to the development.
In addition, the previously mentioned COAST bus stops are located at the intersection of
Stratham Street at New Hampshire Avenue and Newfields Street at New Hampshire

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment 4-1



Section 4 Proposed Conditions Tighe&Bond

Avenue directly in front of the proposed development with bus connection at the
Portsmouth Transportation Center to downtown Portsmouth.

4.3 Trip Generation

Site generated traffic volumes were estimated using rates published in the Institute of
Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation, 11% Edition, 2021. The proposed land use
for the project site is advanced manufacturing, which uses innovative technologies in the
manufacturing process, which in turn reduces the number of employees needed over a
traditional manufacturing process; however, since ITE does not have a comparable Land
Use Code (LUC) for advancing manufacturing, and in the absence of end user data for
similar facilities, LUC 140 - Manufacturing was used to estimate traffic for the
development. This likely represents a conservative estimate of expected trips for the
proposed use. Table 3 summarizes the trip generation estimates, which have been
separated into passenger car trips and truck trips.

TABLE 3
Site-Generated Traffic Summary
Proposed - 209,750 SF Manufacturing Facility (Passenger Cars)

Peak Hour Period Enter Exit Total
Weekday Morning 105 32 137
Weekday Afternoon 46 103 149
Weekday 451 451 902

Proposed - 209,750 SF Manufacturing Facility (Trucks)

Peak Hour Period Enter Exit Total
Weekday Morning 3 8 6
Weekday Afternoon 2 4 6
Weekday 47 47 94

Proposed - 209,750 SF Manufacturing Facility (Total Vehicles)

Peak Hour Period Enter Exit Total
Weekday Morning 108 35 143
Weekday Afternoon 48 107 155
Weekday 498 498 996

Based on the ITE data, the proposed development is expected to generate 996 vehicles
over a typical weekday, comprised of 902 passenger car vehicle trips and 94 truck trips.
During the weekday morning peak hour, the project is expected to generate 143 vehicle
trips, with 108 entering and 35 exiting, comprised of 137 passenger car trips and 6 truck
trips. During the weekday afternoon peak hour, the project is expected to generate 155
vehicle trips, with 48 entering and 107 exiting, comprised of 149 passenger car trips and
6 truck trips.

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment 4-2




Section 4 Proposed Conditions Tighe&Bond

While the nearby COAST bus stop and sidewalk facilities in the area may provide additional
options for employees to travel to the proposed development, no credit was taken for
these trips.

4.4 Arrival and Departure Distribution

The distribution of the proposed site generated traffic entering and exiting the Site was
applied to the roadway network based on existing travel patterns within the study area.
Separate distribution patterns were determined for passenger car and truck trips. Truck
trip distribution is partially based on prior consultation with PDA and distributes trucks
exclusively to and from I-95 to the south, prohibiting site-generated truck distribution on
Pease Boulevard.

Arrive and distribution patterns are shown in Figures 5 and 6, and are as follows:

Passenger Cars:

e 25% East to/from Pease Boulevard/Gosling Road
e 25% South to/from I-95

e 20% Northeast to/from I-95

e 20% Northwest to/from US Route 4

e 10% East (Local) to/from Route 33

Trucks:

e 559% South to/from I-95
e 45% Northeast to/from I-95

Site generated employee and visitor passenger car trips are expected to balance between
the two site driveways on New Hampshire Avenue based on parking availability and the
proximity of parking to the employee’s work area. Similarly, truck trips are expected to
be split between the two driveways on Rochester Avenue based on availability and
proximity of loading dock locations.

Figures 7 and 8 show the proposed site generated traffic distributed to the study area
roadways for the weekday morning and afternoon peak hours.

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment 4-3



Tighe&Bond

Section 5
Build Conditions

The anticipated site generated traffic volumes associated with the proposed development
were added to the 2025 and 2035 No-Build Conditions traffic volumes to develop the 2025
and 2035 Build Conditions traffic volumes, which are presented in Figure 9 and 10,
respectively, for the weekday morning and afternoon peaks.

5.1 Capacity and Queue Analyses - Build Conditions

Capacity and queue analyses were conducted for the 2025 and 2035 Build Conditions for
the peak hours using the methodology described in Section 2.4. Tables 4 and 5 in Section
7 summarize the capacity and queue results, respectively. Capacity analysis worksheets
with full inputs, settings, and results are provided in Appendix D.

Many of the study area intersections and individual intersection approaches continue to
operate at acceptable LOS D or better during the peak hours in the 2025 and 2035 Build
Conditions. Study area intersections that were identified in Section 2.4 and 3.2 to operate
at LOS E or LOS F in the No-Build Conditions continue to operate at the same LOS under
Build Conditions, except for the following:

e Pease Boulevard at Arboretum Drive/New Hampshire Avenue:

o For the weekday afternoon peak hour, the northbound New Hampshire Avenue
approach degrades from LOS C to LOS E in the 2025 Build condition and from
LOS E to LOS F in the 2035 Build condition.

o The overall intersection LOS degrades from LOS D in the 2035 No-Build to LOS
E in the 2035 Build condition.

A review of calculated queue lengths in Table 5 reveals that the majority of queues are
unchanged between the No-Build and Build Conditions for both 2025 and 2035 or increase
by one car length or fewer. An exception is the Route 33 (Greenland Road) at I-95
Northbound ramps intersection, which experiences increasing queues extending beyond
available capacity in the weekday afternoon peak hour for both the eastbound right turn
and westbound left turn to I-95 Northbound. Storage is limited for the westbound left turn
by the adjacent signalized intersection of Sherburne Road approximately 500 feet east of
the I-95 Northbound ramp intersection, and the existing accommodation of back-to-back
left turn lanes for Route 33 westbound at I-95 and eastbound at Sherburne Road.

Increasing queues are also predicted for the Grafton Road eastbound left turn at Corporate
Drive in both peak periods, which operates at LOS F in both the 2035 No-Build and 2035
Build conditions.

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment 5-1



Tighe&Bond

Section 6
Conclusions & Recommendations

1.

A 209,750+ square foot advanced manufacturing facility is proposed to be constructed
on the presently vacant lot on New Hampshire Avenue in the Pease Tradeport area in
Portsmouth, NH. The development will provide approximately 115 parking spaces to
accommodate employee and visitor parking. The proposed development is expected
to be complete and occupied by 2025.

Access to the Site will be provided via for full access, unsignalized driveways. Two
driveways on New Hampshire Avenue will serve passenger cars, while two driveways
on Rochester Avenue will serve truck traffic to and from the proposed loading docks.
Trucks will access the site to and from Rochester Avenue to the south.

The proposed land use for the project site is advanced manufacturing, which uses
innovative technologies in the manufacturing process, which in turn reduces the
number of employees needed over a traditional manufacturing process. ITE Land Use
Code 140 - Manufacturing was used to estimate traffic for the development, which is
based on more traditional manufacturing methods. This likely represents a
conservative estimate of expected trips for the proposed use.

Based on the ITE data, the proposed manufacturing facility is expected to generate
996 vehicles over a typical weekday, comprised of 902 passenger car vehicle trips and
94 truck trips. During the weekday morning peak hour, the project is expected to
generate 143 vehicle trips, with 108 entering and 35 exiting, comprised of 137
passenger car trips and 6 truck trips. During the weekday afternoon peak hour, the
project is expected to generate 155 vehicle trips, with 48 entering and 107 exiting,
comprised of 149 passenger car trips and 6 truck trips.

The project proposes internal and adjacent roadway sidewalk connections, creating
and promoting connections to a robust existing sidewalk network along study area
roadways.

Vehicle collision history, compiled from local police and historic reports, do not indicate
a significant or notable pattern of collisions in the study area.

The capacity analyses show that the study area intersections will continue to operate
at the same LOS under Build Conditions as in No-Build Conditions for both the 2025
opening year and 2035 design year. One exception is the intersection of Pease
Boulevard at Arboretum Drive and New Hampshire Avenue, which degrades to LOS E
in the weekday afternoon peak hour in the 2035 No-Build condition and further
degrades to LOS F in the 2035 Build condition.

Based on the results of the foregoing analysis, it is the professional opinion of Tighe &
Bond that while the addition of background growth on a 13-year horizon to the 2035
design year results in undesirable LOS at some area intersections, the addition of site-
generated traffic has a negligible effect on traffic operations within the study area.

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment 6-1



Tighe&Bond

Section 7
Additional Tables

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment

7-1



TABLE 4
Intersection Operation Summary - Capacity

Weekday Morning Peak Hour

Weekday Afterncon Paak Haur

L 2022 2025 2025 2035 2035 2022 2025 2025 2035 2038
U:: Existing No-Build Build No-Build Build g No-Build Build No-Build Build
LOS Delay V/C LOS Detay V/C 10S Delay  V/C LOS Delay v/C LOS Delay V/C LOS Delavy Vv/C LOS Delay V/C LOS Delay_V/C LOS Delay V/C LOS Delav_V/C
Traffic Signal - Pease Boulevard at International Drive
Overall B 150 0.71 B 153 0.71 & 153 0.3 C 254 0.88 C B 108 086 C__21.0_0.89 € 220 0.50 F__1248 1.50 F_125.7 1.54
EBL A 0.0 0.0 A 00 o000 A 00 0.0 A 00 0.0 A C 255 o1 ¢ 257 oi1 C 263 o041 C 322 0.9 C 330 0.09
Pease Boulevard EBTR C 250 0.27 C 257 0.28 C 259 032 D 424 043 0 B 197 0.8 B 19.8 0.59 C 203 0.4 ¢ 227 055 C 230 059
WBL B 178 071 B 181 071 B 184 072 C 264 0.88 c c 249 017 c 250 017 c 256 o018 c 279 o059 C 289 059
WBTR A 56 030 A 57 031 A 58 034 A 68 032 A B 163 032 B 163 0.33 B 163 037 B 135 028 B 135 029
NBTL € 211 0,03 ¢ 216 003 c 219 0.3 c 311 003 c B 106 0.2 B 107 002 B 111 0.02 8 185 0.3 B 134 0.3
International Drive NBR € 23.6 047 C 243 048 C 246 049 O 461 0.82 [} C 225 088 c 250 0.89 C 270 0.0 F 259.0 1.50 F 2779 1.54
SB___c 210 0.02 C 215 002 c_z18 ong c__31.0 002 c B 113 047 B__11.5 0.8 B__119 0.8 C 202 027 C 211 0.28
Traffic Signal - Pease Boulevard at US Route 4 SB On/Off Ramps
Overall €248 061 C 256 0.67 €265 073 C__626 1.25 C__ 695 1.30 C_ 288 0.72 € 292 o074 €251 0.74 C__30.2_0.79 C__30.2_0.79
EBT C 24.8 0.14 C 249 0.14 C 249 od5 C 252 o021 C 252 0.22 C 241 0.44 C 247 046 C 250 o048 C 278 058 C 281 0.61
pease Boulevard EBR C 244 008 C 246 008 c 245 0.8 C 246 013 c 245 013 C 235 034 C 240 035 C 240 035 c 2728 051 c 278 051
WwBL C 252 0.8 € 251 0.8 C 263 0.18 c 273 0.20 c 281 020 D 533 072 O 538 074 D 534 074 D 528 0.9 b 526 079
WBT B 158 040 B 159 0.41 B 155 0.42 8 165 055 B 163 0.56 A 67 017 A 71 017 A 73 018 B 108 0.28 B 111 0.29
USRoute4SBOn/ OF  SBL € 297 0.52 C 307 0.54 C 314 055 0 352 063 D 355 0.64 C 337 o048 C 339 049 C 339 049 C 347 o052 C 348 052
Ramos SBR € 318 061 C 337 o067 O 366 073 F 1594 125 F 1827 130 C__29% 005 C 207 005 C 297 0.6 C 304 011 €305 o0a1
Traffic Signal - Pease Boulevard at US Route 4 NB On/Off Ramps
Overall C C 307 073 C__30.7 0.74 D418 101 D 419 101 €250 0.65 C__255 0.67 C 260 0.65 € 317 0.82 € 322 084
EBL  C C 204 010 C 202 0.1 B 164 017 B 162 0.18 C 307 0.65 C 302 067 C 324 082 D 483 0.82 O 437 084
Pease Boulevard EBT O D 373 058 D 368 058 O 351 0.64 C 3486 064 B 17.3 0.5 B 177 0.59 B 174 0.61 B 190 071 B 189 073
WBTR B B 185 018 B 184 0.20 c 205 027 C 206 029 C 235 055 C 247 o058 C 253 0.60 c 309 075 c 316 077
US Route 4 NBON/ Off  NBL  C D 352 0.73 D 362 074 E 701 101 E 716 101 C 311 023 c 312 023 C 312 023 C 327 036 C 328 0.36
Ramps NBR__ C C 262 Q.12 C 268 0.12 C__289 0.3 c 293 0313 ¢ 307 017 €308 0.8 C__308 0.8 c 22 020 C 313 o020
Ovarall C__30.7 095 € 3285 0.97 C__32.7 097 D 3.3 1.08 D438 lon ¢ 322 095 €342 0.58 C 349 098 D 452 109 D515 1.09
195 S8 On/ Off Ramps _ WBL ©  S1.8 0.95 E 576 057 E 5.6 087 F 87.0 1,08 € 870 108 D 530 055 E 553 0.98 E 593 0.8 F 897 1.09 F 897 1.09
WBR C 272 027 C 274 o028 c 274 028 c 285 039 c 285 039 ¢ 257 010 c 257 010 c 257 010 C 258 011 C 258 0.1
NBT c 272 078 c 282 079 4 206  0.80 O 38.0 0,93 D 39.1  0.94 € 34.0 0.83 D 355 0.86 o 36.0 087 D 46.3 0.96 D 463 0.96
Greenland Road (State NBR B 185 0.13 B 187 0.13 B 18,9 0.3 c 203 015 € 205 015 C 230 017 c 232 017 c 233 017 Cc 237 048 Cc 237 0.9
Route 33) SBL D 385 053 O 385 0.54 D 385 0.56 D 382 061 D 382 0.2 D 437 o083 O 453 085 D 489 0.89 F 8L 104 F 971 109
SBT A A9 035 A 9.0 025 A__90 025 A 92 028 A 92 028 B__126 059 B__128 0.60 B 128 060 B 140 067 8 140 067
Traffic Signal - Graenland Road (State Route 33) at Grafton Road
Overan D 391 131 D438 138 D 466 a3 ¥F_=5s 201 F_a40 213 E 3 3175 F 60 181 ¥ 704 1m1 ¥ Jo7a ise F_iiav 1w
EBL  F 1831 131 a5 i ST F 2324 143 F 4944 201 F 547.6 2.13 F 3925 1.75 F 4155 131 F 4155 161 F 4968 1.99 F 4963 1.99
Greenland Road {State ~ EBY B 10.5 0.74 B 112 077 B 117 078 c 206 092 C 225 094 B 164 0.80 B 172 0.82 B 172 0.82 c 221 091 c 221 081
Route 33) WBT B 185 0.50 B 187 051 B 187 051 B 195 057 B 19.5 0.57 D 365 0.94 D 414 097 D 414 097 E 695 1.07 E 695 107
WBR B 165 0.24 B 166 0.25 B 169 027 B 174 031 B 178 034 B 152 0.1 B 152 0.1 B 153 0.2 B 154 0.3 B 155 0.5
ST SBL  C 225 042 C 224 042 C 223 045 C 224 058 C 223 059 B 154 0.5 B 199 0.61 c 218 068 D 404 092 E 554 0.9
SRR € 202 D.10 C 201 oa1 B 198 o011 B 1#1 015 B __17.8 0.6 F__ 846 108 F__994 112 F__1243 1.19 F__2385 146 F__267.2 153
Traffic Signal - Greenland Road (State Route 33} at I-95 NB On/Off Ramps
Overall C 313 0.89 € 3231 090 € 337 094 O 356 105 D439 1.2 € 305 p.82 C_3ig 083 C 334 0.7 E__556 1.16 E_ 627 1.22
EBT C 24.6 055 C 254 057 T 266 058 C 296 0.67 C 297 067 C 246 0.45 C 256 047 T 265 048 T 320 0.0 C 334 062
Greenland Road (State  EBR € 223 037 c 228 038 c 237 033 C 260 046 C 261 046 b 376 078 O 419 083 o 467 087 F 1271 116 F 1515 1.22
Route 33) WBL E 630 0.51 E 632 052 E 632 052 E 632 054 E 632 054 E 621 082 E 620 083 E 620 0483 E 609 0.84 E 607 0.84
weT B 110 027 8 113 028 B 120 0.29 8 127 032 B 127 033 A 60 041 A 62 043 A 67 043 A 79  04s A 85 050
195 NB On/ Off Ramps  NBL  E 669 0.9 E 689 0.90 E 754 0.4 F  102.8 105 F 1267 112 E 626 O0.66 E 627 0.67 E 627 068 E 622 070 E 612 071
NBR D 426 044 D 430 048 D 422 049 D__46.7 _0.65 D 492 071 D 523 025 O 527 026 D__51.8 0.26 D__50.6 0.29 D496 029




TABLE 4 (CONTINUED)
Intersection Operation Summary - Capacity

Waakday Morning Peak Hour

‘Weaskday Afternoon Peak Hour

- 2022 2025 2025 2035 2035 2022 2025 2025 2035 2035
e Existing No-Buikd Build No-Build Suild Existing No-Buifd Build No-Build Buiki
Dalay V/C LOS Delay V/C LOS Delay V/C LOS Dalay V/C L0S Dalay Vv/C LOS Delav V/C LOS Delay Vv/C LOS Dalay v/C LOS Delav v/C LOS Delav V/C
Ilnllgn od AWSC - Pease Boulevard at mﬂ‘m Rﬂ!ﬂﬂ.il Hampshire Avenuse
Overall B 132 0.52 B 137 a.s5a € 3154 oe1 €155 o4z C__1x0 0.69 T 172 075 C__186 o7 D J6s oas D282 o091 a3 3
EB A 9.7 0.08 A 9.3 0.09 B 10.1  0.09 ] 10.3 0.10 -] 10.6 0.10 B 121 0.20 B 125 031 B 13.] 0.33 B 14.1  0.37 B 14.9 0.39
Pease Boulevard WBL B 1435 0.47 C 154 0.8 Cc 196 0.1 C 177 055 c 238 069 B 141 037 B 146 0.9 C 165 045 C 168 045 c 189 052
WBIR B 113 0.4 B 116 0.36 B 118 0.36 B 127 041 8 13.0 042 A 94 006 A 96 006 A 95 006 B 0.1 007 8 104 007
New Hampshire Avenue N8 B 10.6 0.26 B 108 0.27 B 115 030 B 117 031 B 125 035 c 20 o075 C 244 078 E 388 089 E 415 091 F 699 1.02
Arboretum Drive B 149 0.52 C 156 0,54 C 16 6 0.56 [« 183 0,62 C 19.8 0.64 B 114 0.25 B 1t7 226 B 12.4 0.27 B 13.0 D31 8 136 0.32
Unsignall TWSE ~ New Hamoghi; Exeter St Manchester Sguare
Exeter Street EB [ 163 0.09 c 16.7 0.09 c 18.5 0.10 [+ 18.8 0.12 C 21.0 013 [+ 163 0.08 L] 16,7 Q.08 C 18.2  0.09 < 18.6 0.10 3 205 0.12
Manheaar Satere WBLT ¢ 207 0.2 C 214 043 C 245 018 b W25 HINO!17: D 280 020 Rl 2iY6) 4o ¢ 225 o022 D 259 0.6 D 273 029 D 321 033
2 WBR A 9.6 0.02 A 96 002 A 87 002 A 98 002 A 93 002 B 112 005 B 113 0.5 B 113 0.6 B 118 0.06 B 124 007
New Hampshks Avenue NBL A 84 0,03 A 84 003 A 85 o003 A 86 0.03 A 88 003 A 79 o001 A 79 o001 A 80 001 A 80 001 A 81 001
P SBL A 7.8  0.04 A 7R D04 A 78 004 A 79 D04 A 80 004 A a2 oot A A4 0.01 A 8.6 002 A 85 002 A 7002
unlllnlllxed TWEC - New Hlmz!h‘n Avﬂul Igmr.u Drive 3t International Drive/Durham Strest
Durham Street EB C 15.1  0.06 c 154 0,06 C 16.9 0,07 [S 16.8 0.08 c 18.5 0.09 C 156 0.08 c 160 Q.08 C 17.7 0.09 < 17.5 0.10 C 196 0.12
International Drive WB  C 166 0.8 c 172 0.9 C 194 o021 c 195 0.23 c 225 027 F 533 0.4 F 635 035 F 1067 1.04 F 1336 113 F 2111 132
Corporate Drive NBL A 7.5 000 A 7.6 000 A 7.6 000 A 7.6 001 A 77 o001 A 00 000 A 00 000 A 00 000 A 00 0.0 A 00 000
New Hampshire Avenue E_ A 1.2} 0.02 A B8 0.02 A 9.1 0.02 A 9.1 0.02 A 9.3 n,(B A 7.8 0.00 A 7.9 0,@ A 7.9 0.01 A 7.9 0.01 A RO n,n’
Unsign: ad TWSC - Co rate Driva at Grafton Road
Grafton Road EBL (4 18.1 0.70 < 193 0.73 C 23,8 0.30 F 140,3 1,23 F 1910 1.35 C 24.7 0.59 D 273 0.63 ] 332 072 F 6129 2.19 F 7933 259
EBR A 9.6 024 A 97 025 A 97 o025 B 107 0.8 B 107 0.38 A 85 ol1 A 893 o012 A 89 012 A 81 017 A a1 017
Corporate Drive NBL A 7.7 002 A 7.7 0,02 A 7.8 0,02 A a0 0,11 A 0.12 B 63 0023 B l! 5 024 B 109 0.25 B JaE 054 C 159 058
Unsianalized TWSC - Grafton Road at Aviation Avenue
Aviation Avenue EB A 9.7 0.03 A 9.5 0.03 B 100 0.03 B 111 0.05 B 11.3 05 < 21.0 0.41 < 22.2 D43 1] 25.2 048 ] 495 071 F 62.4 079
Graf NBL A 42 D.14 A 82 015 A 83 D15 A 83 o019 A 90  0.19 A 9.5 0.02 A 9.6 0.03 A__99 003 B 110 004 B 114 004
Unsignatized TWSC - Grafion Road at Peaze GoW Course Drivaway/Park & Ride Driveway
’D'":’:wj‘;' 2T €8 B 103 0.02 B 103 0.2 B 105 0.2 B 119 0.03 B 122 003 D 263 0.20 o 278 o021 D 317 024 F 623 044 F 774 o051
Parkand Ride Driveway WB  F 903 D48 F 1058 0.54 F 1500 0.67 F 5763 151 F 9534 2.1S F 755 0.53 F 893 059 F 1239 070 F 5012 1.55 F 6831 188
EaronResd NBL A 7.9 0.2 A 79 003 A 8D 003 A 85 003 A 86 003 B 103 007 B 105 0.07 8 108 0.08 8 125 011 B 130 012
Spl_ B 323 0.02 8 125 002 B 131 002 B 147 002 G 155 o002 A 85 001 A 85 0.0 A__86 o001 A a8 002 A 29 00
Unsignalized TWSC rafton =S
5 SB Off Ramo WER g o A 24,9 7} D 314 082 F_F£14 086 F__978 101 B 113 D07 B__112 007 B 115 009 B 121 011 B 13« o33




TABLE 5

Intersection Operation Summary - Queues (In Feet)

Weekday Morning Peak Hour

Weekday Afternoon Peak Hour

e Rualliiia 2022 2025 2025 2035 2035 2022 2025 2025 2035 2035
s B Existing No-Build Build No-Build Build Existing No-Build Build No-Build Build
so'* 95 50% 95 50 g5t so™ 95t 50t 95" 50* 9s™ 50 95 sot 95 so* 95t so 95"
Traffic Signal - Pease Boulevard at International Drive
EBL 290 0 o 9 0 0 0 0 0 o 1 8 1 B T B 3 9 3 9
pease Boulevard EBTR  >1000 22 43 23 45 28 s1 44 57 51 65 52 91 53 94 62 105 104 118 121 134
weL 690 150 186 159 195 161 199 418 378 423 385 3 15 3 16 3 16 65 110 68 113
WBTR  >1000 50 67 53 71 59 80 86 85 97 95 22 74 23 76 28 88 29 103 34 117
NBLT B840 2 12 2 12 2 12 5 16 s 16 1 12 1 12 1 12 3 15 3 16
International Drive NBR 530 47 84 50 88 50 89 157 190 158 192 91 356 96 374 102 387 385 618 402 639
SB  >1000 2 9 2 9 2 9 3 13 4 13 14 59 4 61 15 63 38 82 39 85
Traffic Signal - Pease Boulevard at US Route 4 SB On/Off Ramps
€BT  >1000 31 41 32 42 34 44 53 64 56 67 143 163 148 169 158 179 190 211 200 222
pease Boulevard EBR 530 0 27 4 27 o 27 0 31 0 3 4 51 0 52 0 52 34 113 34 113
wBL 370 41 61 42 62 43 62 a7 55 47 55 195 251 202 258 202 258 224 282 224 282
wBT 370 207 242 215 248 220 249 312 311 314 312 37 50 38 54 39 s6 68 119 70 123
US Route 4 SB On/ Off  SBL 520 128 161 134 166 137 166 172 184 172 184 110 125 113 129 113 129 127 142 127 142
Ramps SBR 520 112 137 128 153 152 175 423 407 452 434 o 15 9 14 0 14 0 14 [\ 14
Traffic Signal - Pease Boulevard at US Route 4 NB On/Off Ramps
EBL 375 ) 38 20 35 21 40 36 55 37 56 148 195 159 207 171 220 227 277 236 286
Pease Boulevard EBT s 134 180 139 185 141 184 160 284 160 287 92 110 95 113 96 113 105 122 106 123
WBTR 480 44 72 46 73 52 81 73 110 79 117 178 246 189 256 196 261 267 327 271 331
US Route 4 N8 On/ Off  NBL 360 181 228 189 235 193 235 324 346 324 346 48 77 50 7 50 79 81 119 81 119
Ramos NBR 360 [ 18 o 19 o 19 0 18 o i8 o 43 0 43 9 43 0 as 0 45
Traffic Signal - Greenland Road (State Route 33) at I-35 SB On/Off Ramps
WBL 675 250 346 255 363 259 363 325 422 325 422 257 372 268 389 268 385 337 451 337 451
195SBONV OffRamps  ypr 35 0 60 1 61 1 61 2 98 21 98 0 43 0 44 0 44 0 46 0 46
NBT 800 274 354 287 371 289 375 348 500 350 504 278 337 289 350 289 350 332 439 332 435
Greenland Road (State  NBR 385 0 41 0 42 0 42 0 46 0 46 0 49 0 50 0 50 0 52 0 52
Route 33) SBL 78S 70 92 72 94 76 98 95 117 98 121 174 215 180 223 192 252 256 329 277 351
SBT - 66 81 68 84 68 84 77 93 77 93 218 247 228 259 228 259 268 301 268 301
Traffic Signal - Greenland Road (State Route 33) at Grafton Road
EBL 400 227 412 240 428 246 435 316 500 331 500 145 261 151 269 151 269 172 255 172 295
Greenland Road (State ~ EBT  >1000 176 288 187 307 193 323 272 464 289 464 199 267 210 281 210 281 249 388 249 388
Route 33) WBT  >1000 76 116 79 120 79 120 89 134 89 134 182 298 190 312 190 312 248 360 248 360
WBR 275 0 52 0 52 [} 55 0 58 0 80 0 35 0 36 (4 37 0 40 0 41
Grafton Road SBL 300 42 64 44 65 a8 70 74 100 77 105 96 161 100 167 114 188 169 315 187 348
SBR 1000 [ 24 a 24 o 24 0 24 o 25 212 374 229 392 254 419 359 530 384 557
Traffic Signal - Greenland Road (State Route 33) at I-95 NB On/Off Ramps
EBT  >1000 321 416 335 434 337 436 403 519 405 520 233 352 246 371 254 382 326 477 336 454
Greenland Road (State  EBR 700 [ 67 o 69 0 69 0 78 0 78 240 645 297 708 350 760 818 1093 870 1146
Route 33) WBL 200 71 123 73 126 73 126 81 136 81 136 304 368 313 376 313 376 344 410 344 408
WBT 475 118 151 123 155 126 159 145 181 148 184 158 227 168 241 176 252 218 308 228 320
NBL  >1000 340 403 353 417 394 483 494 587 560 649 135 195 140 200 151 212 168 231 179 243
95 NB On/ Off Ramps gz “349 22 53 35 68 42 79 116 168 157 211 0 81 0 82 0 81 Q 81 0 80




TABLE 5 (CONTINUED)
Intersection Operation Summary - Queues (In Feet)

Weekday Morning Peak Hour Weekday Afternoon Peak Hour
el AvaIan 2022 2025 2025 2035 2035 2022 2025 2025 2035 2035
e o Existing No-Build Build Mo-Build Build Existing No-Build Build No-Build Build
d so* o5t sot 95* o™ 95" st 95™ sa* 9s™ 50* ost sot* os™ sot* o5t 5o 95t so* 95

Unsignalized AWSC - Pease Boulevard at Arboretum Drive/New Hampshire Avenus

EB = 8 -+ 8 = 8 - 8 - 8 - 30 - 33 - 35 = 43 . 45
Pease Boulevard WBL >1000 = 63 = 65 = 102 = 83 = 133 = 43 = 45 - 57 = 57 = 70
WBTR | >1000 BS 38 - 40 = 40 - 50 = 50 - 5 = 5 - 5 = 5 - 5
New Hampshire Avenue NB >1000 - 25 = 28 = 35 ES 33 = 38 o 170 - 188 S 290 = 300 = 433
Arbaoretum Drive SB >1000 == 75 = 83 - 88 -- 105 - 113 -~ 25 - 25 - 28 - 33 - 33
Unsignalized TWSC - New Hampshire Avenue at Exeter Street/Manchester Square
Exeter Street EB | >N - 8 - 8 - 8 - 10 - 10 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 = 10
WBLT = 950 - 10 = 13 - 13 = 15 - 18 = 10 - 20 - 25 - 30 - 35
Manchester Square WBR 80 n 3 = 3 - 3 = 3 -~ 3 = 3 = S = 5 = 5 =3 5
P NBL 85 -- 3 - 3 - 3 -- 3 - 3 - 3 - [} - 0 - 0 -- 0
New Hampshire Avenue <AL - 3 s 3 - 3 . 3 - 3 A 3 - 0 - 0 - 3 == 3
Unsignalized TWSC - New N:mgxhlu Avenue/Corporate Drive at International Drive/Durham Street
Durham St EB | 860 - 5 - 5 = S - 5 - 8 - 5 - B - 8 - B - 10
Intermational Drive WB >1000 - 15 o 18 - 20 = 23 = 28 =3 15 - 210 = 278 - 335 - 418
Corporate Drive NBL 920 - 0 = 0 - [} = [+ - Q - 0 - 0 - Q - 0 - [}
New Hampshire Avenue  SBL ___ >1000 - = - 3 - 3 - 51 - 3 - 3 - [+] - [} - 0 - a
Unsignalized TWSC - Corporate Drive at Grafton Raad
EBL 0 5 148 —— 163 = 217 - 648 - 830 = 143 == 105 b 138 = 608 = 720
Staftag Road EBR 250 = 23 = 25 - 25 = 45 - 45 = 23 = 10 - 10 = 15 - 15
Corporate Drive NBL ___ >1000 == 3 = & = & > 10 = 10 L 3 = 23 - 25 = 83 B 93
Unsignalized TWSC - Grafton Road at Aviation Avenue
Aviation Averue EB == == 3 = 3 = 3 =S 3 = 3 = 3 - 53 = 60 = 120 B 140
Grafton Road NBL _ >1000 = 13 = 13 = 13 == 18 == 18 = 13 = 2 = k] = 3 - 3

Golf Course Driveway EB >1000 = 0 Oy Q | J 0 ol 3 = 3 - o - 20 = 23 = 48 = 55

Park and Ride Driveway WB >1000 - 50 -¥ 57 - 70 - 123 = 138 - 50 - 68 - 83 - 158 == 170
NBL 800 - 3 = 3 - 3 = E] = 3 = 3 = 5 - 8 - 10 - 10

Grafton Road SAL > 1000 - 3 S 3 -~ 3 5 3 - 3 = = - 0 - 0 - fH = 2]

Unsignalized TWSC - Grafton Road at 1-95 SB O Ram|
1-95 5B Off Ramp WB___ >1000_ - 63 - 70 - 100 - 188 = 263 - 63 - 5 = 8 = 10 = 10




Tighe&Bond

Section 8
Figures

100 New Hampshire Avenue Traffic Impact Assessment

8-1



NORTH @
NO SCALE
FIGURE 1

STUDY AREA INTERSECTION

=

95 5
PORTSMOUTH, NH

SITE LOCATION MAP

100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE MANUFACTURING FACILITY

6mp-dely uonEIOT XS ST0-5650d\SENBL\QVI0INY\s2uNBII sBUIMEIG\SNUBAY HN 00T ST0-5650d\s[esodoid [e1auad o) 01d §660d\d\:[ ‘DUl ‘puog 1 aybiL
ZIN0ISKW :AG PaNOld WeER:TT-2Z0Z ‘90 30




0 o & e
S = oE s
iy S SIS SN
: 12 g
X @
_ |xa o o x 2
s |2 ¢ g
O 9% 15 T
NEN | ®7a3) 2S5 | Ress) TEE
d ' = 79(15) d ' = 388(185) « ' <= 660(340) t 52(300)
PEASE BLVD ,W 180(166) E E 698(27) ?i c 104(505) P 253(678)
0(46 o4y > 192(820)'=ps 77495, | § 4 P GOSLING RD
18E59g-> A,tf 86(3§2§-> ‘lif 88(440) 3, sga(611)=> | oo
~— MM (Ve l=gVe)
Bt N i B -3 %%
2 | 33 3 S B3l &
%S - 0 &
55 o 2 [y
R&A 1(3§)25) ¥ O Y Q
<=4 ~m Ty
EXETER ST Ji 23(45) S x =2
5(4)
7(8) =
5y |a5e
Rt
NER MATCH LINE
W W
PROPOSED W <
MANUFACTURING  |§ z
FACILITY 9 g
s
100 NEW g 3
HAMPSHIRE N N
AVE oS g | &3
= < D)
MATCH LINE nRn f_ 196)  INTERNATIONAL
DURHAM ST ¢ 0& I‘-40(235> DRIVE
5(5
im0 4 O
Iy | g8
~—Q
88
[32]
7
)
wn
T
g ¢
g’ TN
546(2300% O\ 2
220109 % H\%2
a
EE)
pstbeg
GoLF course pwy € ¥%
o6y F 4§ } p PARK AND RIDE DWY LEGEND
83 | o5
¥ o 582 VOLUMES: AM (PM)
g Nglﬂ
? $§ TRAFFIC SIGNAL

135(42)
1-95 SB EXIT 3A OFF RAMP

778(388) -h@»

119(606)
101(282)

<= 406(1048) /5640155 <= 528(961)
RT. 33 (GREENLAND RD) 200(503) ¢ "qu- s87(94) /i
1395(1321) =p» rw G933(675) =»
414(233)
148(202‘ N!b B 520(825) =, Af
~ [ R =} h & N
X |82 ) L
we |z o | 7w
oS e DEIR
ng = §
ln X Ly
D q T @
—~ M — M

STOP SIGN

=

100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE
PORTSMOUTH, NH

2022 EXISTING CONDITIONS
TRAFFIC VOLUMES

DATE: 10/06/2022
SCALE: NTS
FIGURE 2

Tighe&Bond




| Q. a
S 3 S e
E S ~ § ~ §
N R X
o < w th W >
: s 5 4
X :
-~ |<& . < al&® X 2
o~ =& o o
DR =88 [58 e
8| Ty sEe| Taen BB e e
PEASE BLVD 4 185171) ¢ ¥ nsz8) ¢ ¥ 107(520) THET)
r261(699\
0(47) YN Cea Y e 795103 1 € } P GOSLING RD
19(61) = [ AT 67 593307 mp [TV T 1 3 499(630)=> | JoT
e - S -3 £
o g 53 S| & 3
98% N & ; & w
gay “-ug)zn +3 + 8
=4 ~ @ Ko
EXETER ST A x U x 2
5(4)
7{3)*
SR MATCH LINE
i W
PROPOSED & &
MANUFACTURING |3 T
FACILITY 8 é’
5
100 NEW g 3
HAMPSHIRE b1
AVE e = | oy
23 S| =<
P g
MATCH LINE L] B 105} INTERNATIONAL
DURHAM ST L ] 41(242) DRIVE
5(5
ot (040
YR8
=5
"G_‘N
&
&
oAl
g
B ¢
tg X
s Eoh
a(m" [=)
1;25(330‘:* ‘Py
~8_
28N 29)
3= = 0(0)
GoLE COURSE Dwy ¥ ¥ B € 25C8)
oe) T e 4§ @ PARK AND RIDE DWY LEGEND
0(0) =» A~~~
4(21) NS
¥ g o VOLUMES: AM (PM)
[0 O
"'.: (-3
? §  TRAFFIC SIGNAL
t 139(43)
@; 1-95 SB EXIT 3A OFF RAMP @ STOP SIGN
g
e 100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE
3z l8
5 PORTSMOUTH, NH
=419(1080) 3 ] € 375160 €= 544(991)
RT. 33 (GREENLAND RD) gueg 205518) ¢ Wb = 3750150 76(315)
Ta35(1301) = e ) 2025 NO-BUILD CONDITIONS
152(213) oy, (] (240) > g
e 1 07 1393(1255) = L i L TRAFFIC VOLUMES
.~y < P~y Mmm
S RalE8
by |55 WP l=s
Qs inw 0 Slo
R4 R =3|"F DATE: 10/06/2022
8a fx SCALE: NTS Tighe&Bond
o] ™
4 - FIGURE 3




/V = Q a
S 2 o D
~ 3 N
g 5 o 58
o) I S +3
= < Q
5 1N & R 2 ~Q
N 5« CEESY R =
gea ~237 |58 8.2
Aos | ®esnsy 222 | Rooess) HER
i <= 90(17) i - 442(211) i <= 952(551) R 59341)
PEASE BLVD ’# 205(189) "?”“‘- 1129(305) &,‘- 118(575) = 388(854)
(52 o5y 321(1033) =>4 14662003 | Q4 § P GOSLING RD
20%67%-» ﬁ!_? 93(3é5§-- ‘lif 144(543)y, SQSE738§-> ]5%
LY e o -3 532
Wi g § %
R 5 53 534 & R
Dolo @ W ﬁ W
gHE :éfé)”) 3 + 5
o [
EXETER ST oV 2661) ot x =
6(5)
8(9) =
10(6)‘ gag
R&a MATCH LINE
i W
PROPOSED & x
MANUFACTURING oy &
FACILITY o S
N
100 NEW 3 T
HAMPSHIRE S ~ | 2y
™~
e D e
MATCH LINE S35 2 ﬂgfi) INTERNATIONAL
DURHAM ST ¢ %—46(267) DRIVE
6(6
iy [0 4 P
s6)y | 38
S
S8
= =
S =
= <
5 |Suy ¢
Nt <
= ON RD LY
5 |« GRAFT 621(262"’ o h{for
3480155 F G %
-y
= N
g5s L
e N~
[=X -]
GoLF coursepwy € Y,
o7y & 4 ¢ PARKAND RIDE DWY LEGEND
0(0) = )
By g 28¢ VOLUMES: AM (PM)
8| R32 :
5 &
5 $  TRAFFIC SIGNAL
¥ L
193(63)
@; 1-95 5B EXIT 34 OFF RAMP @ STOPSIGN
=
QO
o b 100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE
™~ o
gz | PORTSMOUTH, NH
+463(1193) ) | /4730108 < 621(1101)
RT. 33 (GREENLAND RD) 271(648) ¥ ..sssﬁmyél 84(348)
T555(1503) => > 1084(806) = 2035 NO-BIULD CONDITIONS
168(236) P 271265 635(1015) 3, [6
¥ A 1539(1386) = LY |5z TRAFFIC VOLUMES
2o | B2 2|88
oS |58 as|58
Rz |8+ 2 E 23 DATE: 10/06/2022
fa fa SCALE: NTS Tighe&Bond
Lm oM
FIGURE 4




~ Q Q

T ™~
§ = :E |\2
g S P 3
4 L; W w
o 2 AKS) Re
& i [ ]
< Q = x ¥ x =

2%

= Q

(20%)
(25%)

¢

PEASE BLVD @." S F 45% '-q- 25% Ir- 25%
» (45%) = (45%) GOSLING RD
2
u

= 450

RT. 4 EXIT 1
SB ON RAMP
RT. 4 EXIT 1
NB OFF RAMP

EXETER ST C——
MANCHESTER SQ

t
2
wn
T MATCH LINE
PROPOSED & E
MANUFACTURING | &
FACILITY o g
s
100 NEW = T
HAMPSHIRE N 2 W
]
AV Ty W2
i =< g =%
wn
MATCH LINE o INTERNATIONAL
DURHAM ST t@ DRIVE
t
L
B
S
=
=
Sy
LSS

<= (55%)

GOLF COURSE DWY
’ PARK AND RIDE DWY _L_EGE&
& VOLUMES: ENTERING (EXITING)
8§ TRAFFIC SIGNAL
et 209, @ STOPSIGN
1-95 SB EXIT 3A OFF RAMP
~ 100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE
R PORTSMOUTH, NH
RT. 33 (GREENLAND RD) (25%) Y A 359,
: ARRIVAL & DEPARTURE
. > 2 TRIP DISTRIBUTION - PASSENGER CARS
Y do|”
83 23 DATE: 10/06/2022
ln & %) §
—~ M ~ M
FIGURE 5




=l Q
S S N S
R 53 =
S L SN
& = EN W
S S 5 v S
2 & = Q
<q W 58 & =
= &
= Q
PEASE BLVD @_ = &
w® b GOSLING RD
a Q
DS C3
~ < [ §
X X
wy = Wy ’~,_',:
AU % Q
~ m MK o
EXETER ST @— x® <=
MANCHESTER SQ
MATCH LINE
w uy
PROPOSED o X
MANUFACTURING 3 z
FACILITY o $
=
100 NEW g T
HAMPSHIRE > E W
AVE ey P
2< S =<
o
MATCH LINE s INTERNATIONAL
DURHAM ST 0@ DRIVE
%
=
£
ALY
N
<
GOLF COURSE DWY \ LEGEND

RT. 33 (GREENLAND RD) g (55%)

PARK AND RIDE DWY

I-95 SB EXIT
3B RAMPS

55%

I-95 NB EXIT
3B RAMPS

VOLUMES: ENTERING (EXITING)

§ TRAFFIC SIGNAL

@

STOP SIGN

100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE

PORTSMOUTH, NH

ARRIVAL & DEPARTURE
TRIP DISTRIBUTION - TRUCKS

DATE: 10/06/2022

SCALE: NTS

FIGURE 6

Tighe&Bond




RT. 33 (GREENLAND RD)

-~
b3 i -5 ~ &
S s E3 53
g = o i &
: s "8 -3
o . ~
< QqQ E . A R
E Q 53
-+
PEASE BLVD @4- 47(21) g 1“___26“2} —
P Ll bl s(21)F GOSLING RD
ik 8(25) =
"] Q. Q.
os ¥
= § = §
= u><4 >
) 2 Wi
% S g
= Q K @
EXETER ST ¥ x 0 =
WMAN HESTER S0
4
3
5 MATCH LINE
PROPOSED W &
MANUFACTURING  |§ s
FACILITY % g
=
100 NEW £ T
HAMPSHIRE N =
N Ty
AVE L3 SNEE
MATCH LINE ] INTERNATIONAL
DURHAM ST t@ DRIVE
t
9
0
wn
=
S
X
Sy
T
&8
g
GOLF COURSE DWY \
4 PARK AND RIDE DWY LEGEND
™
1z VOLUMES: AM (PM)
P~
wy
5
= § TRAFFIC SIGNAL
¥ L
21(9)
9; 1-95 SB EXIT 3A OFF RAMP @ STOPSIGN
Q
B 3 100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE
&C PORTSMOUTH, NH
W
8(26) ¢

1-95 SB EXIT
38 RAMPS

E.,\(.I'T‘J

26(11)

1-95 NB
3B RAMPS

SITE GENERATED
TRAFFIC VOLUMES - PASSENGER CARS

DATE: 10/06/2022

SCALE: NTS

FIGURE 7

Tighe&Bond




= Q
= S ~F ~ Q&
S =3 3
X ><
o l:( W .
B = + 3 + 3
<3 & &a k2
= 14
= Q
PEASE BLVD & pe " I §
T ik e GOSLING RD
a Q
£3 £3
> & 2
W W LLt
Ao} %
=M o
EXETER ST é @ x 2
MANCHESTER 5Q
MATCH LINE
w ']
PROPOSED & X
MANUFACTURING  |§ z
FACILITY P $
s
100 NEW 3 I
HAMPSHIRE Sw =y
AVE L3 1 ==
<
MATCH LINE f INTERNATIONAL
DURHAM ST ﬂ DRIVE
t
8
S
=
Sy
< <
S
GOLF COURSE DWY \
4 PARK AND RIDE DWY LEGEND
& VOLUMES: AM (PM)
g
) ¥ TRAFFIC SIGNAL
{
@";1(1)
4 1-95 5B EXIT 3A OFF RAMP @ STOP SIGN
. 100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE
) PORTSMOUTH, NH
N =
RT. 33 (GREENLAND RD) g %2 ¢ Lo e
2 E Y SITE GENERATED
. k — TRAFFIC VOLUMES - TRUCKS
= =
Gy So|”
) E 2 § DATE: 10/06/2022
n ny
LN SCALE: NTS
8 e Tighe&Bond

FIGURE 8




~l Q. Q.
b g g &
E Q ~ EE ! §
& B g s
Q s < lé ' Q
& o & R
b~
_ |=a o s gled x 2
£& N =3 2 8
[ — =1
RAE| Ty Ssv|Toewm BRI
PEASE BLVD ¢ ' 232(192) 4 719(28) i & & 107(520) tg;?{g%
0(47 o) 212(891) = 8s(s31)F 1 4 § @ GOSLING RD
19(61) = ,th 103(378;-» ‘11,() o433y, 50?%655%-’ oe
6(15)=y, ggg 55)y g%i ~ % ~ % LE!EE’
8| & g B3 8| & 8
G = WS N
SaN | ‘1327 NS +S
= 4(5) o ~ @
EXETER ST ¢ x» % =2
5(4)
7(5)=> [y 4 P
i d B3
< e
N38 MATCH LINE
PROPOSED W &
MANUFACTURING [T &
FACILITY 9 g
=
100 NEW = 3
HAMPSHIRE 1 = | 3y
m
-
MATCH LINE iy E 10(5)  INTERNATIONAL

DURHAM ST

0
41%24)2) DRIVE

128(18) r
816(357)

,.
2
53 | ®155)
’ -

: Ll

wn
g
¢
5(0)
370(197) =
258(98) y,

D
GRAFTONR 3
624(264)
227(108) Yy

a
aEa
25t
== 0(0)
GoLr course pwy ¥ ¥ Bgn €269
o) T
0(0) =» A~
aiy | §55
- R
'a ~N g wn
= o
&
4

161(53)

4 § ¢ PARK AND RIDE DWY LEGEND

VOLUMES: AM (PM)

§ TRAFFIC SIGNAL

133(652)
115(324)

RT. 33 (GREENLAND RD) 216(546)

1435(1361) => £
427(240)
152(212‘ ,\f 1393(1255) =b>
S oo
E U) ~Ne
Q| §&
oF |13
w <
1 &
D m
W

<= 415(1080) ¢ L 414(177)
<= 50

1-95 SB EXIT 3A OFF RAMP @ STOPSIGN

¢

482(363) 3

I-95 NB EXIT

3B RAMPS

<= 555(996)
76(315)

100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE
PORTSMOUTH, NH

2025 BUILD CONDITIONS
TRAFFIC VOLUMES

DATE: 10/06/2022

SCALE: NTS m&m

FIGURE 9




/V ~ Q. a
S S o S
Y ~ T
L: Q L X @
~ x 0y
24 uj W =
S S +3 + 3
S « i @ M@
~ |<Q E o N N x =
;;E";@ ey E Q 8,\8
R | Toon  sEe|Tuwes BRI | e
PEASE BLVD ¢ 252(210> 4 "%£1129<305>" VY o187 g a1 5 550
STEP
0(52) 7 9% o5) ¥ 33510791 1520641y > | & } @ GOSLING RD
20%5?{-- ﬁif 112(412) = ‘lif 144(543) 603(763)=> | oo
g IR = B -3| 2
= | B8 < 5 o I
hog R >U.<J ; >uf, u.
a8 | & 1530 +3 + 8
d ' == 5{6) [ o
EXETER ST x 0 x =2
6(5)
1008
¥ 253
TEE
RgH MATCH LINE
uy
PROPOSED o &
MANUFACTURING | z
FACILITY D <
S
100 NEW g 3
HAMPSHIRE W - | 3
AVE oS 2 | L3
=< sl
MATCH LINE FE5 | €116
<18 INTERNATIONAL
DURHAM ST di 160267y DRIVE
g |04 P
5oy | 28
N
et
8
S
M~
= 2%
@ 5 :>: i
§2 ON RD 5107 IR
- O t GRAF-r 682(289) h ‘)o
343(155)') Ze

GoLF coursepwy Y9 QBN
PARK AND RIDE DWY LEGEND
FE 1L
SR - VOLUMES: AM (PM)
T " $  TRAFFIC SIGNAL
L1503
1-95 SB EXIT 3A OFF RAMP @ STOP SIGN
5

nE | 100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE

~ @

== P PORTSMOUTH, NH

«4631193) ) Wl & = 632(1106)
RT. 33 (GREENLAND RD) sie7e) € WL SE0 84(348)
T prap— 1087(816 2035 BUILD CONDITIONS
D N_‘? 1539(1386) =b 643(1038&" Af TRAFFIC VOLUMES
S G E
dp &2 Gl 22
KT |8% 2 g <3 DATE: 10/06/2022
i & " -
S R SCALE: NTS 'rg"e&aond
FIGURE 10




¢
—
m

>

(o}
z

55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

ol-
»m

c<
M=
™|z
o0%|>
w |
-=
- m
<Z >
Sl =

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The Pease Development Authority (“PDA") Board of Directors
authorizes the Executive Director to execute any and all documents
necessary to terminate the PDA’s Option Agreement with North Forty
Group LLC, and to return a pro rata portion of the Option Agreement
payment for the remainder of the current option term: all in accordance
with the memorandum from Paul E. Brean, Executive Director, dated

October 13, 2022.

N:\RESOLVES\2022\Terminate Option for North Forty Group (10-20-2022).docx

O0OO0OO TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedev.org



Al

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: Paul Brean, Executive Director %
Date: October 13, 2022
Re: North Forty Group LLC — Termination of Option Agreement

In January of 2022, the Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors approved an
Option Agreement with North Forty Group LLC (“North F orty”) concerning the potential
development of 19.8 +/- acres of land on the North Apron of Pease International Airport. The
Option Agreement, which became effective February 1, 2022, provided North Forty with
exclusivity over the parcel for a limited period of time during which it intended to conduct due
diligence regarding a development. In June of this year, the Board approved a 6 month extension
of the Option Agreement through January of 2023.

Since February, North Forty has actively explored potential development opportunities, but, to
date, has not found a development scenario that it believes makes business sense and is in the
best interests of the PDA and seacoast area. As a result, North F orty has reached the conclusion
that based on current market conditions development on the North Apron is not something it
wishes to actively pursue further at this time. Therefore, via the attached correspondence, North
Forty requests a termination of the Option Agreement and a pro rata refund on its Option
Agreement payment for the remainder of the term (from date of termination through January 30,
2023).

I appreciate the considerable time and effort that North Forty has dedicated to exploring
aeronautical development opportunities at Portsmouth International Airport and understand the
decision it has reached concerning the Option Agreement. As such, at the October 20, 2022,
Board of Directors’ meeting, I request authority to terminate the Option Agreement with North
Forty and return a pro rata portion of the Option Agreement payment for the remainder of the
current option term.

PABOARDMTG\2022\Board Memo - North 40 - Termination of Option Agr.docx

NN

OOOC TAKING YOU THERE
Phone: 603.433.6088 Fax: 603.427.0433 www.peasedev.org



North Forty Group LLC

October 13, 2022

Paul Brean

Executive Director

Pease Development Authority
55 International Drive
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Re: Request for Termination of Option Agreement for a Portion of the North Apron (19.8 +/- acres)
Newington, NH 03801

Dear Mr. Brean,

On February 1, 2022, North 40 Group LLC (N40G) entered into an Option Agreement with the Pease
Development Authority (PDA) for the exclusive right and option to lease the Land and Improvements
thereon located on a portion of the North Apron at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease. The Initial
Option Term was six (6) months, expiring on July 31, 2022. N40G and the PDA subsequently extended
the term of the Option Agreement through January 31, 2023 pursuant to that certain Amended Option
Agreement effective as of June 22, 2022.

As we indicated in our letter to the PDA on December 1, 2021 requesting consideration for Option
Agreements, we have used the last fourteen months during our Option and Right of Entry periods to
thoroughly investigate this site and the impact our development will have on Pease and the surrounding
communities. We have worked with multiple local consultants and experts to better understand each
Option Area and explore detailed development plans. The exclusivity provided by our Option Agreements

during that time has enabled us to engage with multiple potential end users to explore the best use for the
site and for Pease.

After months of due diligence and conversations with potential tenants, we have been unable to locate an end
user who is prepared to move forward with development on the North Apron at this time given the current
market conditions. Therefore, we are requesting the termination of N40G’s Option Agreement for the 19.8
+/ acre Portion of the North Apron. This termination would eliminate the requirement for any Option
payments for the remainder of the Option Extension term, and would trigger a refund for payments
already made, proportionate with the time remaining on the current term. Should you have any questions
or concerns, please advise.

In closing, we wanted to take this opportunity to thank the PDA for its patience during our due diligence
period. We continue to appreciate the support and partnership of the PDA as we work collaboratively to
find the highest and best use for each Option Area. We are encouraged by the market demand for our
Advanced Manufacturing project at 100 New Hampshire Avenue, and grateful for the opportunity to seek
PDA Board Concept Approval for that development.



Thank you for yoir consideration Pleass do not hesitate to contact us dicectly if you have any guestions ot

CONCeS.

Sineerely,

J ebbins
Autpérized Officer

whi £

North Forty Group LLC



>

z
-
m
o]
z

55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801

o—
»m
c<
il E
Eoily 152
o %>
ol -
e
- m
<zl
-

Date: October 11, 2022

To: Paul Brean, Executive Director

From: Suzy Anzalone, Director of Finance

Subject: Executive Summary- Financial Report#

In anticipation of the upcoming October 20, 2022 Pease Development Authority Board meeting, the following is an
Executive Summary of the financial results for the two months ended August 31, 2022:

Consolidated Results

Pease Development Authority - Consolidated

($ 000's) YTD YTD Variance Fav
Actual Budget (unfav)
Operating Revenues 4,162 3,706 456
Operating Expenses 2,466 2,705 239
Operating Income 1,696 1,001 695
Depreciation 1,152 1,125 (27)
Non Oper. (Inc)/Exp (2) 0 3
Net Operating Income (Loss) 547 {125) 671

Consolidated operating revenues of $4.2 million for the two months ended August 31 are favorable to budget by
$456,000 (12.3%). Notable positive variances include fuel flowage fees, golf course public play, fuel sales, parking fees
and income from short-term option agreements.

Year-to-date operating expenses of $2.5 million are under budget by $239,000 (8.8%). Cost underruns include wages
and benefits, facilities and maintenance, professional services, and marketing. Offsetting this is fuel purchases which

were over budgeted projections due to higher fuel sales.

Year-to-date net operating income was $547,000, performing favorably against the budgeted loss of $125,000.

U TAKING YOU THERE

U P SRS 1 o SRS - B B el o Ty - £ TN A T o i AR s e o e
(0 QS -« B PRI s S o R cax: S A L rlAG TWWLD T A JE Y.



Business Unit Performance

Portsmouth Airport

l Portsmouth Airport ( PSM) incl Security I
($000's) YTD YTD Variance Fav
Actual Budget (unfav)
Operating Revenues 510 297 213
Operating Expenses 490 535 45
Operating Income 21 (238) 259
Depreciation 762 702 (60)
Non Oper. (Inc)/Exp 0 0 0
Net Operating Income (Loss) (742) {940) 199

Portsmouth Airport operating revenues are trending favorably by $213,000 (71.9%) year-to-date. Revenue variances
include higher parking revenues, fuel flowage and income from short term option payments. Airport operating expenses

are also under budget by $45,000 year-to-date.

Skvhaven Airport

[ Skyhaven ( DAW) |
($000's) YTD YTD Variance Fav
Actual Budget (unfav)
Operating Revenues 56 40 16
Operating Expenses 53 38 (15)
Operating Income 4 2 2
Depreciation 69 82 12
Non Oper. (Inc)/Exp 0 0 0
Net Operating Income (L.oss) (66) {79) 14

Year-to-date operating revenues at Skyhaven are favorable by 40.9% due to higher fuel sales. Year-to-date fuel sales
totaled 4,938 gallons vs. 3,063 gallons in FY22. The selling price per gallon is averaging $6.59 against FY22 pricing of $4.78
per gallon. Operating expenses are $15,000 over budget resulting from higher fuel consumption as a result of the

increased sales volume.

Tradeport

| Tradeport l

($000's) YTD YTD Variance Fav

Actual Budget (unfav)

Operating Revenues 1,724 1,731 (7)

Operating Expenses 67 82 15

Operating Income 1,657 1,649 8

Depreciation 125 150 25

Non Oper. (Inc)/Exp 0 0 0

Net Operating Income (Loss) 1,532 1,499 34

Operating revenues for the Tradeport are under budget by $7,000. Miscellaneous revenue was under budget by $13,000,
but is offset by facility rent which was favorable by $6,000. Year-to-date operating expenses are under budget by $15,000
mainly resulting from lower building and facility costs.

2|



Golf Course

il Pease Golf Course . |
($000's) YTD YTD Variance Fav
Actual Budget (unfav)
Operating Revenues 1,128 1,088 40
Operating Expenses 498 495 (3)
Operating Income 630 593 37
Depreciation 64 63 (1)
Non Oper. (Inc)/Exp {0) (0) 0
Net Operating Income (Loss) 567 531 36

Golf Course revenues are trending favorably as year-to-date results are 3.7% higher than budget, attributable to public
play revenue. Operating expenses are slightly over budget (0.6%) due to significant fertilizer expenditures in August.

Division of Ports and Harbors-Unrestricted

[ Division of Ports and Harbors (Unrestricted) |
($000's) YTD YTD Variance Fav
Actual Budget (unfav)
Operating Revenues 711 523 188
Operating Expenses 665 615 (50)
Operating Income 46 (92) 138
Depreciation 103 104 0
Non Oper. (Inc)/Exp (0) {0) 0
Net Operating Income (Loss) (57) {195) 138

Unrestricted operating revenues for the DPH are $188,000 (36.0%) higher than budget mainly due to higher fuel sales as

well as parking revenue. Operating expense overruns of $50,000 (8.2%) stem from higher fuel consumption expense
driven by the higher sales volume.

Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Position

($000's) As of As of
8/31/2022 8/31/2021
Assets
Current Assets ! 19,509 11,883
Restricted Assets 1,557 1,577
Non-Current Assets 292,850 265,439
Total Assets 313,916 278,899
Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,705 4,202
Liabilities
Current Liabilites 3,435 5,430
Non-Current Liabilities 12,004 14,554
Total Liabilities 15,439 19,984
Deferred Inflows of Resources 201,506 175,253

Net Position

Net Invest. in Cap Assets 95,047 92,719
Restricted 1,290 1,223
Unrestricted 4,339 (6,077}
Total Net Position 100,676 87,864

3|Page



You will note some changes to our balance sheet due to the adoption of GASB 87, the new lease accounting standard,
which was adopted in FY22. Current Assets now include a lease receivable which reflects the present value of lease
payments expected over the next twelve month period. The amounts for FY23 and FY22 are $5.1 million and $4.4 million
respectively. Current assets also include unrestricted cash, which was $10.8 million at August 31°%.

Restricted assets total $1.6 million and consist primarily of the Revolving Loan Fund. At present, there are 21 participant
loans outstanding with a principal balance outstanding of $1.2 million.

Non-current assets include capital assets as well as a long term lease receivable related to the new accounting standard.
The long term receivable represents the present value of lease payments for the remaining terms of all active long-term
lease agreements, which will be received in more than one year. The amounts for FY23 and FY22 is $197.2 million and
$169.9 million respectively. Fiscal Year 2023 capital expenditures through August total $670,000, mainly represented by
expenses for repairs to the Main Wharf at Market Street.

Current liabilities of $3.4 million are largely related to trade accounts payable and various accrued expenses. The majority
of non-current liabilities of $12.0 million represent the current pension and OPEB liability which is currently $11.6 million.
The actuarial consultant reports were received in late August for the period ended June 30, 2021 (pension reporting is
always one year in arrears). The pension/OPEB liability decreased by $2.5 million over the previous year, mainly as a
result of significantly higher return on investments than the previous reporting year. Return on investments for the plan
were 29.4% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 vs. 1.1% for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Deferred Inflows of Resources now include deferred lease revenue, also associated with the new lease accounting
standard, and represent the present value of expected lease revenue for the remaining terms of all active long-term lease
agreements. Amounts shown on the balance sheet for FY23 and FY22, net of amortization, are $198.5 million and 172.3
million respectively.

A more detailed balance sheet is shown on page 6 of the FY2023 Financial Report.

Cash Flow Proijections for the Nine Month Period Ending June 30, 2023

During the next nine-month period, cash inflows are projected at $16.1 million, mainly provided by operating revenues
and include $2.8 million in grant funding.

Cash outflows of $19.6 million during this same period include $7.7 million in non-grant capital expenditures and $1.2
million in grant related expenditures, as well as outflows from normal operating expenses. Current projections indicate
that we will not need to draw on our line of credit over the next nine months, and estimate unrestricted cash at
approximately $6.4 million in June, 2023. The chart below outlines cash and debt balances over the next nine month

period.

PROJECTED

5102
CASH $6,376

{5 0G0

2.05% PROJECTED DEBT
OF $0

Please let me know if you have any questions or require supplemental information.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
FY2023 FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE TWO MONTH PERIOD
ENDING AUGUST 31, 2022

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
OCTOBER 20, 2022

INTERNATIONAL




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues and Expenditures — Two Months Ended August 31, 2022

Trends:

YTD revenue higher by 12.3%:

+  Golf Fees, Fuel Flowage, Parking
fees, Fuel Sales and income from
Short-Term Option payments
trending higher than budget

Trends:

November 2021 includes sale of
30 NH Ave

July revenues include annuat
rent payment-Great Bay Comm.
College

June revenues include increase
in Golf fee revenue

Trends:
YTD Operating Expenses lower by 8.8%:

+  Wages & Benefits, Facilities,
Professional Svcs. & Marketing
trending lower than budget

+ Offset by cost overruns fuel purchases
{due to higher fuel sales)

Trends:

March 2019-S800k CLF settlement
June 2019-June 2021 — Retirement
OPEB year end adjustments

FOUR YEAR REVENUE COMPARISON (S 060'S)

Sl / e

—————a

e » ‘.\
" o - “*,/
TAGD . g ¢
> 4

5= i

ey

R o = ekt Shaer
- L TN

[FTVEA R =PI SRR B o8 o EE N el Rt et |

— s BN - puciy o

FOUR YEAR EXPENDITURE COMPARISON (8 0CG0'S

L X - - » -
— e
2 ol
v T —— -
- -

A\ J
NGTE € DEPRECIATION
L & s T Wl DR A £E5 M =8 V4 A




OPERATING REVENUES
FACILITY RENTAL
FACILITIES
CARGO AND HANGARS

CONCESSION REVENUE

FEE REVENUE
AVIATION FEES
FUEL FLOWAGE
PSMTSALEO REVENUE
PSM SECURITY REVENUE
GOLF FEES
GOLF SIMULATORS
GOLF MEMBERSHIPS
GOLF LESSONS
MOORING FEES
PARKING
PIER USAGE FEES
REGISTRATIONS
TERMINAL FEES
WHARFAGE AND DOCKAGE

FUEL SALES

INTEREST INCOME
LOAN INTEREST

OTHER REVENUES
MERCHANDISE
ALL OTHER

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSES
WAGES AND FRINGE BENEFITS

WAGES
BENEFITED REGULAR
BENEFITED OVERTIME
NON-BENEFITED REGULAR
NON-BENEFITED OVERTIME
ACCRUED VACATION BENEFITS
ACCRUED SICK TIME BENEFITS

WAGE TRANSFERS OUT

BENEATS
DENTAL INSURANCE
HEALTH INSURANCE
LIFE INSURANCE
NEWHAMPSHIRE RETIREMENT
POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS
EMPLOYEE DRUG TEST
OPEB EXPENSE
EMPLOYER FICA
UNEMPLOYMENT INS

BENEFIT TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL WAGES & BENEATS

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Consolidated Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2022

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

Aug Aug From Monthly % YTD YTD From YTD %
FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance
$889,085 $886,321 $2,764 0.3% $1,935,751 $1,926,574 $9,177 0.5%
13,808 12,617 1,191 9.4% 28,042 27855 187 0.7%
902,893 898,938 3,855 0.4% 1,963,793 1,954,429 9,364 0.5%
65,068 53,486 11,582 21.7% 120,138 112,749 7,389 6.6%
74 (74)  (100.0%) 147 (147) (100.0%)
60,615 44626 15,989 35.8% 105,860 54,868 50,992 92.8%
2,230 1,856 374 201% 5,990 3,713 2277 61.3%
2,435 2411 24 1.0% 4,740 4,821 81  (1.7%)
390,677 386,043 4,634 1.2% 810,364 771,584 38,780 5.0%
547 230 317 137.8% 1,502 1,380 122 8.8%
51,058 54,375 (3,317) (6.1%) 102,117 108,750 (6,633) (6.1%)
6,556 6,647 (91) (1.4%) 18,147 15,307 2,840  186%
39,637 38,750 887 23% 79,274 77,500 1,774 2.3%
71,330 43,180 28,150 65.2% 142,299 90,571 51,728 57.1%
8,424 8417 7 0.1% 21,438 16,833 4,605 27.4%
10,889 12,682 (1,793) (14.1%) 26,889 13,516 13,373 98.9%
4,500 4,500 - 4,500 4,500 =
648,898 599,291 49,608 8.3% 1,323,120 1,158,980 164,131 14.2%
185,222 150,412 34,810 23.1% 445718 298,608 146,110 43.8%
2,800 2,583 217 8.4% 5911 5,167 745 14.4%
35,999 40,539 4,540)  (11.2%) 79,664 82,140 (2.476)  (3.0%)
21,465 36,736 (15,271) (41.6%) 223,741 92,550 131,192 141.8%
57,464 77,275 19,812 25.6% 303,405 174,690 (128,716) (73.7%)
1,862,345 1,781,985 80,359 4.5% 4,162,085 3,705,633 456,455 12.3%
380,948 399,628 18,680 4.7% 718,177 842916 123,738 14.7%
15,990 11,585 (4,408)  (38.0%) 33,181 29,327 (3,854) (13.1%)
118,135 85927 (32,208) (37.5%) 226,939 183,463 (43.476) (23.7%)
1,082 1,632 550 33.7% 6,698 6,887 187 2.7%
(6,043) 1,008 7,051 699.3% (8,067) 2,017 10,084 500.0%
1,615 433 (1,182)  (272.7%) 3,273 867 (2,408) (277.7%)
511,727 500,213 (11,515) (2.3%) 981,202 1,065,477 84,274 7.9%
511,727 500,213 (11,515) (2.3%) 981,202 1,065,477 84,274 7.9%
5,336 5,902 565 9.6% 10,582 11,804 1,221 10.3%
100,312 112,153 11,841 10.6% 199,094 224 306 25213 1.2%
2,692 2,676 (16) (0.6%) 5,232 5,352 120 2.2%
49,694 64,212 14,518 22.6% 102,345 128,424 26,079 20.3%
9,472 10,216 744 7.3% 18,944 20,432 1,489 7.3%
110 170 60 35.3% 367 340 (27)  (7.9%)
38,808 38,918 110 0.3% 74,161 83,548 9,387 11.2%
206,424 234,247 27822 11.9% 410,725 474,206 63,482 13.4%
206,424 234,247 27,822 11.9% 410,725 474,206 63,482 13.4%
718,151 734,460 16,307 2.2% 1,391,927 1,639,683 147,755 9.6%




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Consolidated Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2022

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance
Aug Aug From Monthly % YTD YTD From YTD %
FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance
BUILDING AND FACILITIES
AIRFIELD MAINTENANCE 1,315 8,284 6,969 84.1% 1,641 16,569 14,928 90.1%
COMD-19 590 590 100.0% 1,180 1,180 100.0%
SOIL & VEGETATION CONTROL 13,286 9,637 (3,649) (37 .9%) 16,042 19,274 3232 16.8%
ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 8,050 8,050 100.0% 8,357 16,099 7743 48.1%
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 30,436 33,555 3,119 9.3% 67,180 68,726 1546 2.2%
FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 62,609 66,674 4,065 6.1% 124,469 133,348 8,878 6.7%
LANDSCAPING 7,789 3668 (4,120)  (112.3%) 9,018 6,837 (2,182) (31.9%)
NAVIGATION MAINTENANCE 954 4,642 3687 79 4% 954 9,283 8329 89.7%
OTHER EXPENSES - -
SECURITY 13,561 19,893 6,332 318% 35,438 39,787 4,349 10.9%
SNOW REMOVAL - -
EXPENSE TRANSFERS - -
129,950 154,993 25,043 16.2% 263,099 311,103 48,003 154%
WAGE & BENEFIT TRANSFER IN - -
129,950 154,993 25,043 16.2% 263,099 311,103 48,003 15.4%
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
BAD DEBT EXPENSE 42 42 100.0% 83 83 100.0%
BANK FEES 13,865 10,939 (2,927) (26.8%) 30,027 21,942 (8.085) (36.8%)
COMPUTER EXPENSES 6,010 5,788 (222) (3.8%) 12,213 11,577 (636) (5.5%)
DISCOUNTS AND LATE FEES (499) @71 329 (192 4%) (965) (342) 624 (182.6%)
EQUIPMENT UNDER $5,000 2,939 5,993 3,054 51 0% 6,895 11,985 5091 42.5%
FEES AND LICENSES 1,925 7,407 5482 74.0% 5481 14,643 9162 62.6%
INSURANCE 34,647 32,566 (2,081) (6.4%) 69,293 65,132 4,161) (6.4%)
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1612 1,834 221 121% 3,001 3,667 666 18.2%
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 1,526 4,788 3,262 68.1% 2,901 9,576 6675 69 7%
SUPPLIES 4,890 8,829 3,939 446% 12,829 17,659 4,830 27 4%
TELEPHONES AND COMMUNICATIONS 13,329 13,272 (67) (0.4%) 25908 26,544 635 2.4%
TRAVEL AND MILEAGE 1,007 4,092 3,084 75.4% 2,226 8,183 5957 728%
OTHER EXPENSES 1,228 5,659 4,431 78.3% 2,820 11,317 8,497 751%
82,479 101,038 18,559 18.4% 172,630 201,966 29,336 14.5%
UTILITIES
ELECTRICITY 50,877 56,257 5380 96% 96,269 109,389 13,119 12.0%
ELECTRICITY TRANSFERS - -
HEATING OIL - -
NATURAL GAS 1,144 1,226 82 6.7% 2,910 1,540 {1,370) (89.0%)
NATURAL GAS TRANSFERS - -
PROPANE 4,054 1,031 (3.023)  (293.1%) 6,623 3,758 (2,865) (76.2%)
WASTE REMOVAL 5175 9,270 4,095 44.2% 11,629 18,639 6,910 37.3%
WASTE REMOVAL TRANSFERS - -
WATER 2,669 4,684 2,015 43.0% 5,228 5,209 (20) (0.4%)
WATER TRANSFERS - -
63,919 72,468 8,548 11.8% 122,659 138,435 15,775 11.4%
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AUDIT 10,884 (10,884) - 10,884 (10,884) -
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 6,483 9722 3,239 33.3% 17628 19,445 1817 93%
LEGAL 10,767 10,767 1000% 21,533 21,533 100.0%
LEGAL PERMIT IMPLEMENT 14,583 14,583 100.0% 29,167 29,167 100.0%
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 3,940 5917 1,977 33.4% 8,569 11,833 3,264 27 6%
21,307 40,989 19,682 48.0% 37,081 81,978 44,896 54 8%
MARKETING AND PROMOTION
ADVERTISING 1,631 4,489 2957 65.9% 4,071 8,977 4,906 54.6%
OTHER MARKETING 10,761 25,588 14,828 57 9% 14,361 51,177 36,815 71.9%
FLIGHT INCENTIVES - -
12,292 30,077 17,785 59.1% 18,432 60,154 41,721 69.4%
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
COAST TROLLEY 10,000 10,000 - 20,000 20,000 -
FUEL 140,664 124,737 (15,927) (12.8%) 349,650 249,066 (100,584) (40.4%)
GOLF CART LEASE 20,717 20,500 217) (1.1%) 41,433 41,000 (433) (1.1%)
MERCHANDISE 23,658 30,404 6,746 22.2% 49,065 61,605 12,540 20.4%
195,039 185,641 (9,397) (5.1%) 460,148 371671 (88477) (23.8%)
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,223,137 1,319,666 96,527 7.3% 2,465,976 2,704,990 239,010 8.8%
OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) 639,208 462,319 176,886 38.3% 1,696,109 1,000,643 695,465 69.5%
DEPRECIATION 575,525 552,862 (22,656) (4.1%) 1,151,952 1,125,094 (26,858) (2.4%)
AMORTIZATION - -
NON-OPERATING (INCOME)/EXPENSES
INTEREST EXPENSE 833 833 100.0% 1,667 1667 1000%
INTEREST INCOME (1,384) (735) 649 (88.2%) (2,473) (1.471) 1,003 (68.2%)
NON-OPERATING GRANT FUNDING - -
GAIN/LOSS ON ASSETS - -
OTHER NON-OPERATING - -
(1,384) 98 1,482  15124% (2,473) 196 2,669 1361.9%

NET OPERATING INCOME/LOSS) 65,067 (90,648) 166,713 (171.8%) 546,630 (124,647) 671,276 (538.6%)




79 S <5 Bt < 2
T 5 - - 8 FAUNEE
T, - - 1 0 ONLLIRIWA :
1 - - - 1 S30UN0STY NVWNH
[4 £ o T I AS0T0NHI3L
€ - ORIV MV s ol )
Z [k ™V {N340)
4 z JONVN salLYs zs.uh_w%um |
1% € ISAN0D 4109 | NTI0OMYVA | | aleo el
6€ € ALHOHINY 1H0d mes: CECo
8 L ALRINOSS Saunnvs | d0 dindz il
61 % LHORIV NS acomuy | {N2dO] _
154 2 SONVIMEINIVA — - i NI
R ¥ puag WILSwN Cowmsw b gevnmar | 3NS TYNNAEIL 40 dInb3
WLOL himes i HOBUYH 34NH. | _“Mwﬁ ; | 1N3o¥sdn e S ! anvyiag SWYITHM
—l >t . 1 Ry b= =
== TN e b ) T
M — 4 ) Sl
- | - = 40 dino3
) | oy e, 5 } ; I ; o
S | . pr e INGOVSH0 | : s v
SNOLLISOd T3 TId - SISATYNY J4VLS LNIHENO = | sl SSENORIVE | iNgovsdo _ | ERAL T
! i . | HONONCAIW | e
! IINSMONLIM | 40 dIND2
_ i oﬁaao | wvwoam | Moiswve |
fee = f = U naowesn || dviAomVA | L ==
wowssoIssy | 3 L m | amaovsgp || | WOV | = =
T wwavz | | AU — ] VIISYWHORUVH | | Limvaw Ol 3 uéz_amzs “
! . St kil ! P e . |
i Q10NYY NYW3H03 i | snmod | 7 _ e \| s e _.
SANNOYD | I —onuws | [ eoveo =
[ g . 7= r e = QVITINMY |
2 e S e e EJ_M”_H_& =S blook S amvHIN | _ N et
ey " i L :
VAYOV1 g — o SR8 R = | swisyNY _ : ;
i ik - P ey —— =l ..,
——f N s il MR Wl oy | Y | s_a‘z_:oL
| L INVWEO i 02340 i 104 I
isssyouaved)| LU I S Lo SBONI NNna
L mvegar i e — - - — | F—— =
i | ¥3dNSISUNO T DNWaN0) | == e e
INVINNODOY | 1T | ‘NowaNz |- n3Dwsdoqvy HOLVHISININOY | WRYNVIN | e
i _ ALIND3S - JINVRELNIVIA |
i ol e i_LNvigas | [ Nz il ]| SR
m ., | = S 9304 ATINOD | momeuva
e o) (e et SNOWY 1Y I 1 | HIOYNVHN | == T
LN 1 wasvNve | =L ‘4O173MI0 1404 | oz | ~ | _ _
© 208010340 TamNay | FACIGNINOW INOJUVH g 1O GIOVNYY | oL L
: Il = Amema ity i | YITYHINIDHS
INOWINY 2 [ 9 r—— t SIAJUBNDD ; B
oo | | v , N s
u--mz,«mwmw.m{ﬁ _ i
- = | 33x3vom _J.ln_ztcvﬁzxpt«_
= i V15 ALNd30
g 20 101 LMo | S
b 44 H0 e
wWNNED |
(7 1G Y WHINAD/NOLOFNIO]
A1ndaa :
N8do and JOSNIINITS _ — z m m m : U
oD _
JALNIIE
SNOLLISOd (31 18NS V101 | Nvaug |
o



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Consolidated Statement of Net Position
For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2022

2023 2022
Ending Ending
ASSETS
Cash and Investments $10,796,026 $4,858,653
Accounts Receivable - Net 8,103,678 6,566,311
Inventories 405,044 314,315
Prepaids 204,085 143,925
19,508,832 11,883,204
Restricted Assets
Cash and Investments 341,048 584 304
Current Receivables 62,239 1,460
Loans Receivable - NHFL
Due within 1 Year 113,204 105,249
Due in more than 1 Year 1,040,466 885,878
Total Restricted Assets 1,556,958 1,576,890
Noncurrent Assets
Leases Receivable-Net of Current Portion 197,230,941 169,907,424
Land 7,520,786 7,520,786
Construction-in-Process 11,018,030 4,705,251
Other Capital Assets - Net 77,080,714 83,305,711
Total Noncurrent Assets 292,850,472 265,439,172
TOTAL ASSETS 313,916,262 278,899,265
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
Pension 1,424,984 2,008,286
OPEB 2,279,876 2,193,378
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 2,891,540 2,261,309
Retainage 85,000 2,594,225
Accounts Payable for Capital Assets 572,928 2,813,107
Offset to Accounts Payable for Capital (572,928) (2,813,107)
Unearned Revenues 458,138 460,201
Long-Term Liabilities
Net Pension Liability 4,279,644 6,170,435
Net OPEB Liability 7,378,664 8,041,994
Due within 1 Year 90,924
Due in more than 1 Year 345,817 341,551
15,438,802 19,960,638
Restricted Liabilities
Current Liabilities 22,969
Long-Term Liabilities
Due within 1 Year
Due in more than 1 Year
22,969
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,438,802 19,883,607
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension 1,382,954 360,975
OPEB 1,651,884 2,546,921
Lease Rewenue 198,471,605 172,345,488
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 95,046,603 92,718,641
Restricted For:
Rewlving Loan Fishery Fund 1,252,412 1,244,980
Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance 24,815 (32,316)
Foreign Trade Zone 12,920 9,905
Unrestricted 4,339,127 (6,077,271)
TOTAL NET POSITION 100,675,877 87,863,939




OPERATING REVENUES

FACILITY RENTAL
CARGO AND HANGARS
CONCESSION REVENUE
FEE REVENUE

FUEL SALES

INTEREST
MERCHANDISE

OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
EXPENSES

WAGES AND FRINGE BENEFITS
BUILDING AND FACILITIES
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
UTILITIES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
MARKETING AND PROMOTION
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSE
DEPRECIATION

NET OPERATING INCOME

OPERATING REVENUES

FACILITY RENTAL
CARGO AND HANGARS
CONCESSION REVENUE
FEE REVENUE

FUEL SALES

INTEREST
MERCHANDISE

OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
EXPENSES

WAGES AND FRINGE BENEFITS
BUILDING AND FACILITIES
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
UTILITIES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
MARKETING AND PROMOTION
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSE
DEPRECIATION

NET OPERATING INCOME

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - PORTSMOUTH AIRPORT incl Secunty

For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2022

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

Aug Aug From Monthly % YTD YTD From YTD %
FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance
$94,577 $93,917 $660 0.7% $150,619 $148,049 $2,570 1.7%
$2,594 $2,545 $49 1.9% $5,069 $5,081 ($12) (0.2%)
$3,727 $3,957 ($230) (5.8%) $4,721 $4,832 ($111) (2.3%)
$94,246 $66,483 $27,763 41.8% $179,446 $105,319 $74,127 70.4%
$4,665 $16,767 ($12,102) (72.2%) $170,380 $33,534 $136,846 408.1%
199,809 183,669 16,140 8.8% 510,235 296,815 213,420 71.9%
107,106 103,778 (3.328) (3.2%) 212,797 217,354 4,557 2.1%
68,369 73,437 5,068 6.9% 140,224 148,490 8,266 56%
28,688 31,976 3,288 10.3% 62,278 64,404 2,126 3.3%
31,941 39419 7,478 19.0% 60,564 77,599 17,035 22.0%
2,038 4,917 2,879 58.6% 4,938 9,833 4,895 49.8%
5514 8,542 3,028 35.4% 8,880 17,083 8,203 48.0%
243,656 262,069 18,413 7.0% 489,681 534,763 45,082 8.4%
(43,847) (78,400) 34,553 44.1% 20,554 (237,948) 258,502 108.6%
0 0 0 - 0 0 0 -
381,194 341,473 (39,721) (11.6%) 762,388 702,423 (59,965) (8.5%)
(425,041) (419,873) 5,168 {1.2%) (741,834) (340,371) (198,537) 21.1%

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - SKYHAVEN AIRPORT
For the Two Months Ending August 31,2022
Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

Aug Aug From Monthly % YTD YTD From YTD %
FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance
11,214 10,072 1,142 11.3% 22,973 22,774 199 0.9%
250 (250)  (100.0%) 712 500 212 42.4%
74 (74)  (100.0%) 147 (147) (100.0%)
9,061 8,486 574 6.8% 32,458 16,236 16,222 99.9%
92 (92) (100.0%) 183 (183) (100.0%)
20,275 18,974 1,301 6.9% 56,143 39,840 16,302 40.9%
6,725 3,922 (2,804) (71.5%) 8,851 7,958 (892) (11.2%)
1,810 3,996 2,086 52.2% 4,290 7,993 3,703 46.3%
3,665 4,372 707 16.2% 7,909 8,745 836 9.6%
1,955 1,788 (167) (9.3%) 3,245 3,577 332 9.3%
1,214 385 (829) (215.2%) 1,214 771 (444) (57.6%)
225 292 67 22.8% 450 583 133 22.9%
6,911 4,100 (2,811) (68.6%) 26,665 8,200 (18,465) (225.2%)
22,605 18,855 (3,750) {19.9%) 52,624 37,827 (14,797)  (39.1%)
(2,330) 119 (2,449) (2072.5%) 3,519 2,013 1,508 74.7%
34,736 40,752 6,017 14.8% 69,471 81,505 12,033 14.8%
(37,066) (40,633) 3,568 (8.8%) (65,952) (79,492) 13,538  (17.0%)

7




OPERATING REVENUES

FACILITY RENTAL
CARGO AND HANGARS
CONCESSION REVENUE
FEE REVENUE

FUEL SALES

INTEREST
MERCHANDISE

OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

EXPENSES

WAGES AND FRINGE BENEFITS
BUILDING AND FACILITIES
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
UTILITIES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
MARKETING AND PROMOTION
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSE

DEPRECIATION

NET OPERATING INCOME

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - TRADEPORT OPERATIONS
For the Two Months Ending August 31,2022

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

Aug Aug From Monthly % YTD YTD From YTD %
FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance
$762,766 $761,823 $943 0-1% $1,720,358 $1,714.210 $6,148 0.4%
1,182 8,333 (7,152) (85.8%) 3,894 16,667 (12,772) (76.6%)
763,948 770,156 (6,209) (0.8%) 1,724,252 1,730,877 (6,624) (0.4%)
5,341 17,746 12,405 69.9% 18,000 35,493 17,492 49.3%
7,918 6,821 (1,097) (16.1%) 15,787 13,642 (2,145)  (15.7%)
6,204 6,489 285 4.4% 13,022 12,361 (661)  (5.3%)
192 192 100,0% 383 383 100.0%
10,000 10,000 - 20,000 20,000 -
29,463 41,248 11,785 28.6% 66,809 81,879 15,070 18.4%
734,485 728,908 5576 0.8% 1,657,443 1,648,998 8,446 0.5%
62,577 75,210 12,633 16.8% 125,154 150,420 25266 16.8%
671,908 653,698 18,209 2.8% 1,532,289 1,498,578 33,712 2.2%




OPERATING REVENUES

FACILITY RENTAL
CARGO AND HANGARS
CONCESSION REVENUE
FEE REVENUE

FUEL SALES

INTEREST
MERCHANDISE

OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
EXPENSES

WAGES AND FRINGE BENEFITS

BUILDING AND FACILITIES

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

UTILITIES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

MARKETING AND PROMOTION

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSE
DEPRECIATION

NET OPERATING INCOME

BUSINESS UNIT ANALYSIS
OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES*
*Excluding Depreciation

OPERATING INCOME

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - GOLF COURSE

For the Two Months Ending August 31,2022

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance
Aug Aug From Monthly % YD YTD From YTD %
FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance
61,341 49,280 12,061 24.5% 111,705 104 417 7,288 7.0%
448,838 447,295 1,543 0.3% 932,130 897,021 35,109 3.9%
35,999 40,539 (4,540) (11.2%) 79,664 82,140 (2.476)  (3.0%)
1775 2,333 (558) (23.9%) 4,748 4,667 82 1.7%
547,953 539,447 8,506 1.6% 1,128,247 1,088,245 40,003 3.7%
127,569 121,249 (6,319) (5.2%) 261,619 264,612 2,993 11%
35471 25,883 (9,589) (37.0%) 64,431 51,265 (13,168)  (25.7%)
15,667 21,105 5438 25.8% 39,884 43,210 3,326 7%
13,488 12,126 (1,361) (11.2%) 28,077 21,410 (6,666) (31.1%)
1,693 2,818 1,125 39.9% 7.142 5,636 (1,508) (26.7%)
5,807 3,034 (2,773) (91.4%) 6,364 6,068 (296)  (4.9%)
44375 50,904 6,530 12.8% 90,499 102,605 12,107 11.8%
244,070 237,119 (6,950) (2.9%) 498,016 494,806 (3,209)  (0.6%)
303,883 302,328 1,556 0.5% EsoEs 593,439 36,794 62%
(11) A7) (6) 33.5% (33) (33) 0 0.3%
31,774 31,287 (488) (1.6%) 63,549 62,574 (975)  (1.6%)
272,120 271,058 1,063 0.4% 566,715 530,898 35,819 6.7%
COURSE
PRO SHOP OPERATIONS |FOOD/BEV SIMULATOR TOTAL
79,664 934,787 112,294 1,502 1,128,247
57,276 403,319 29,007 8,414 498,016
22,388 531,468 83,287 (6,912) 630,231




OPERATING REVENUES

FACILITY RENTAL
CARGO AND HANGARS
CONCESSION REVENUE
FEE REVENUE

FUEL SALES

INTEREST
MERCHANDISE

OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

EXPENSES

WAGES AND FRINGE BENEFITS

BUILDING AND FACILITIES

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

UTILITIES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

MARKETING AND PROMOTION

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSE
DEPRECIATION

NET OPERATING INCOME

BUSINESS UNIT ANALYSIS

OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES*
*Excluding Depreciation

OPERATING INCOME

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - DIVISION OF PORTS AND HARBORS-UNRESTRICTED

For the Two Months Ending August 31,2022

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance
Aug Aug From Monthly % YTD YTD From YTD %
FY 2023 Fy 2023 Budget Variance FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance
$31,741 $30,581 $1,161 3.8% $62,773 $62,314 $459 07%
g 3,000 3,000 -
92,308 71,922 20,386 28.3% 177,960 129,469 48,491 37.5%
176,161 141,926 34,236 241% 413,260 283,372 129,888 458%
18,008 12,653 5,355 42.3% 53,799 44383 9,416 21.2%
318,218 257,082 61,137 23.8% 710,792 522,538 188,254 36.0%
147,084 137,474 (9,610) (7.0%) 272,252 287,738 15,485 54%
16,074 18,896 2,822 14.9% 26,483 37,793 11,310 29.9%
12,529 11,690 (839) (7.2%) 22,825 21,991 (834)  (3.8%)
10,332 12,519 2,187 175% 17,752 23,236 5484 23.6%
1,921 1,270 (651) (51.3%) 2,287 2,539 252 9.9%
268 268 100.0% 412 535 124 23.1%
133,753 120,637 (13,116) {10.9%) 322,984 240,866 (82,118} (34.1%)
321,693 302,754 (18,940) (6.3%) 664,995 614,698 (50,297) (8.2%)
(3,475) (45,672) 42,198 (92.4%) 45,797 (92,160) 137,957 (149.7%)
(228) (183) 45 (24.6%) (428) (367) 61  (16.6%)
51,658 51,871 212 0.4% 103,316 103,620 303 0.3%
(54,905) {97,360) 42,455 (43.6%) (57,091) (195,413) 138,321  (70.8%)
RYE HAMPTON (PORTS. MARKET |HARBOR
HARBOR |HARBOR FISHPIER [ST. MGMT ADMIN |TOTAL
143,009 226,812 159,897 76,328 104,746 0 710,792
121,285 194,671 147,789 69,203 62,634 69413 664,995
21,724 32,141 12,108 7125 42112 (69,413) 45797

10




OPERATING REVENUES

FACILITY RENTAL
CARGO AND HANGARS
CONCESSION REVENUE
FEE REVENUE

FUEL SALES

INTEREST
MERCHANDISE

OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

EXPENSES

WAGES AND FRINGE BENEFITS

BUILDING AND FACILITIES

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

UTILITIES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

MARKETING AND PROMOTION
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSE

DEPRECIATION

NET OPERATING INCOME

OPERATING REVENUES

FACILITY RENTAL
CARGO AND HANGARS
CONCESSION REVENUE
FEE REVENUE

FUEL SALES

INTEREST
MERCHANDISE

OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

EXPENSES

WAGES AND FRINGE BENEFITS

BUILDING AND FACILITIES

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

UTILITIES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

MARKETING AND PROMOTION
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSE

DEPRECIATION

NET OPERATING INCOME

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - FOREIGN TRADE ZONE

For the Two Months Ending August 31,2022

Actual Budget Varfance Actual Budget Variance
Aug Aug From Monthly % YTD YTD From YTD %

FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance
g $2,000 $2,000 =
- 2,000 2,000 -
104 104 100.0% 208 208 100.0%
708 708 100.0% 1,417 1417 100.0%
812 813 100.0% 1,625 1,625 100.0%
(812) 813 (100.0%) 2,000 375 1625 433.3%
0 0 0 (36.4%) (1) (1) 0 (27.3%)
0 (812) 813 (100.1%) 2,001 376 1,625 432.6%

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - HARBOR DREDGING
For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2022
Actual Budget Varlance Actual Budget Variance
Aug Aug From Monthly % YTD YTD From YTD %

FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance
8,841 9,250 (409) (4.4%) 22,855 18,500 4,355 23.5%
500 750 (250) (33.3%) 1,650 1,500 150 10.0%
9,341 10,000 {659) (6.6%) 24,505 20,000 4,505 22.5%
5917 5917 100.0% 11,833 11,833 100.0%
2,000 2,000 100.0% (1) 4,000 4,001 100.0%
7,917 7,917 100.0% {1) 15,833 15,834 100.0%
9,341 2,083 7,258 348.4% 24,506 4,167 20,339 488.1%
(30) (35) (5) 13.2% (60) (70) (10) 13.7%
6,078 5,833 (244) (4.2%) 12,156 11,667 (489) (4.2%)
3,293 (3,715) 7,009 (188.7%) 12,410 (7,430) 19,840 (267.0%)

11




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - REVOLVING LOAN FUND

For the Two Months Ending August 31,2022

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance
Aug Aug From Monthly % YTD YTD From YTD %
FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance FY 2023 FY 2023 Budget Variance
OPERATING REVENUES
FACILITY RENTAL - -
CARGO AND HANGARS - -
CONCESSION REVENUE - -
FEE REVENUE - -
FUEL SALES - -
INTEREST 2,800 2,583 217 84% 5911 5,167 745 14.4%
MERCHANDISE - -
OTHER REVENUE 75 (75)  (100.0%) 150 (150) (100.0%)
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 2,800 2,658 142 5.3% 5,911 5,317 595 11.2%
EXPENSES
WAGES AND FRINGE BENEFITS - R
BUILDING AND FACILITIES - -
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 46 46 100.0% 92 92  100.0%
UTILITIES - -
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 845 1,000 155 15 5% 2,340 2,000 (340)  (17.0%)
MARKETING AND PROMOTION - -
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES - -
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 845 1,046 201 19.2% 2,340 2,092 (248)  (11.9%)
OPERATING INCOME 1,955 1,612 343 21.3% 3,571 3,225 347 10.7%
NON-OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSE (8) 8 - (15) 15 -
DEPRECIATION - -
NET OPERATING INCOME 1,963 1,612 351 21.8% 3,586 3,225 361 11.2%
REVOLVING LOAN FUND ($ 000's) BALANCE AT | BALANCEAT
08-31-2022 06-30-2022
CASH BALANCES
GENERAL FUNDS 97 75
SEQUESTERED FUNDS - -
97 s
LOANS OUTSTANDING (21)
CURRENT 113 113
LONG TERM 1,040 1,059
1,153 1,172
TOTAL CAPITAL BASE 1,250 1,247
CAPTIAL UTILIZATION RATE -% * 92.2% 94.0%

*EXCLUDES SEQUESTERED FUNDS

12



SUMMARY OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES

AS OF AUGUST 31, 2022
($000’s).
BUSINESS UNIT TOTAL GRANT EXPENDED TO PDA RECEIVED TO BALANCE AMOUNT
e PROJECT AWARD DATE SHARE DATE DUEPDA SUBMITTED
PORTSMOUTH AIRPORT 28,119 26,200 25,207 (1,299) 22,177 1,725 45
SKYHAVEN AIRPORT 141 141 145 (26) 78 52 52
DIVISION OF PORTS AND HARBORS 13,253 0 9,679 (39) 9,041 571 571
41,513 26,341 35,031 (1.364) 31,296 2,348 668
SUMMARY OF CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROCESS
AS OF AUGUST 31, 2022
($000's)
PROJECT NAME ol K e
PORTSMOUTH AIRPORT
TERMINAL EXPANSION (NON-GRANT) 581 ) - (1) 580
RUNWAY 16-34 RECONSTRUCTION (AIP 64) (26) 5 3 5 (21)
TERMINAL BUILDING EXPANSION (AIP 66) 3 > = = 3
TERMINAL BUILDING EXPANSION (AIP 62) 25 9 = © 25
ALPHA SOUTH HOLD BAY (AIP 67) 6 ° o = 6
SNOW REMOVAL EQUIPMENT (AIP 69) 21 5 - o 21
LOWERY LANE (AIP 70) 312 = = = 312
PSM ACCESS CONTROL BOARD 39 5 o 5 44
GATE ACCESS CONTROL 44 0 = = 44
CORPORATE DRIVE DRAINAGE 84 6 3 6 90
TAXIWAY A REPAIRS 7 10 = 10 17
SNOW REMOVAL EQUIPMENT (AIP 74) 10 - - - 10
PSM MOBILE RADIO PURCHASE 26 0 (26) (26) =
1,132 25 (26) 1) 1,131
SKYHAVEN AIRPORT
TERMINAL APRON DESIGN (SBG 15-09) 145 0 - 0 145
TERMINAL UPGRADES 17 1 = 1 18
162 1 2 i 163
MAINTENANCE
CRACK SEALING MACHINE = 91 (91) 0 0
= 91 (91) S o
DIVISION OF PORTS AND HARBORS (DPH)
FUNCTIONAL REPLACEMENT- BARGE DOCK 1,801 65 = 65 1,866
PFP BULKHEAD REPAIR AND CONSTRUCTION 3,073 = o = 3,073
MAIN PIER (BUILD GRANT) 3,754 488 S 488 4,242
MARKET ST SITE LIGHTING IMPROVEMENTS 157 = = = 157
HAMPTON DOCK REPLACEMENT (ARPA) 342 = = = 342
RYE WATER LINE INSTALL 7 = 2 = 7
RYE FUEL LINE INSTALL 37 = o o 37
9,171 553 o 553 9,724
TOTAL 10,465 670 117 553 11,018

13



TVNOILYVNYILNL

220Z ‘0Z ¥390100 )JLA
ONILIIW SYOLDIUIA 40 auvod

€202 ‘0€ ANNC
DNIAN3 dOoIdid HLNOW 3ININ
JHL J04 SNOILDACOUd MO1d HSYD




T86'9 9166 IVLOL

vT vI EINRICE
£96'9 2066 QaL01Y1SIUNN
TZ0Z-0£-90 T20Z-0£-60
1v IDONVIVe 1V 3ONVIVE S3IDNVIVA ANN4 TVLOL
183Q dNvg —8—
HSVYD QI LIRYLSTHUNN e imemnms
NNC AV ddv UV a3d NVC o= AON 150
TE D
19340 g3.103c0xd _
J— -t o - - -l - P . NS —— - - OOO~N
. - - — - -+ 000'%
EE——— = 000'9
9LE'9$ HSVD

agadcoHay,

SAONVIVE 1934 ANV HSVD @3103C0dd

"SLNIWIHINOTY TVLIdVD DNDRIOM YO ANV STANLIANTdXI
VLIV 31V 134 INVIS-NON d3103(0dd FONVNI4 OL MNVE
LNIAIAOYd AHL HIIM SATLTIDVL 11034 S, L1 3711110 OL
Q33N 3H1 J1VdIDIINY LON S30d ¥ad IHL "JIWIL SIHL 1V

NOISSNOSIA

(5,000 $)

9/€9
(975°€)

61961
00T
STZ'T
0992

re'6

206'6
INNOWY

dONVIVd ANNd DNISOTD

MOTd HSVD 13N

13N -(d0D) 334 IDIAYIS TVAIDINAW
(b# 39¥d 335) INVHO -STUNLIGNIdXT TVLIdVD

(8#-5# S39Vd 335) INVUD-NON -STUNLIANIdXT VLIdVD
SISNIdX3 ONLLVYIAO

SANNd 40 s3asn

SINNIATY 13N ANV YYONYH LHOdUIV NIAVHANS
NIV ANV $334 IOVMOT 13N ‘SISVIT ~LH0dUIV WSd
(INVE LNIATAOU) L1aFUD 4O INIT ONIATOAIY
S3INNIATY NOISSIONOD ANV 334 3SAN0D 4109

(d0D) 334 FDINYAS VAIINNKW

SINYNIL 140d3aviL

(6# 39¥d 335) STAVMY LINVID

SANNd 40 $S32UYNOS
JONV1VE ANNd ONIN3IJO

(s.000 $)

€202 ‘0€ INNC OL TZO0T ‘T ¥390100
(s¥0g¥vH anv s140d 40 Nozsinza on1anox3) MITAUIAO AAVININNS MO1d HSYD

ALTYOHLNY LNIWdOTIAIA ASVId



9.9 9LE£'9 6179 S0C'9 8ST'L (472404 L687L Tr0'6 TLP'6 TE€9°6 JONVIVE ANNd ONISOTO

(9zs'e) /st b1 (€s6) (¥82) (SSb) (sb1'T)  (620) (091) (122) MOT4 HSYD 1IN
61961 ¥09'T  SE9T 68Z'C  T89T  T96T  88SE 65T 6Z8'C = TEET
00b'T - - - E = 00b'T = - - 334 IDIAUIS TVAIDINNW
bre's bOT'T W't SHO'T 1907 b20'T 686 €01 000'T pH0'T SISNIdX3 ONLLYY¥IJO
099, 00§ 685 PIZ'T 088 £06 0Tt 818 6+8 £€8 I <4
szt - - - ov o€ o o€ 0£0'T  §§ e
SaNnd 90 3Isn
6091  T9ZT  6¥W9T 9087  ZeeT 90571 Wh'T 0STT  ®IZ¢C T99°T

L = = o = - - - = = 13N -SNIONVNIH TYNY31X3

6ST 6T 6T 0z YA 97 9T 9T VA S 6T 14041V NIAVHANS
21 4 99 89 TL 8S 9¢€ 6g 65 9% ST $334 3OVMOTY WSd
S9¢ SS €s 40} Z8 18 9¢ 1€ €€ [44 ONDIIVd YO AVd WSd
14314 S6 29 154 SHT [44 4% 44 9z LE (WSd) -LHOdHIV HLNOWSL1A0d
vLL'T c£ob %A 4 VA 74 88 1<% £g 9% 8¢1 (444 35¥N0D 410D
6£0'C GET SET (42 SET GET (547 GET GET 47 334 3DIAY3S VIDINNW
bL8'( 8(8 698 088 ¢S8 {68 SE6 ¥8 68 €e8 SINVNIL L¥Od3avil
064'C 0cC 0¢ 0C 0¢ 0ce 0¢6 = 0sH'T oy (6# 39vd 335) SAYYMY LNVID
SanNnd 40 SIDUNOS
066 6TC9 S0C9 89T°Z ¥4 Z 24 268"L ro’6 TZv'6 T€E9'6 <066 JONVIVE ANNd ONINIdO

IVIOL NNC AVH dv UV FEE) NVT 334 AON 150
a0 (Sann-4 @3LOTYLSTHNN)

(SYOS4VH ANV S1¥0d 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIANTIX3) BOI— m —-—m<u mo n—-zmzml—..<n—-m
£ ALTYOHLNY LN3IWdOT3A3Q 3ASVid



IVAOUddY QAUVOd ONIANId *x
310N

S103r0Ud

st ) ) Lig o< 0 o 0¢0T 5§ INIWISUNTWITY INVHD TVLOL
IJOdUIV NIAVHAIS

S1CT - - ot 0€ 0% 0€ 0€0'T qq
- - - - - - 3 - (£ dIV) AINFWAINDIT TVAOWIY MONS
0001 e = = - = 000’1 - (69 dI¥) LNAWAINDI IVAOWIY MONS
091 E ob 0g o€ o€ 0€ = AV WNLIHOFYY-QYYATINOS 3SVad
b - 2 = z 4 E = (£9 dIV) AVE 10H HLNOS V ML
ST L = - - - E ST (+9 dIV) NOLLDNYLSNODIY E-9T AVMNNY
0C - _ } . B _ 0z (W0'Z$ -99 dIV) NOLLOMYLSNOD
ANV NOISIA NOISNVdX3 TYNIWYIL
Y4 - = . ; . _ 0z (W9'T$ -79 dIV) NOLIDONMYLSNOD
ANV NOIS3A NOISNVdX3 TYNIWYIL
LNOdUIV HLNOWS1LJ0d
SID3C0dd INTFWISUYNIWITY LINVUD

V101 AV ddv UV a3d NVL 53aa NON D0
(5,000 $)
(SYOGYVH ANV SL1¥0d 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIANTOXI) mmm :-..Ha z m nxm |—<..—-HQ<U
4

ALTYOHLINVY LNIWdO13dA3A ISVId



TWAOUddY QUVOg DNIANId *x
310N

00T - = - - - 0s 0S - ++SINIWIAOUAIWI ISUINOD
SE - - - - - 0z ST - - ++WALSAS IONVTIIIAUNS O3AIA
SS - - ) - - - - o€ Y4 3SNOHENTD LNTWIDVTdTY INIT YTLVM
vET - 68 r - Sb - - - - INTWAINDI 3SYNOD
354N00 4109
|
TET = - - - 9t or - ov ST
9z - - b - 9 - - - - FIDIHAA DIYLDTTI NIWAY
0€ - - ) - - 0€ - - - ++SIAVAOIN ILISTIM
o€ - - ) - o1 01 - - 01 s+ SINFWIDNVHNI ADOTONHDIL
S - - - - - - - - g +x SHSODI TIO¥AVd XIHOAVd
o - - ) - - - - o - +* SIAVION FUIVMLIOS 140S0¥DIW

NOILVYISININGY/ADO TONHDIL

VIOL NAE AVA  9av TV CEE] NVE 53a AON 150
(s,000 $) :(@3INNILNOD)

(SYOg¥VYH ANV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIANTIX3)

STANLIANIdX3 TVILIdVO ALTYOHLNY LNIWJOT3A3A 3SVid



IVACUddY QAVOd ONIONId *x
‘410N

SCT - - - - = S 17 L 89

Sz - . 2 - = e 5z - - « ONIGTING TYNINYAL 40083
13 - - - - - - - - T INIWHOV.LLY HIMOW ONIHIE MOL
z - - - . - - - L - +SUYONVH-L - ONLLHOIT HOIMALNI
1€ - - . y = 2 - - 1€ IN3W30VdTY LHOIT a3
o1 - - . - . . - - 01 ¥3avOT aNT LNO¥4- STuIL
9T s - - - - - - - 91 9a79 TYNINYIL-MHOM NOILYAONTY
S - - : : = S - - - «» QYO LIG3H0 WILSAS 13N
0z - - - § - 2 0z - - ~INIWIOVTd3Y ¥OOa TS

LAOdAUIV NIAVHANS

81C'S 00s 00s S8T'T 00s 00S 00s 0ze 89S Sv9
0SZ = = 0sz - - - - - - *xNOILVYOOT13d 3dId QY INITHOIL
000'€ 00s 00s 00s 00s 008 00s = - e #x DNYLSNOD-VIUY STVATHUY TVYNIWYIL
00Tt - = - - - E 00¢ 00s 00s NDISIA-VIUY STVALYEY TYNIWYIL
- - - - - - - - - - SUIVdIY V AVMIXVL
0T - - - - - - - - 0t sk IAVYDdN YOLVIINID
G€ = = Ge - = = - - - s NOLLDMYLSNOD ION3H
o€ - - - - - - 0z - o1 s+ IAVIDAN OIAVY JTIEOW
- - - - - - - e = = sk IOVNDIS Q1IIIAIV
€6T - - - - - - - 89 SCT NOISNVdX3 TYNIWY3L
1AO0dAIV HLNOWSLAO0d
‘(@nNunod) S1D3rodd
ININWIASUNDWIIY LNVAD-NON

Av101 NNC AV ddv VA a3d NVLC 33d AON I>o

:(QINNILNOD)

(5000 $) (S4094VH ANV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIQ FHL ONIANTIXT) STANLIANIIXI TVLIAYD
ALTYOHLNY LNINWdOT3AAA ASVAd



IVAOUddY GUVOd ONIANI +x

(74 = = < = - = ST =
ST = = - = = = S¢ = s TOYLNOD SSIDOV H0Od
1AOdUIV NIAVHIIS
ALTINO3S
59 ' - : 00T 097 — 88t 0% 74
0LZ
= G = 007 0LT = = = sk IAVION WILSAS ALTIND3S
68 i = - = = €L = 9T 1NIWIDVIdTY VIAIW B YIAVTY I9ave
STT
< = = = = STT - - NOLLONAOYd 0IAIA ONINIVIL
[4 ¢ - 5 = = = = = 4" SWILSAS WYY SSTANA
06 = - - - 06 = = = SNOLLYLSYYOM DNIDAVE I0V1dId
- = - - - - - - - JOYLNOD SS3JIV A00d
0s = = = = = = 0S = SALVYD ALT¥ND3S ALDD
LAO0dUIV HLNOWS1LJOd
ALTINO3AS
(a@nnned) SLOIC0dd
INIWISUNIWITY INVED-NON
Iviol NAC AV ddv VR a3 NVL 53a AON D0
*(@INNILNOD)
(s.000 $)

(SNOS¥VH ANV S1¥0d 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIAN1IX3) mmm :-—-Hn z m mxm I—<-—-H&<U
ALTIOHLNY LN3IWdO13A3A 3SVid



AYAQUddY QUVOd ONIONAd
‘310N

099°L 00s 689 VIL'T 08s £06 0021 81S 618 €08 S10310dd LNFWIASYNGNITY
LNVHU5D-NON 1ViOL

16S - - 68¢ ST T8 0¢ - ¥s [44
0sT = - 051 - i - - - . YOV HSYM dddMS
621 - - 621 - - = - - - dIMOW
GNIHIg MOL/MIOLOVYL T3S3IA ar
(44 - - - - - - - - [44 YIMOW NYNL 0Y3Z
0g u - - b - 0g - - - s 1417 HOIH i —
0s - - 05 - - - - - - o TINLONYLSYVYINI ONIGTING
ST - - - ST - - - - - +% INIHOVIW LNIVd
S6T - - 09 = 18 - = vSs - INFWIOVIdTY 13374 TDIHIA
FONVNIINIVA
029 = - oF S9 24 SPE - (4 =
0S¥ d = - - sc1 sce - - - JOVNIVYA -JARNA TLVHOJI0D
09 - - 0z 0z o1 o1 - - - ++IAY NOLLVIAY ONV Q¥ NOLAVYD
09 - - 0T 0z o1 o1 - - - s+ WIIALNI
3SUNOD 410D ANV 0¥ NOLIVAD
0s - - - §¢ - - - T4 - SIAVIDIN YILVMWIOLS
I¥0d3avul
(Q3NNIINOD) SIDACONUd
INTWISTNGWIZY INVED-NON
IVIOL NNC AV Udv AV [EE] NVC 53a AON 1950
(d3INNILNOD)
(5000 $)

(540g¥VH ANV SL¥O0d 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIANTIXT) mmm :-—-HQ z m&xm I—<|—|H&<U
ALTJdOHLNY LNIWdO1TdA3A ASVad



0627 (1Y4 0¢ 0¢ (174 (1143 0Z6 = OEP’'T OF IvioL

or = - z = : = c = oY (6-98S) NOISIA NOYdV TYNIWIIL

LAOJUIV NIAVHAIS

]

(113 = 3 & = ; = = 0g = (02 dIV) ONIAVd ANV AYIMOT]

006 = = = = = 006 = = S (69 dIV) LNIWJINOI TYAOWIY MONS

(1744 0¢ 0¢ 0¢ 0z 0c 0¢ = = = IAV WNLIYOFAY -QAVAITNOE 3SV3d

06 2 F e 3 = = 3 06 = (£9 d1v) AVE 1OH HLNOS V ML

00€ = = S = 00€ e 2 = - AdVYNO TYNOLLYN dIV -AVMNNY

CE6 = = S - = - = €6 = (9 dIv)

NOLLOMYLSNODTY HE-9T AVMNNY

I1Z 2 2 - - - » 0 112 2 (W0'Z$-99 dIV) NOLLONYLSNOD

ANV NOIS3A NOISNVAX3 TYNIWYIL

9T - L - - - , . /91 E (W9'T$-9 dIV) NOLLONYLSNOD

ANV NOISIA NOISNVAX3 TYNIWYIL

TJ0ddIvV HINOWS1Y0d

IVIOL NNL AVIA dv JVW CEE] NVC Jda AON 500

(s,000 $)

(SYOGYVH ANV S1¥0d 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIAN1OX3) mnm<;< |—-z<mu n—un Hmumm
ALTYOHLNY LNINWdO13A3A 3SVvid



23a AON 120 43S oSNy anc AV udv a34 NVC
|
%98'Z - 7 -
. S 33INVYVNO 3LVLS
m JHL AYYVD LON $30a
_ ¥IHLO
e Om..v
|
I WNIWINIW ON NMOaMVYda
o oos 2 40 3ZIS WNWINIW
| =5
%ST'S el ogs SLNIOd SISVE
0SZ + (JISSV1D)
g1Hd HLNOW 3NO 31vY LSTUILNI
"SA3aN
[ 2OEISTISHENEa0d V.LIdVD ONINIOM
dN-YY¥VW + 31vH LSTIILINI (OISSV1D) 91Hd HINOW INO IHL ONIGNIUL OGNV SINTWIAOUDINI
TV.LIdVD ANN4 OL asodund
72021621 a1va wyil
%98°C %E9°C JOVHIAY
Q3LHOIEM
= = 319VIIVAY
000°ST ATLNIHYUND INNOWY
(oo™} MNVE
J1EVIAVA teoz-1eer - - AN3QIAO¥Yd THL ALITIOVA
e e o= == 000'ST 11a3AD 40 INNOWY
% 31vY Jiva TTOC-0E-90  TTOC-0¢-60 SISAIVNY 1a3a
1SIUIINI  ALTINLYW v v ONIGNVLSLNO
JONVIVE 30NVIVE 3NVE (007¥) 11a3¥D
1N3IAIAOYUd FHL 40 ¥31137 ONIATOAY
(5,000 $)

SISATVNYVY 193d SNIANVLS1NO ANV S3ILITIDV4 11Id3dd
ALTYOHLNY LN3IWdO13A3A ASVid

ot



S9¢€ (44

1T €1 INOZ 3aVYL NOITYO4
S/ Y4 ANN4 NYOT ONIATOATY
64T £€T ONIDA3YA JOFUVH
ISAONN4 @31DIY1SIY
09T 09T SANN4 d3LvNOIS3a
0TS‘T STL'T SANN4 QI1DTIISTUNN
ZZI0E/90 ZZ0C/05760
1V TINVIVE 1Y DN SIDNVIVE ANNL TVLOL
NNC AVH YdY Ui 834 NVl J3a AON 150

it i = e 5 — ]

i
i i 000'T

S # 00S°T

— - — e rr—— 000°2

g

T BRI S HSYD
.EENMZD

1
———— e L 0052

SIDONVIVE HSVD AI1DTHISIINN A3 1D03C0Ad

"ALTIEVIT WY3L ONOT ‘GINIWY3L3A 38 OL L3A SYH ‘(NISYE
ONINYNL ¥IATY YNOVLVYOSId) ¥-N4-5Z 8H HLIM Q3LVDO
31VY 1STYILNI ANV QORI3d NOLLYZILYOWY NVO1 252

"JWILYFAO FIA0TdINT

40 ._._Mm_o_z?.._.zs QG3NNLLNOD (¥ ANV NOILL WNSNOD

13N (€ "SWIVIO NOLLYSN3dIWOD SHINYOoM (Z ‘'Sannd
JONVNILNIVIN ¥3Id ONV DNIOAIUA HOgdVH 40 35N ANV
1SVO3404 RANLIANIAXI TV.LIdVD 40 AOVYNDDV (T IANTONI
SNOLLO3(0Yd FUNLNd QUVYMOL SILLIALLISNIS LINTHHND

NOISSNOSIa

(5,000 $)

8T

[0}

6¢

S
5174
TS€
8TH

STLT

INNOWY

JONVIVE ANNd DNISOT1D

MOTd HSVD 13N

Y3HLO ANV SFUNLIANIdX3 TVLIdVD
S3ASNIdX3 ONLLVYIdO
INIWIHNOO0UC 13N

S1I43N38 ANV SADIAYIS TINNOSHId

SANN4 40 s3Isn

S334 ONDIMVd

S334 ONTJOOW

JOVLIVHM / SNOLLVYLSIOFY

S37S 1and

SNOISS3ONOD ANV STVINIY ALITIOVH

SANMNd 4O SADUNOS

FONVIVE ANNd DNIN3IdO

(s.000 $)

(5,000 $)

€20¢ ‘0€ INNC OL TZOT ‘T ¥380LD0

(sannd azioriissy snran1oxs) MITAYIAO AUVIWWNS MOTd HSYD

IT

SUYOGAVYH ANV S1L30d 40 NOISIAIA



(48

SvL'T 8vZT TZ.'T 61T 891 Zev't  TivT  evb'T  ZPST  809'T FONVIVE ANNd DNISO1D
£C L2 4 06 €T 98 (£€) (66) (19) (1m) MOTd HSVD 13N
666'T Z0% 75¢ (354 90¢ beT 08/7 vEC YA T
00T - - 0S - - - 0s E - UIHLO ANV STANLIANIAXT TVLIdVD
ST 4 4 T T T T T T ) S3DIAYIS TYNOISSII0Ud
L1 X4 (814 6T 8¢ (43 T¢ 6T 6T 61 6T SATLIIOVL ANV SONIATING
<6 [ 0t 0] 8 (0]8 01 0T ot 07 0T JALLVYISINIWGY ANV TVIINIO
61T €1 €1 ST ST 14 b1 4} 4! €1 SILLILLN
18¢ 06 59 |14 b1 1 ! 81 81 1€ INIWTIND0YUd 13N
LST'T Wi %41 74" bET 61T 44! 174! 911 bET S1143N3g ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSHId
SANNn4 40 ISn
TOT  PEE ¥5C (353 ZEE 07¢ 32 GET STt 56
6vL LST szT 18 18 6 88 (44 0S 3 J9V4UYHM / SNOLLVYLSIOTY
6€ 4 9 S - - - - - S S33d ONDIYvd
S9t - . S9T S/T 14! - - - - 5334 DNIIOOW
1S€E 43! 18 9z LT b1 8T [44 [44 6 S3TvS 1and
81V 474 [44 29 9 6¢ LS v %4 8b SNOISSIONOD ANV STV.LINIY ALTTIOVA
SaNNd 40 S30UN0S
ST 1<t 61T 89T Zev'T TIvT  6bv'T  Z¥ST  809T  SCZT FONVIVE ANNd DNINIO
Iviol NnC AVIA Udv VN g3d NVLC 33a AON 50
(50009 (SANNd @LOINLSIHNN)

MOT4d HSVD 40 LNIW31V1S

SUYOUVH ANV S1¥0d 40 NOISIAIA



€11

(oz1)

€01

(z+)

(ot)

(1] ¢4

001

4

0s

18

EET

V1Ol

g3d NVE J3d

-4
«

e

AON

JONVIVE ANNd ONISOT1O

MOT4d HSVD 13N

(008D) 3IHIL0 TV

SIDIAYIAS TVNOISSIHOUd

SALIILN

JALLVILSINIWAY ANV TVA3IN3D

SALITTIOV4 ANV SONIQTING

S1I43N38 ANV SIDIAY3S TINNOSYHId
SaNNnd 30 3sn

ONIANNd INVED

S334 39YMO14 13nd

SNOLLYY1SIOFA

5334 39VYSN ¥3Id
SANN4 40 S3aoUYNO0S

JONVIVE ANNd SNIN3IdO

(5,000 $)

(Sann4 @aLory.1S3y)
ANNd DNIDAIAA JYOFAUVYH -MO14d HSYD 40 LNINWILVYILS
SAUOGUVYH ANV S1LH0d 40 NOISIAIA



0s

(92)

9¢€

(91)

6¢

17

8T

(8¢)

9S

(1%)

L8

1T

SPT

TT

0€T

TE

0€

1S

0s

€5

0§

6TT

LT

6

St

el

el

49

1

9L

V101

FDNVIVE ANNd ONISOTO

MOTd HSVD 13N

YIHLO 1V

S3ADIAYIS TYNOISSIH0Ud

S3LLIILLN

JALLVYLSINIWNGY ANV TVY3NTD
S3LLITIOVH ANV SONIQTING
S1T4IN3E ANV SIDIAYAS TINNOSYHId
d3153(0dd SNVO1 M3N

SANNnd 40 3sn

JDONVIVE ANN4 -3WODNI LSAAFINI
SNVOT-IWOINI 1SFUILINI

SINIFWAVAIY NVO

SANNd 40 S3ad¥NO0S

JONVIVE dNNd ONIN3IAO

(s,000 $)

(sannd @aLoIy1ST¥)
ANNd NVYO1 SNIATOATY -MO14d HSVYD 40 LNINW3ALVILS

SHOAUVYH ANV SL140d 40 NOISIAIA



91 91 9T [} 8T 8T 8T 9T Tt (4 FONVYIVE ANNd DNISOT1D

€ = = (@ = = 14 [ () O MOTd HSVD 13N

Z - - 4 E - € - T T

12 = - T - - 14 - T - YIAHLO TIV

- - - - - - - - - - SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIHOUd

- - - - - - - - - - SALLILLN

€ - - T - - T - - T IALLVYLSINIWGY ANV TVHINTD

- - - - - - - - - - SALLTIIOV4 ANV SONIATING

- - - - - - - - - - SLT43NTd ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSHId

SANN3 40 ISN

o1 : : - - - S S : .

- - - - - - - - - - YIAHLO TV

oT - - - - - S S - - STVANIY ALTTIDVA
SaNNd 30 SIDUNOS

€T [} 3 9T 8T 8T 8T 9T TT (4 €T JONVIVE ANNd DNIN3dO

IVIOL NAC AV Udv UV g3d NVE 33a AON D0
(50009 (Sannd aiLory.1Ls3¥)

ST

ANN4 INOZ 3aVIL NDIFUO4 -MO1d HSVD 40 LNIWILVLS
SUOMAVH ANV S130d 40 NOISIAIQ



D) BerryDunn

BerryDunn has been engaged to perform the annual audits of the financial statements and Federal Uniform Guidance
(Federal funds) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022

Annual Audit Summary

Roles and Responsibilities
PDA Management

v' The preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements

v The preparation of the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) on pages 6-18 of the financial statements
v" Design and maintain an appropriate level of internal controls

v" Provide fair and complete data and information to the auditors including a written attestation

BerryDunn

¥ To express and opinion on PDA's financial statements

v' To design an audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement
o Risk-based audit approach to design our audit procedures
o Does not provide absolute assurance — procedures are performed on a test basis

v' To gain an understanding of system internal controls, but not to express an opinion

v" To work with management to complete the audit, but engaged by and work for the audit committee

v" To express an opinion on PDA’s compliance under Federal Uniform Guidance

The Audit Committee

v Engage the auditors as well as review and accept the financial statements and reports

Impact of GASB 87, Leases
Statement Net Position

2021
2021 Previously $ Increase % Increase
Restated Issued (Dacrease) (Decreass)
in Thousands
Current Assets* s 19,300 $ 14917 § 4,383 29.4%
Restricted Assets 157 15T - 0.0%
Non-Current Assets™ 7 98.}% 169.907 176.3%
Total Assets 128 1128 174. 154 5%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,202 4202 - 0.0%
Current Liabilities 14,147 14,147 - 0.0%
Moncurent Liabilities 14.649 14 649 - 0.0%
Total Liabilities ; ; - 0.0%
Deferred Inflows of Resources 175.254 2,908 172,348 5926.6%
Net Investment in Capital Assets 92.492 92 492 - 0.0%
Restricted Net Position 1,308 1.308 - 0.0%
Unrestricted Net Position .520 A64) 1.944 -23.0%
Total Net Position 3 $ S 1944 23%
*fncludes Leases Receivable
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
2021
2021 Previously  $Increase % Increase
Restated Issued (Decrease)  (Decrease)
in Thousands

Total Operating Revenues H 13851 § 17150 $ (3.299)  -19.24%

Total Operating Expenses 24.429 24.429 - 0.00%

Total N ing Income {Exp ] 12.832 7.589 5.243 69.09%

Contributed Capital 17,163 17,163 - 0.00%

Increase in Net Position 19.417 17473 1.944 11.13%

et Position at Beginning of Year 67.864 67,864 - 0.00%

Net Position at End of Year H 87.281 § 85337 § 1.944 2.28%




b' BerryDunn

Financial Statement Highlights
Statement of Net Position

2021 $ Increase % Increase
2022 Restated {Decrease) (Decrease)
In Thousands
Current Assets” ] 193112 & 19.300 § 13 01%
Restricted Assets 1463 15671 (6l 0.5%
Mon-Current Assets® 293332 266,257 27.075 10.2%
Total Agseats 314.208 287128 27.080 9.4%
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 3,705 4.202 {497) -11.8%
Current Liabilities 5148 14.147 8.999) 63.6%
Nencurrent Liabilities 12.001 14.649 (2.648) -18.1%
Total Liabilities 17.149 28796 {11,647 -40 4%
Deferred Inflows of Resources 201506 176.254 26.252 15.0%
Ilet Investment in Capital Assets 93872 92 492 1.381 1.6%
Restricted Met Position 1.275 1.308 (33) 25%
Unrestncted MNet Fosition 4.110 (6 520) 10.630 -163.0%
Tatal Met Position § 99.258 § 87280 & 11978 13 7%
*Includes Leases Receivable
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
2021 $ Increase % Increase
2022 Restated (Decrease) {Decrease)
in Thousands
Total Operating Revenues § 16.017 § 13.851 § 2.166 15.64%
Total Operating Expenses 17.634 24429 (6.5957  -27.00%
Tatal Monoperating Income (Expense} 7.832 12 832 {5.000) -3897%
Contributed Capital 5962 17.163 {11.201) -65 26%
Increase in et Position 11.977 19.417 (7440}  -38.32%
Met Position at Beginning of Year 87.261 67.6864 19 417 28.51%
et Position at End of Year 5 99258 § 87281 35 11,977 13.72%

Overall Audit Results

v Financial Statement Audit v Federal Uniform Guidance Audit
o Opinion — Unmodified o Audited two major programs
No significant audit adjustments Opinions - Unmodified

@]
No passed audit adjustment o No current year audit findings
No internal control findings reported o No prior year audit findings

o O O



55 international Drive Poriamouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Ferrini:

The Pease Development Authority (PDA) Board of Directors accepts
and approves the recommendation of the Audit Committee and 1.) accepts
receipt of the draft Certified Annual Financial Statements for the years
ending June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022, and the Uniform Guidance Audit
of Federal Awards for the year ending June 30, 2022, both attached in draft
form, all as otherwise prepared and submitted by PDA’s independent
auditor Berry, Dunn, McNeill and Parker, LLC: and 2.) authorizes the
Executive Director to forward the Certified Financial Statements to the State
of New Hampshire when final for inclusion in the Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report.

Ny RESOLVESY 2022 Audit ~ Certified Financial Statements 10-20-22 docx

OO00OO TAKING YOU THERE

\,-V':Nu‘\;,peaSede\:Aoz"g



Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Financial Statements,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
and Supplementary Information

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021
With Independent Auditor’s Report

o=
PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Board of Directors
Financial Highlights
Independent Auditor’s Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

Audited Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Page(s)

3-5

6-18

19
20
21-22
23-52

53-58

59-60



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Stephen M. Duprey, Chairman
Appointed by the New Hampshire State Governor and Executive Council

Neil Levesque, Vice Chairman
Appointed by the New Hampshire Senate President
A

Thomas G. Ferrini, Treasurer
Appointed by the New Hampshire Speaker of the House
Erik Anderson v
Appointed by the City of Pormuth

Margaret F. La
Appointed by the Town of Newmﬁ

Steve F-‘:mrnfer“E-c"lt!‘:’rr
Appointed by Strafford County Legism Delegation

Su' 7

Appointed by the Tow of Ne " on.and Greenland

and Secretary

Hired by wbease melopm!ﬁrﬁuuthonty Board of Directors

Wi,

1|Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (UNAUDITED)
($ in Thousands)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 |
Consolidated
Operating Revenues
Tradeport $ 8,361 $ 8,723 $ 9,319 $ 6,056 $ 7,249
Ports and Harbors 2,702 2,869 2,680 2,477 2,774
Golf Course 2,693 2,672 2,492 3,384 3,489
Aviation 1,267 2,006 1,838 1,934 2,505
Total S 15023 $16,270 $16,329 _$13.851 $ 16,017
UNRESTRICTED CASH AND ~ PDA currently has no outstanding
CASH EQUIVALENTS debt, reflecting lower non-grant
related capital expenditure
requirements across all business
$9,000 units:
$7,000 -
June 30 | Amount
$5,000 2018 $ 233
| 20 116
3,000 "} 3020 :
$1,000 . . , z 2021 -
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2022 -
OPERATING EXPENSES » Capital assets excluding
{EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION} accumulated depreciation, primarily
due to third party grant funding and
renovations to the Portsmouth
$17,000 - International Airport, Portsmouth
Tradeport and Skyhaven Airport
$13,000 have continued to increase during
the past several fiscal years:
$9,000 -
1 June 30 | Amount
$5,000 = 7 : ' 7 2018 $ 170,623
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2019 173,770
2020 189,692
2021 216,304
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 2022 222,903

» Net <cash provided (used) by

$19,000 operating activities has stabilized
$16,000 during the past several fiscal years.
13,000
® June 30 | Amount
$10,000 - 2018 $ 3,189

$7,000 - 2019 3,182

| 2020 3,434
$4,000 2021 (5,521)
$1,000 2022 (350)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2|



D) BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors of
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Pease
Development Authority (PDA), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire, as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related motes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise PDA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to abow,present.fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of PDA as June 30, 2022 and 2021, and | the resuits of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion - b

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards (U.S. GAAS)
and the standards applicable to fi nanc_ial audits eontained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Augltgﬁt espdﬂilbilrtles r the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of PDA and to meet our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 3 to the basic financial statements in 2022, PDA adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S, generally accepted accounting principles; and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about PDA’s ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

3| #age



Board of Directors of
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. GAAS
and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of PDA’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about PDA’s ability to continue as a going concern for
a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audits.

Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations on pages 6 to 18 and the required supplementary
information on pages 53 to 58 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted auditing standards, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

4 |



Board of Directors of
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the listing of the Board of Directors on page 1 and financial highlights on page
2 but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion
on the basis financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an
opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears‘to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrecte terial misstatement of the
other information exists, we are required to describe it in our repoft.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated REPORT
DATE on our consideration of PDA’s internal control over financial réporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contragts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe H&ﬁpe of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of PDA’s internal control over financial reperting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Gevernment Auditing Standards in
considering PDA's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
REPORT DATE

5 I Faoe



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

This report identifies the Pease Development Authority’s ("PDA”) financial position and describes
PDA’s financial activities over the past three fiscal years. This section of PDA’s annual financial report
is known as “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
("MD&A") and presents our discussion and analysis of PDA’s consolidated financial performance
during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020.

The MD&A is an analysis of the financial condition and operating results of PDA and is intended to
introduce the basic financial statements and notes to those statements. For governmental entities,
an MD&A must be presented in every financial report that includes basic financial statements
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
It is intended to provide an objective and easily readable analysis of PDA’s financial activities based
on currently known facts, decisions, or conditions. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with
PDA’s financial statements and accompanying notes.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: a) Management’s discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results; b) the basic audited financial statements which include notes explaining some
of the information in the financial statements and provide detailed data; and c) required
supplementary information.

PDA is a self-supporting entity and follows enterprise fund reporting; accordingly, the financial
statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. The component unit financial
statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities and operations of PDA.
These statements are presented in a manner similar to a private business.

The statements of net position show the financial position of PDA at the end of each fiscal year and
include alt assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. The
total net position is the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources. Over time, an increase in net position is one indicator of an
institution’s financial health.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position report total operating revenues,
operating expenses, non-operating income (expense), contributed capital and the change in net
position for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The statements of cash flows summarize transactions involving cash and cash equivalents during
each fiscal year. The statements provide an additional tool to assess the financial health of the
institution and its ability to generate future cash flows to meet its obligations.

Change in Accounting Principle

As disclosed in Note 3 to the basic financial statements, in 2022 PDA adopted new accounting
guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases. The
changes made to the basic financial statements to comply with the new accounting standards have
been applied retrospectively as an adjustment as of the beginning of the year ended June 30, 2021.
The adoption of the standard at July, 1, 2020, required recognition of $3,527,284 of short-term lease
receivables, $173,824,929 of long-term lease receivables, and $177,352,212 in deferred inflows of
resources. At June 30, 2021, those balances were short-term lease receivables of $4,382,378 long-
term lease receivables of $169,907,424, and deferred inflows of resources net of accumulated
amortization of $172,345,488. The impact of the adoption of the standard for the year ended June
30, 2021 was an increase in net position of $1,944,313.

6|



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Current Assets

Current assets are those assets that are expected to be used (sold or consumed) within a year, unlike
non-current assets. Current assets are reflected on the statement of net position and are listed in
order of decreasing liquidity. The current asset position of an entity is important, both for assessing
its financial strength and for gauging its operational efficiency.

Comparison of 2022 to 2021
Changes in Current Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2022 2021 ( ~ (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,669 $ 4,531 $ 4,13&__‘._ 91.3
Accounts Receivable - Net 9,932 o 14,197 (4,265) (30.0)
Other Current Assets 712 e 572 140 24.5
Total Current Assets $___19.313 $219300 3 13 0.1

PDA’s current assets reflect an increase in operating cash of 4.1 million, or 91.3%. This increase
reflects $ 2.0 million in American Rescue Pw% it.of 2021 (ARPA) funding for both the Portsmouth
International Airport and Skyhaven Airport as we sale of a bullding at 30 New Hampshire Ave
for $1.7 million. A significant decrease in capffittonstf'&&hcﬂvitiés also contributed to the growth
in unrestricted operating cash. Offsetting this is @decrease of $4.3 million in receivables, as the prior
year included $6.0 million in state. appropriations for the dredging of the Piscataqua River.
Receivables also reflect the curfent portion of lease receivable. This represents the impact of the
adoption of GASB 87 as deseribed in Change in Aecounting Principle on page 6, and reflects the
present value of lease payments expected over the next twelve month period. Accounts receivable
included an allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately 0.2% and of total accounts receivable
at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Comparison of 2021 to 2020
Changes in Current Assets

b

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

h 2021 2020 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,531 $ 5,238 $ (707) (13.5)
Accounts Receivable = Net 14,197 8,942 5,255 58.8
Other Current Assets 572 503 69 11387
Total Current Assets $ 19,300 $___ 14,683 $ 4,617 31.4

PDA’s current assets increased by $4.6 million, or 31.4%. The $5.3 million increase in current portion
of accounts receivable represents the impact of the adoption of GASB 87 as noted above. PDA also
reflected a $707 thousand decrease in cash which went to support capital construction projects at
both PSM and non-grant related projects. Accounts receivable included an allowance for doubtful
accounts of approximately 0.2% and 0.1% of total accounts receivable at June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent amounts that are subject to externally imposed restrictions on their use
by creditors, grantors, laws, regulations, or through constitutional restrictions or enabling legislation.

Comparison of 2022 to 2021
Changes in Restricted Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase 9% Increase

2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 368 $ 550 $ (182) (33.1)
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund Receivable 1,173 1,019 154 15.1
Accounts Receivable Other - Net 23 2 21 1,050.0
Total Restricted Assets $ 1,564 $ 1,571 $ (7) (0.4)

Total restricted assets were consistent year over year primarily due to the net impact of PDA issuing
new loans under the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund (RLF), which reduced the restricted cash balance.
Total assets associated with the RLF had a composite valuation of approximately $1.2 million at June
30, 2022 and 2021. There were 21 individual loans outstanding at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021.

Comparison of 2021 to 2020
Changes in Restricted Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2021 2020 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 550 % 447 $ 103 23.0
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund Receivable 1,019 1,011 8 0.8
Accounts Receivable Other - Net 2 4 (2) (50.0)
Total Restricted Assets L 1,571 ¢ 1,462 $ 109 7.5

Total restricted assets increased by approximately $109 thousand, or 7.5%, primarily due to an
increase in operating cash. This increase is a result of lower expenditures related to repairs and
renovations associated with DPH operations at Hampton Harbor, Rye Harbor and the Portsmouth Fish
Pier. Total assets associated with the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund had a composite valuation of
approximately $1.2 million at June 30, 2021 and 2020. There were 21 and 22 individual loans
outstanding at June 30, 2021 and 2020 respectively.

AR



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Non-Current Assets

Non-Current assets represent capital acquisitions and other long term assets whose benefits will be
realized over more than one year.

PDA independently develops and maintains the Tradeport. Through the DPH, PDA maintains and
develops New Hampshire’s ports, harbors, and navigable tidal rivers. Ca expendltures typically
extend the useful life of an asset and can be financed through internal f s, grant related funding
or access to the capital markets.

Comparison of 2022 to 2021

Changes in Capital Assgp - -

% Increase
(Decrease)
Land -
Facilities Improvements 1.1
Equipment 2.3
Construction in Process 66.6
Gross Capital Assets 3.1
Accumulated Depreciation ———7
Total Capital Assets e L)

PDA's capital acquisitions (exclding salés/retirements) totaled approximately $6.7 million in 2022,
primarily in support of either federal or state funded projects. The more significant capital projects
at the PDA included terminal expananﬁictavitles atrﬁM roadway and drainage improvements and
equipment purchases. Significant capital expenditures through the DPH included repairs to the
Portsmouth Fish Pier and theﬁm Market Street. Other DPH projects included replacement
of the Barge Dock at Market Street, dock replacement at Hampton Harbor and lighting improvements
at Market Street. Approximately $6 million of the total capital expenditures were either grant funded
or supported by the State for purposes of PDA-DPH.

PDA/DPH had commitments under construction contracts associated with state and federal grants
totaling approximately $9.1 million and $13.3 million at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The
more significant commitments under construction contracts at June 30, 2022 included $4.1 million
for the PSM Runway Reconstruction project, $3.2 million for the DPH Functlonal Replacement of the
Barge Dock and $1.2 million for the Main Wharf repair and rehabilitation.

Comparison of 2021 to 2020
Changes in Capital Assets

L L1 ITOLEE o W S By

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2021 2020 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Land $ 7,521 $ 7,521 $ - -
Facilities Improvements 186,610 151,239 35,3871 23.4
Equipment 15,891 15,465 426 2.8
Construction in Process 6,282 15,467 (9,185) (59.4)
Gross Capital Assets 216,304 189,692 26,612 14.0
Accumulated Depreciation (119,954) (114,160) (5,794) (5.1)
Total Capital Assets $ 96,350 $ 75,532 $ 20,818 27.6

9| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Non-Current Assets (concluded)

PDA’s capital acquisitions totaled approximately $26.6 million in 2021, primarily in support of either
federal or state funded projects. The more significant capital projects included runway reconstruction
and terminal expansion activities at PSM. Additional funds were expended in support of equipment
needs and various infrastructure improvements at the DPH, including repairs to the Portsmouth Fish
Pier and the Main Wharf at Market Street. Approximately $18 miilion of the total capital expenditures
were either grant funded or supported by the State for purposes of PDA-DPH.

PDA had commitments under construction contracts associated with federal grants totaling
approximately $13.3 million and $23.6 million at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The more
significant commitments under construction contracts at June 30, 2021 included $4.1 million for the
PSM Runway Reconstruction project, $3.7 million for the DPH Functional Replacement of the Barge
Dock and $3.7 million for the Main Wharf repair and rehabilitation.

Comparison of 2022 to 2021

Changes in Lease Receivable, Non-Current

June 30, Restated $ Increase % Increase
2022 June 30, (Decrease) (Decrease)
2021
Lease Receivable, Non-Current $ 197,231 $ 169,907 $ 27,324 16.1

Non-current assets include a lease receivable brought about by the adoption of the GASB 87 lease
accounting standard. The balance represents the present value of expected lease payments for the
remaining terms of all active long-term lease agreements, which will be received in more than one
year. The increase of $27.3 million is reflective of additional leases or lease extensions granted during
the fiscal year.

Comparison of 2021 to 2020

Changes in Lease Receivable, Non-Current

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2021 2020 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Lease Receivable, Non-Current $ 169,907 $ - $ 169,907 100.0

Because GASB 87 was adopted as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, a lease receivable has
been recorded. The balance represents the present value of expected lease payments for the
remaining terms of all active long-term lease agreements, which will be received in more than one

year.

10 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Noncurrent Liabilities

Comparison of 2022 to 2021

Changes in Noncurrent Liabilities

a8

Other Postemployment Benefits
Net Pension Liability
Retiree Health Benefit Program
State of New Hampshire Account Payable
Compensated Absences - Net
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

"'- ng the fiscal year by approximately
$2.6 million, or 18.1%. The more significant decreases we s as

' @ssociated with the changes in the Net
Other Postemployment Benefits and Net Pensi Nis ‘ uctuation is associated with the

an the prior year. The retirement

1.1% in the previous year. The three-year, and féar investment returns for the periods

1. ' '9 3%, respectively. The retirement
system'’s assumed rate of mvesgﬂmurn is 6.75%

Comparison of 2021 to Zﬂ | - g

Chawhmnt Liabilities

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2021 2020 (Decrease) (Decrease)

$ 8,042 % 5,630 $ 2,412 42.8

6,171 4,198 1,973 47.0
Retiree Health Benefit Program 91 182 (91) (50.0)

State of New Hampshire Account Payable 252 252 - -
Compensated Absenms N!t 93 100 (7) (7.0)
Total Noncurrent Liawies $ 14,649 $ 10,362 $ 4,287 41.4

The PDA increased its total noncurrent liabilities outstanding during the fiscal year by approximately
$4.3 million, or 41.4%. The more significant increases were associated with the changes in the Net
Other Postemployment Benefits and Net Pension Liability. The retirement system realized a 1.1%
return on investments in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The three-year, five-year and 10-year
investment returns for the periods ended June 30, 2020 were 5.2%, 5.9% and 8.7%, respectively.
The retirement system’s assumed rate of investment return is 6.75%.

11| Pags



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of
debt and adding back any unspent proceeds.

Comparison of 2022 to 2021
Statements of Net Position

Restated
June 30, June 30, $ Increase %o Increase
2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Current Assets $ 19,313 % 19,300 $ 13 0.1
Restricted Assets 1,563 1,571 (8) (0.5)
Non-Current Assets 293,332 266,257 27.075 10.2
Total Assets 314,208 287,128 27,080 9.4
Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,705 4,202 (497) (11.8)
Current Liabilities 5,148 14,147 (8,999) (63.6)
Noncurrent Liabilities 12,001 14,649 (2,648) (18.1)
Total Liabilities 17,149 28,796 (11,647) (40.4)
Deferred Inflows of Resources 201,506 175,254 26,252 15.0
Net Investment in Capital Assets 93,873 92,492 1,381 1.5
Restricted Net Position 1,275 1,308 (33) (2.5)
Unrestricted Net Position 4,110 (6,520) 10,630 (163.0)
Total Net Position $ 99,258 % 87,280 % 11,978 13.7

PDA’s total assets increased $27.1 million, or 9.4%, primarily due to the increase the long term lease
receivable balance due to additional leases that were entered into and lease extensions that were
granted during the fiscal year.

PDA’s total liabilities decreased by $11.6 million, or 40.4%. The decrease in current liabilities of $9.0
million is primarily due to the prior year’s inclusion of $6.0 million in state appropriations payable to
the Army Corps of Engineers related to dredging of the Piscatagua River. The decrease in non-current
liabilities of $2.6 million represents the change in Other Postemployment Benefits and Net Pension
Liability. The fluctuation is associated with the investment returns of plan assets being significantly
higher than prior year.

Deferred inflows of resources increased by $26.2 miilion, or 15%, and reflect the change in deferred
inflow3af” due to additional leases that were entered into and lease extensions that were granted
during the fiscal year. The value of deferred inflows reflects the present value of expected lease
revenue for remaining terms of all active long-term lease agreements.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Net Position (concluded)

Comparison of 2021 to 2020

Statements of Net Position

June 30,
2021

Current Assets $ 19,300 $
Restricted Assets
Non-Current Assets

Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Investment in Capital Assets .
Restricted Net Position b
Unrestricted Net Position

Total Net Position

2%, primarily due to the adoption of GASB 87
ort and long-term receivables. This represents
the present value of expects o pver the remaining terms of all current lease
agreements. The remaining crease uﬂntal assets is mainly comprised of the increase in capital
assets. y B 'F-‘i-

PDA’s total Iiabilitses mcreasetll ¢ $7.8 million, or 37.3%. The increase in current liabilities of $3.6
} ted by the $6.0 million in state appropriations due to the Army Corps of
Engineers relats m of the Piscataqua River. This is offset by the decrease in payables
associated with capital construction activities. The increase in non-current liabilities of $4.3 million
represents increases in Other Postemployment Benefits and the Net Pension Liability. These increases
are associated \\cith the investment returns of plan assets being lower than targeted benchmarks.

Deferred inﬂows Elf.usources--intreased by $171.2 million, or 4186.0% which include deferred inflows
of lease revenue of $172.3 million resulting from adoption GASB of 87. The value of deferred inflows
reflects the present value of expected lease revenue for remaining terms of all active long-term lease
agreements.

13 l Hage



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position

PDA charges various types of fees for the rental or usage of its land and facilities.

Comparison of 2022 to 2021

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenue
Rental of Facilities
Fee Revenues
Fuel Sales
Proceeds From Sale of Building
Concession and Other Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services and Benefits
Depreciation
Building and Facilities Maintenance
Professional Services
Other
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Income (Expense)
State appropriations
CARES ACT
Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Assets
Interest Expense
Interest Income
Interest Income-Leases
Net Nonoperating Income
Gain Before Contributed Capital
Contributed Capital
Change in Net Position
Net Position at Beginning of Year

Net Position at End of Year

Restated

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)
$ 6,863 $ 7,366 $ (503) (6.8)
5,412 4,995 417 8.3

709 416 293 70.4

1,750 = 1,750 100.0
1,283 1,074 209 19.5
16,017 13,851 2,166 15.6
5,725 7,635 (1,910) (25.0)
6,861 5,833 1,028 17.6
1,939 7,772 (5,833) (75.1)
518 630 (112) (17.8)

2,791 2,559 232 9.1
17,834 24,429 (6,595) (27.0)
(1,817) (10,578) 8,761 (82.8)
- 6,086 (6,086) (100.0)

1,977 1,569 408 26.0
31 (2) 33 (1650.0)
- (73) 73 (100.0)

12 10 2 20.0

5.812 5,242 570 10.9
7,832 12,832 (5,000} (39.0)
6,015 2,254 3,761 166.9
5,962 17,163 (11,201) (65.3)
11,977 19,417 (7,440) (38.3)
87,281 67,864 19,417 28.6

$ 99,258 $ 87,281 $ 11,977 13.7

14 l B e



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position (continued)
Comparison of 2022 to 2021 (concluded)

Total operating revenues increased $2.2 million, or 15.6%, year over year. The increase in revenue
is largely due to the sale of a building at 30 NH Avenue for $1.75 million, which is included in
Concessions and other miscellaneous revenue. With the adoption of GASB 87, a portion of PDA’s
facility rent has been re-classed to interest income, which is non-operating income. This new
standard requires the PDA to account for all long-term building and greund leases as financing leases
with an implicit interest rate. Other factors contributing to higher operating revenues include an
increase in golf course operations revenue. Marine fuel sales have also increased as we re-opened
the Portsmouth Fish Pier now that construction has been completed. Total neR:operating revenues
decreased by $5.0 million as prior year revenues included state appropriations of $6.0 million related
to the Piscataqua River dredging.

Total operating expenses decreased by approximately $6.6 mitlion, Of 27.0%, as prior years Building
and Facilities Maintenance included $6.0 million for the Piscataqua River dredging project. The
decrease in Personnel Services and Benefits of $1.9 million resulted from the year-end adjustment
to the pension and OPEB liability. Depreciation Expense increased by $1.0 million due to the
significant investment in construction projects at PSM which are mew being depreciated.

The decrease in contributed capital of $11.2 million, or 65.3%, reflects decrease in grant related
construction projects at PSM and DPH now that the Airport runway, terminal and the Portsmouth
Fish Pier projects are substantially:complete.

Economic Outlook

The economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has lessened during fiscal year 2022, as PDA
experienced an uptick in airline traffic, fuel flowage fees and pay for parking revenues. Expenses
related to the purchase of materials and supplies and PPE equipment have decreased to pre-
pandemic levels as well. However, at present there is uncertainty as to whether the effects of this
pandemic will re=surface, resulting in additional potential economic ramifications to PDA’s operations
and any additional governmental actions to mitigate them.

15| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position (continued)

Comparison of 2021 to 2020

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenue
Rental of Facilities
Fee Revenues
Fuel Sales
Concession and Other Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services and Benefits
Depreciation
Building and Facilities Maintenance
Professional Services
Other
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss
Nonoperating Income (Expense)
State appropriations
CARES Act
Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Assets
Interest Expense
Interest Income
Interest Income-Leases
Net Nonoperating Income
Gain Before Contributed Capital
Contributed Capital
Change in Net Position
Net Position at Beginning of Year

Net Position at End of Year

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2021 2020 (Decrease) (Decrease)
$ 7,366 $ 10,535 $ (3,169) (30.1)
4,995 4,299 696 16.2
416 423 (7) (1.7)
1,074 1,072 2 0.2
13,851 16,329 (2.478) (15.2)
7,635 7,083 552 7.8
5,833 5,112 721 14.1
7,772 2,738 5,034 183.9
630 600 30 5.0
2,559 2,375 184 7.7
24,429 17,908 6,521 36.4
(10,578) (1,579) (8,999) (569.9)
6,086 680 5,406 795.0
1,569 1,515 54 3.6

(2) 79 (81) (102.5)

(73) 3 (70) 2333.3

10 69 (59) 85.5

5.242 = 5.242 100.0
12,832 2,340 10,492 448.4
2,254 761 1,493 196.2
17,163 8,884 8,279 3.2
19,417 9,645 9,772 101.3
67.864 58,219 9,645 16.6

$ 87,281 $ 67,864 $ 19,417 28.6

16 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position (concluded)
Comparison of 2021 to 2020 (concluded)

Total operating revenues decreased 2.5 million or 15.2%. With the adoption of GASB 87, a portion
of PDA’s facility rent has been re-classed to interest income, which is non-operating income. This is
noted by the decrease in facility rent, offset by an increase in interest inggﬁe-leases. The adoption
of this new standard requires the PDA to account for all long-term building and ground leases as
financing leases with an implicit interest rate. The decrease in facility rént, however, was offset by
an increase in golf course operations revenue of $696 thousang. al non-operating revenues
increased by $10.5 million, or 448.4% and reflect state appropriations of'ﬁgg million related to the
Piscataqua River dredging, as well as the $5.2 million in interest income from | ases.

Total operating expenses increased by approximately $6.5million, or 36.4%, and Include $6.0 million
in Building and Facilities Maintenance for the dredging @j'ect. Other.changes in operating expenses
include Personnel Services and Benefits which increased by $552€.’t§busand, driven by the increase
in pension expenses. Depreciation Expense also increased by $721 thousand due to the significant
investment in construction projects at PSM.,

As mentioned previously, the PDA received statéappropriations te dredge the Piscataqua River. As
required under Governmental Accounting Standards, the PDA reperts appropriations received from
the State as non-operating revenue, while expenses r ad to the appropriations are reported as
operating expenses. The impact of this reporting requirement, as well as the movement of interest
income from leases to non-operating, is reflected in the operating loss of $10.6 million.

The increase in contributed €apital of $8.3 millien, or 93.2%, reflects increased grant related
construction projects at PSM and DPH during the current fiscal year. During the year ended June 30,
2021, a total of $26.6 million was spent on the purchase of capital assets, of which approximately
$18.0 million were either grant funded or supported by the State for purposes of PDA-DPH.

Economic Outlook

Due to the COVID-19 global pandemic, certain fiscal year 2021 operating revenues and expenses
associated with the PDA operations were negatively impacted. Lower revenue examples, particularly
due to reduced airline traffic, include fuel flowage fees and pay for parking revenues. Expenses were
impacted for the purchase of materials and supplies including cleaning disinfection, hand sanitizers,
gloves, masks, dispesal wipes and related PPE equipment. In total, the overall financial impact to the
PDA this fiscal year was relatively immaterial. However, at present there is unprecedented
uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications to our
operations and or any additional governmental actions to mitigate them.

17| fage



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONCLUDED)

Contacting the PDA’s Leadership Team

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of PDA’s finances and to demonstrate
PDA’s accountability for the grants that it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional financial information, please contact Paul E. Brean, Executive Director, at 55 International
Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 via email at p.brean@peasedev.ord or by telephone at 603.433.6088.

Visit the PDA website at: www.peasedev.orq.

Other members of the PDA’s Leadership Team, effective July 1, 2022, include:

Anthony Blenkinsop
Deputy Director/General Counsel

Greg Siegenthaler
Director of Information Technology

Maria Stowell, P.E.
Engineering Manager

Scott DeVito
Golf Course General Manager

%k %k K K Xk

Captain Geno Marconi
Director - Division of Ports and Harbors

Susanne Anzalone, C.P.A.
Director of Finance

Tanya Coppeta
Employee Relations Manager

18|



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,669,372 $ 4,530,945
Accounts and Grants Receivable - Net 9,931,294 14,196,690
Other Current Assets 712,368 571,999
Total Current Assets 19,313,034 19,299,634
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 368,171 549,963
Loans and Accounts Receivable - Net 15#9_5,512 1,020,970
Total Restricted Assets 1,563,683 1,570,933
Noncurrent Assets:
Leases Receivable, net of Current Portion 197,230,941 169,907,424
Capital Assets 96,100,952 96,350,077
Total Noncurrent Assets 293,331,893 266,257,501
Total Assets 314,208,610 287,128,068
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other Postemployment Benefits 2,279,876 2,193,378
Pension 1,424,984 2,008,286
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,704,860 4,201,664
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payabie and Accrued Expenses 2,053,163 9,598,671
Accounts Payable for Capital Assets 2,227,972 3,858,399
Uneamed Revenues 867,102 690,183
Total Current Liabilities 5,148,237 14,147,253
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Other Postemployment Benefits 7,378,664 8,041,994
Net Pension Liability 4,279,644 6,170,435
Other Noncurrent Liabllities 342,544 436,055
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 12,000,852 14,648,484
Total Liabilities 17,149,089 28,795,737
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other Postemployment Benefits 1,651,884 2,546,921
Pension 1,382,954 360,975
Lease Revenue 198,471,605 172,345,488
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 201,506,443 175,253,384
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 93,872,980 92,491,678
Restricted For:
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund 1,248,826 1,242,596
Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance 14,810 57,953
Foreign Trade Zone 10,919 7,905
Unrestricted 4,110,403 (6,519,521)
Total Net Position $ 99,257,938 m 87,280,611

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

19 | F s 1_.}



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Operating Revenues
Rental of Facilities

Fee Revenues:
Golf Course Operations

Mooring, Dockage, Pier Usage and Boat Registrations

All Other
Total Fee Revenues
Fuel Sales
Proceeds from Sale of Building
Concession and Other Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personnel Services and Benefits

Depreciation
Building and Facilities Maintenance

General and Administrative
Utilities
Professional Services
All Other
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

Nonoperating Income (Expense)
State of New Hampshire appropriations

COVID funding
Interest Income - Leases

Interest Income - Other

Interest Expense

Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Capital Assets
Net Nonoperating Income

Gain Before Contributed Capital

Contributed Capital

Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Year, Restated

Net Position at End of Year

2022 2021
6,862,835 7,365,470
2,728,744 2,843,009
2,567,976 1,444,121

115,584 707,957
5,412,304 4,995,087
709,020 416,534
1,749,985 -
1,283,098 1,074,011

16,017,242 13,851,102
5,724,558 7,635,363
6,860,974 5,833,557
1,939,422 7,771,504

992,878 918,227
798,545 814,854
517,641 629,749
1,000,111 825,582

17,834,129 24,428,836

(1,816,887) (10,577,734)
- 6,085,643
1,977,072 1,569,065
5,812,536 5,242,695
11,268 9,998

= (72,920)

31,086 (2,537)
7,831,962 12,831,944
6,015,075 2,254,210
5,962,252 17,162,807

11,977,327 19,417,017

87,280,611 67,863,594

99,257,938 87,280,611

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

20 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers $ 20,332,506 $ 5,604,999
Cash Payments to Personnel for Services and Benefits (7,654,933) (7,383,899)
Cash Payments to Suppliers of Goods and Services (13,027,985) (3,742,530)

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (350,412) (5,521,430)
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
State Appropriations - 6,085,643
CARES Act Funding Cash Received 1,993,937 3,066,883

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 1,993,937 9,152,526
Cash Flows From Capital and Related

Financing Activities
Contributed Capital Received 4,700,496 21,065,520
Payments for acquisition of Capital Assets (8,331,645) (30,480,296)
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 120,455 3
Interest Paid on Capital Debt : - (72,910)

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related

Financing Activities (3,510,694) (9,487,686)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest Income Received 5,823,804 5,252,693
(Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,956,635 (603,897)
Cash and Restricted Cash - Beginning of Year 5,080,908 5,684,805
Cash and Restricted Cash - End of Year $ 9,037,543 $ 5,080,908
Composition of Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,669,372 $ 4,530,945

Restricted Cash 368,171 549,963

$ 9,037,543 $ 5,080,908

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONCLUDED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022

2021

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities

Operating Loss $ (1,816,887)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Depreciation
Compensated Absences - Net

Changes in Operating Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources,

6,860,974
(6,631)

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Accounts Receivable (21,987,772)

$  (10,577,734)

5,833,557
(6,631)

(180,568,294)

Other Current Assets (140,369) (69,556)
Deferred Qutflows of Resources - OPEB (86,498) (1,634,777)
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension 583,302 (1,316,911)
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses (7,545,508) 7,384,496
Unearned Revenues 176,919 (23,297)
Retiree Health Benefit Program (86,880) (90,924)
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) (663,330) 2,411,886
Net Pension Liability (1,890,791) 1,972,631
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Leases 26,126,117 172,345,488
Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB (895,037) (937,625)
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension 1,021,979 (243,739)
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities $ (350,412) % (5,521,430)
Reconciliation of Noncash Activity:
Contributed Capital Income $ 5,962,252 $ 17,162,807
Less: Grants Receivable as of End of Year (4,169,498) (2,907,742)
Add: Grants Receivable as of Prior Year End 2,907,742 6,810,455
Add: Contributed Capital Received $ 4,700,496 $ 21,065,520
Acquisition of Capital Assets $ 6,701,218 $ 26,653,878
Less: Accounts Payable for Capital Assets
as of End of Year (2,227,972) (3,858,399)
Add: Payments on Short-Term Trade Accounts to Finance
Acquisitions of Capital Assets 3,858,399 7,684,817
Payments for the Acquisition of Capital Assets $ 8,331,645 $ 30,480,296

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

22 I RN



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022 and 2021

Reporting Entity

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA”), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire
(the “State”), is the successor entity to the Pease Redevelopment Commission ("PRC”). The PRC
was created on March 21, 1989 by an act of the General Court of the State. The mandate of the
PRC was to prepare a comprehensive plan for the conversion and redevelopment of Pease Air
Force Base. The guiding principles of the plan were job creation, fiscal viability, economic
development, and environmental quality.

Effective June 1, 1990, the PRC was dissolved and PDA was es shed as its successor with the
goals of converting and redeveloping the Pease International. deem ("Tradeport”). PDA is a
component unit of the State and is discretely presented in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report of the State.

PDA is a body corporate and politic with a governingbedy of seven members. The Governor and
State legislative leadership appoint four members, the City of Pertsmouth (*COP”) appoints one
member, the Town of Newington appoints one member @and the Towns of Newington and
Greenland jointly appoint one member. .

Pursuant to Chapter 290, Laws of 2001,.&«: New Hampﬁe State Port Authority (“"Port”), a
former agency of the primary State go as transferred to PDA effective July 1, 2001.
In doing so, the State authorized the trarﬁer of fur , powers and duties of the Port to PDA,
acting through the Division of Ports and Hﬁbors (“PDA-M“) The PDA-DPH is charged with the
responsibility to: 1) plan for the mainte and development of the ports, harbors and
navigable tidal rivers of the State; 2) foster q2t|rnulate commerce and the shipment of freight;
3) aid in the developmeng of salt water fisheries and associated industries; 4) cooperate with
any federal agencies or élepartmena in plannmg the maintenance, development, and use of the
State ports, harbors,@and navigable tidal rivers; and 5) plan, develop, maintain, use and operate
land transportation facilities within 2 15 mile radius of the PDA-DPH headquarters in Portsmouth,
New Hampshire.

As a result of the transfer of the Port to PDA, the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund
was transferred to PDA. This fund was set up for the purposes of initiating and implementing
harbor dredging projects and maintaining public piers. On July 1, 2001, also as a result of the
transfer of the Port to the PDA, the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund was transferred to the PDA.
The Revolving Loan Fishery Fund was established in July 1994 by the Port through a Federal
Economic Development Administration grant in the amount of $810,000. The grant funds and
related interest earned thereon provide a revolving loan fund to offer direct assistance to the
fishing industry and to aid in the creation of economic opportunities within the industry.

Pursuant to Chapter 356, Laws of 2008, House Bill 65 was enacted by the State Legislature on
July 11, 2008. The bill: 1) provides that service of non-classified employees of PDA shall be
credited as continuous State service for all purposes; 2) makes PDA fund a non-lapsing fund for
the benefit of PDA-DPH; 3) requires a biennial report of the PDA-DPH; and 4) repeals provisions
relative to coordination with the Department of Resources and Economic Development, reports
on economic development programs and the Harbor Management Fund.

23| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

1,

2.

Reporting Entity (concluded)

On May 12, 2008, the State, through House Bill 1168-FN-LOCAL, passed legislation that required
the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (*"NHDOT”) to negotiate a lease, which
became effective November 1, 2008, with PDA for the operation of Skyhaven Airport ("DAW")
located in Rochester, New Hampshire. With the passage of Chapter 113, Laws of 2009, enacted
on June 22, 2009, the NHDOT was directed to convey ownership of DAW to PDA. The law required
that PDA accept ownership of, manage and operate DAW, and act as the official Airport owner,
operator, and sponsor. PDA accepted this transfer of ownership, from and after July 1, 2009
with no liability relative to any regulatory matters or causes of action arising prior to November

1, 2008.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements of PDA were prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles ("U.S. GAAP”) and as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board ("GASB”), which is the primary standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. PDA uses enterprise fund reporting,
which uses the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, include cash which is
either held in demand deposit or short-term money market accounts, and highly liquid savings
deposits and investments with original maturities less than three months from the date acquired.

PDA maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. PDA has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes it is not
exposed to any significant risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Loans and Accounts Receivable

Loans and accounts receivable are carried at cost, less an allowance for doubtful accounts.
Receivable balances also include outstanding loans from the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund,
including principal plus accrued interest. Management provides an allowance for doubtful
accounts based on an analysis of accounts that are delinquent based on payment terms.
Accounts are written off when deemed uncollectible.

24 | Pz o



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital Assets

Land, equipment, and buildings and facilities improvements are stated at cost. Depreciation is
computed using a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is
principally five to thirty-five years. Capital asset acquisitions that equal or exceed $5,000 are
capitalized. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged againstincome as incurred, while
significant renewals and betterments are capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Capital Asset I Years
Buildings 35
Facilities Improvements 20
Equipment 5

Leases

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, &me discounted value of future lease
payments and receipts is included in deferred outﬂm or deferred inflows of resources,
respectively. PDA has leases with third party tenants who m portions of the Tradeport owned
and operated by PDA. The present value’a the leases is Vﬁed at inception and periodically
revalued in accordance with Statement N& 87 and I ed as a deferred inflow of resources,
These deferred inflows are amortized as le.'hlie revenue in QﬁVStematlc and rational manner over
the life of the lease. During the year ended Mﬁ 2022 and 2021, $6,063,812 and $5,461,881
respectively, was recognized as lease revenue.

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement,
termination, or death, certain employees are compensated for unused sick and vacation leave
(subject to certain ﬁmntatlons) at their then current rates of pay. The liability for vacation leave
is based on the amount earned but not used; for sick leave, it is an estimated amount based on
the amount accumulated at the balance sheet date that would be paid upon retirement. The
liability for sick leave is reflected within noncurrent liabilities while vacation leave is included in
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The calculation is based on the salary rates in effect as
of the date of the statements of net position.

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues include advance greens fees for the golf course, which are based upon a
percentage allocation of the total days the course expects to operate. In addition, unearned
revenues are recorded for mooring permits for the harbors and tidal waters and are based on
the expiration date of the permit. Rental income received in advance is also classified as
unearned revenues.

Net Pension Liability

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the New Hampshire Retirement System (“NHRS") and additions to/deductions
from the NHRS's fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis as it is reported
by the NHRS.

25| rage



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Other Postemployment Benefits

For the purposes of measuring the net liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits ("OPEB”), and OPEB expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the NHRS OPEB Plan and the State of New
Hampshire OPEB Plan (“the State OPEB Plan”) has been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by NHRS and the State OPEB Plan.

Net Position
Net position is presented in the following categories:
e Net investment in capital assets represents capital assets, net of long-and

short-term debt that relates to the purchase of those assets.

e Restricted for specific purpose represents amounts that are expendable but
whose use is subject to an externally imposed restriction.

e Unrestricted represents the remaining balance of net position after the above
net position categories have been determined.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position
are available, management applies unrestricted net position first, unless a determination is made
to use restricted net position. PDA's policy concerning which to apply first varies with the
intended use and legal requirements. Management typically makes this decision on a
transactional basis at the incurrence of the expenditure.

Revenue Recognition

Income from rental of facilities is recognized over the term of the lease net of provisions for
uncollectible accounts. Various other revenues are recorded when earned which is generally
when the related services are performed.

Operating and Nonoperating Income and Expenses

PDA distinguishes between operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items in the
preparation of its financial statements. PDA’s principal operating revenues result from charges
to tenants for the lease or license of property, providing services, and delivering goods.

Operating expenses for PDA include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are
reported as nonoperating income (expense).

Contributed Capital and Grants

Federal grants, received on a reimbursement basis, are recorded as contributed capital when
the related expenditures are capital related. Non-capital related grants consist of funds from the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act”) and are recognized on the
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as other nonoperating income.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (concluded)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Change in Accounting Principle

During the year ended June 30, 2022, PDA adopted new accq,m‘ﬂng Quidance, GASB Statement
No. 87, Leases. The retrospective adjustments made to the basic financial statements to comply
with the new accounting standards have been reported as an adjustment of prior periods, and
the financial statements presented for the periods affected have been restated.

The adoption of the standard at July, 1, 2020, required recogpition of $3,527,284 of short-term
lease receivables, $173,824,929 of long-term lease receivables, and $177,352,212 in deferred
inflows of resources. At June 30, 2021, those balances mere short-term lease receivables of
$4,382,378 long-term lease receivables of $169,907,424, and deferred inflows of resources net
of accumulated amortization of $172,345,488. The impaet of the adoption of the standard for
the year ended June 30, 2021 was an increase in.net position of $1,944,313.

Cash and Cash Equivalents k 4 -~

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, PDA’s deposits may not be
returned to it. Revised Statue Annotated (RSA) 12-G: 8 (XIII) empowers PDA to invest and
reinvest its funds and take and-hold property as security for the payment of funds so invested.
PDA's investment policy is more restrictive than applicable New Hampshire law in that it restricts
investments to the following: New Hampshire public deposit investment pool, federal agency
securities, repurchase agreements, commercial paper, money market funds, and certificates of
deposit. PDA’s policy dees not explicitly address custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, substantially all of PDA’s cash and equivalents were insured by
the Federal Peposit Insurance Corporation and the Depositors Insurance Fund.

Current Accounts and Grants Receivable - Net

Current accounts and grants receivable - net was represented by the following at June 30:

2022 2021
Lease Revenue Receivable $ 5,234,584 $ 4,498,421
Intergovernmental 4,169,49 8,940,885
Tenants and Other 533,712 763,884
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (6,500) (6,500)
$ 9,931,294 $ 14,196,690




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

6. Other Current Assets

Other current assets was represented by the following at June 30:

2022 2021
Inventories $ 429,297 $ 311,762
Prepaid Insurance 209,618 195,415
All Other 73,453 64,822
$ 712,368 $ 571,999

7. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents was represented by the following at June 30:

2022 2021
Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance $ 281,867 $ 317,326
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund 75,385 224,733
Foreign Trade Zone 10,919 7,904
$ 368,171 $ 549,963

8. Restricted Loans and Accounts Receivable

Restricted loans and accounts receivable was represented by the following at June 30:

2022 2021
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund
Due Within One Year $ 113,204 $ 105,249
Due in More Than One Year 1,059,363 913,947
Tenants 22,945 1,774
$ 1,195,512 $ 1,020,970

28 |Pag e



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

9. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2021 Additions Disposals Transfers 2022
Land $ 7,520,786 $ - $ - % - $ 7,520,786
Buildings and

Facilities "

Improvements 186,610,251 - (101,652) 2,158,718 188,667,317
Equipment 15,891,409 = = 359,131 16,250,540
Construction in

Process 6,281,349 6,701,218 - (2,517,849) 10,464,718

216,303,795 6,701,218 (101,652) - 222,903,361
Less Accumulated B, -
Depreciation (119,953,718) (6,860,974) ____&283 - (126,802,409)
$ 96,350,077 $ (159.756) $ (89,369) ¢ - $ 96,100,952
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2020 Additions Disposals Transfers 2021
Land $ 7,520,786 % SR - % - $ 7,520,786
Buildings and

Facilities

Improvements 151,239,167 = (42,604) 35,413,688 186,610,251
Equipment 15,465,539 - - 425,870 15,891,409
Construction in

Process 15,467,029 26,653,878 - (35,839,558) 6,281,349

189,692,521 26,653,878 (42,604) - 216,303,795
Less Accumulated
Depreciation (114,160,228) (5,833,557) 40,067 = (119,953,718)
$ 75,532,293 $ 20,820,321 $ (2,537) $ - $ 96,350,077

29| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

10. Leases

During the year ended June 30, 2022, PDA adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This
statement requires the recording of a lease receivable asset and a deferred inflow of resources
by lessors even in the case of a lease which does not transfer ownership of the leased asset.

The total lease receivables were $202,465,525 and $174,405,845 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. During the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, PDA received $5,812,537 and
$5,242,695, respectively, in interest revenue related to lease receivables.

The resource inflows represent principal payments received. The total deferred inflows
amounted to $198,471,605 and $172,345,488 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
During the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, PDA recognized $6,063,812 and $5,461,881,
respectively, in rental revenue amortized from the deferred inflow of resources.

PDA presently has 79 active agreements for its long term ground and building leases. The
majority of the agreements are ground leases tied to a per acre rate with rent adjusted annually
based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for All Urban Consumers in the Boston-Cambridge
Newton area. Initial ground lease terms range from 20-40 years, with option periods that can
extend the total lease term to between 50 and 74 years.

Building leases are generally based on a square foot rate with annual increases based on the
same CPI index. Typical building leases, including option periods, normally do not exceed 50
years.

As annual rent amounts are adjusted, or if a new lease agreement is executed, the lease
receivable and deferred inflow of resources will need to be recalculated in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 87.

Long-term lease agreements existing prior to the implementation date of July 1, 2020 were
valued at the discounted value of future expected scheduled lease payments as of the
implementation date. Long-term lease agreements entered into subseguent to the
implementation date of July 1, 2020 were valued at the discounted value of future expected
scheduled lease payments as of the commencement date of the individual lease. The discount
rate for leases as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 3%. The expected future payments include
extension option periods as their exercise is reasonably certain.

30 I B 5 4L



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2022 and 2021

10.

11.

Leases (concluded)

At June 30, 2022, the projected minimum future revenue and interest from noncancelable rental

agreements is approximately:

Year Principal Interest
2023 $ 5,234,584 $ 6,011,807
2024 4,469,843 5,895,343
2025 4,352,975 5,747,268
2026 4,351,390 5,618,228
2027 4,490,582 5,486,145
2028-2032 24,505,108 25,331,095
2033-2037 25,627,715 21,466,686
2038-2042 21,784,427 17,962,416
2043-2047 21,330,644 14,798,143
2048-2052 19,670,394 11,606,915
2053-2057 16,723,083 8,954,396
2058-2062 10,909,244 6,871,814
2063-2067 7,695,121 5,480,419
2068-2072 5,941,717 4,476,328
2073-2077 5,495,106 3,661,873
2078-2082 5,281,777 2,869,788
2083-2087 6,135,757, 2,015,808
2088-2092 7,127,522 1,024,043
2093-2097 1,338,535 122,576
.$ 202,465 3 $ 155,401,191

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues (which are recognized when cash, receivables or other assets are recorded

prior to their being earned) eensisted of the following at June 30:

2022 2021
Mooring Permits $ 356,734 $ 350,461
Golf Course Membership Fees 255,291 253,212
All Other 255,077 86,510
$ 867,102 $ 690,183

Mooring permits and golf course membership fees are collected primarily during the months of
January through March and amortized ratably over the corresponding seasons.

31 I Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

12. Revolving Line of Credit Facility

PDA currently has a $15,000,000 unsecured Revolving Line of Credit Facility ("RLOC") secured
through The Provident Bank, which matures December 31, 2022. The terms of the RLOC provide
that a) the loan shall bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the thirty (30) day Federal
Home Loan Bank rate plus 250 basis points; and b) PDA shall maintain various covenants that
are to be reported on an annual basis. The proceeds of any draw on the RLOC are to be used
for general working capital purposes of PDA and cash flow needs for capital projects. There were
no arnounts outstanding on this RLOC as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

13. Changes in Noncurrent Liabilities

Noncurrent liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due in
June 30, June 30, One
2021 Additions Reductions 2022 Year
Other Postemployment
Benefits $ 8,041,994 $ - $ (663,330) $ 7,378,664 ¢ 155,000
Net Pension Liability 6,170,435 - (1,890,791) 4,279,644 445,000
Retiree Health Benefit
Program 90,924 - (90,924) - -
State of New Hampshire
Account Payable 252,250 - - 252,250 -
Compensated Absences-
Net 92,881 - (2,587) 90,294 -
$ 14,648,484 $ - $ (2,647,633) $ 12,000,852 $ 600,000
Noncurrent liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:
Balance Balance Due in
June 30, June 30, One
2020 Additions Reductions 2021 Year
Other Postemployment
Benefits $ 5,630,108 $ 2,411,886 $ = $ 8,041,994 $ 190,000
Net Pension Liability 4,197,804 1,972,631 s 6,170,435 500,000
Retiree Health Benefit
Program 181,848 - (90,924) 90,924 -
State of New Hampshire
Account Payable 252,250 - - 252,250 -
Compensated Absences-
Net
99,512 5 (6,631) 92,881 -
$ 10,361,522 ¢ 4,384,517 $ (97,555) $ 14,648,484 $ 690,000

32 |Fage



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

14.

15,

16.

Municipal Service Fees

Effective July 1, 1998, PDA entered into an amended municipal services agreement with COP
and the Town of Newington to provide various municipal services, including police, fire, and
public works at the Tradeport. This agreement specifies that PDA, through its tenant’s payments,
shall pay COP a fee for the cost of services equal to the amount that would have been paid
annually as ad valorem taxes excluding any school tax component in respect to such property
within the Airport District. COP is responsible for service costs owed tgﬂhe Town of Newington.
This agreement excludes, as part of the allocated area, the spa 'bé'cupied by PDA and any
space for public use in the PSM Terminal. The agreement includes€ompleted facilities other than
PDA’s golf course or airport terminals within the Airport Distri¢t operated by PDA for public or
other use. This agreement shall continue to be in force untilione of the parties terminates the
agreement in writing. i

Any tenant located outside the Airport District, unless otherwise exempt from taxation, shall pay
to COP a payment in lieu of taxes in accordance with the provisions of the New Hampshire law.

Airport Joint Use Agreement 2

The Department of the Air Force and PDA are parties to an Airport Joint Use Agreement
(“"Agreement”) regarding the required use ofthe airport facilities at the Tradeport by the New
Hampshire Air National Guard, as well as for 3r accasional government aircraft. Subject to

the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the federal gavernment has the use of the airport
facilities in common with other users of th '*# ort together with all necessary and conventional

ated facilities located at the airport.

The federal government'is responsible for the functions detailed in the Agreement, including,
but not limited to, the following: air traffic control services, aircraft fire protection and crash
rescue. PDA is responsible for certain services and functions, including, but not limited to, the
following: maintenance of certain facilities, utilities, and other related services in connection
with maintaining an airport facility in accordance with Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)
requirements. The current Agreement, which expired on September 30, 2018, is currently under
review by both parties. :

Risk H;Inagement

PDA is exposed to various risks of loss at the Tradeport and DAW related to torts; theft of,
damage to and destruction of assets; and natural disaster for which the PDA carries insurance.

PDA has a comprehensive airport liability insurance policy that will provide coverage generally
up to $50,000,000 for each occurrence and in the aggregate in any one annual period of
insurance. Other insurance coverage includes automotive, crime, employment practices, fire,
general liability, pollution, theft, and workers’ compensation. Settlements did not exceed
coverage amounts during fiscal years 2022 and 2021.

In addition to purchasing insurance coverages, PDA maintains a risk transfer program. The PDA’s
agreements and leases include requirements to provide insurance coverage and coverage
provisions, which include: 1) naming PDA as an additional insured; 2) naming PDA as loss payee
on property coverage; 3) a waiver of subrogation; and 4) providing that such coverages be
primary and non-contributing with respect to coverage PDA maintains.

33 | P



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

17. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

PDA participates in the NHRS, which, as governed by RSA 100-A, is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer contributory public employee defined benefit pension plan qualified under section
401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (“Code”) and funded through a trust, which is exempt from
tax under Code section 501(a). NHRS is a contributory, defined benefit plan providing service,
disability, death and vested retirement benefits to members and their beneficiaries. NHRS retired
members receive a lifetime pension. Substantially all full-time state employees, public school
teachers and administrators, permanent firefighters and permanent police officers within the
State are eligible to participate in NHRS. RSA 100-A specifies the benefit terms provided to the
members of NHRS.

Although benefits are funded by member contributions, employer contributions and trust fund
assets, NHRS computes benefits on the basis of members’ Average Final Compensation ("AFC")
and years of creditable service. Unlike a defined contribution plan, NHRS benefits provided to
members are not dependent upon the amount of contributions paid into NHRS or the investment
return on trust assets.

To qualify for a normal service retirement, members must have attained the age of 60 years
old. However, a member who commenced service on or after July 1, 2011 shall not receive a
service retirement allowance until attaining the age of 65. The member may receive a reduced
allowance after age 60 if the member has at least 30 years of creditable service. The allowance
shall be reduced based on a formula, for each month by which the date on which benefits
commence precedes the month after which the member attains 65 years of age, by ¥ of one
percent.

For members retiring prior to the age of 65, the yearly pension amount is 1.67% of AFC,
multiplied by years of creditable service. For members retiring at 65 or older, the yearly pension
amount is 1.52% of AFC, multiplied by years of creditable service. For members vested prior to
January 1, 2012, AFC is based on the highest three years of creditable service. For members
not vested prior to January 1, 2012, or hired on or after July 1, 2011, AFCis based on a member's
highest five years of creditable service. At age 65, the yearly pension amount is recalculated
with an appropriate graduated reduction based on years and months of creditable service that
the member has at the time of retirement.

Contributions Reauired and Made

The Retirement Plan is financed by contributions from the members, PDA, and investment
earnings. Contributions required to cover that amount of cost not met by the members’
contributions are determined by a biennial actuarial valuation by the Retirement Plan’s actuary.
By statute, the Board of Trustees of NHRS administers the plan and is responsible for the
certification of employer and member contribution rates.

Commencing July 1, 2011, all Group I employees are responsible to accrue contributions at
7.00% while Group II (Police) employees accrue contributions at a rate of 11.55%. In terms of
the employer share of contributions made to the Retirement Plan, the pension contribution rate
for Group I employees was 10.88% for the two-year period ended June 30, 2021. Effective July
1, 2021, the employer share was increased to 13.75% and will remain fixed through June 30,
2023. For Group II employees, effective July 1, 2019, the contribution rate was 24.77% and
remained fixed through June 30, 2021. Effective July 1, 2021, the contribution rate increased to
30.67% and will remain fixed though June 30, 2023.

34 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

17. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, contributions to NHRS were $593,320 and
$499,733, respectively.

ension Lia Pension nse. and Deferred Outflows of sour: nd

At June 30, 2022, PDA reported a liability of $4,279,644 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability is based on an actuarialvaluation performed as of June
30, 2020 and a measurement date of June 30, 2021. The net pension liablhty was rolled forward
from June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021. PDA’s proportion of the net pensioniliability was based on
a projection of PDA’s long-term share of contributions to NHRS relal‘l'm to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June.30, 2021, PDA's
proportion of the net pension liability was 0.0966%.

At June 30, 2021, PDA reported a liability of $6,170,;435 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June
30, 2019 and a measurement date of June 30, 2020. The net pension liability was rolled forward
from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020. PDA‘s.proportion of the net pension liability was based on
a projection of PDA’s long-term share of eontributions te NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuafially determined. At June 30, 2020, PDA’s

proportion of the net pension liability was 0. 0965%. '

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, !DA recognized pension expense of $307,810 and
$911,714, respectively. i

At June 30, 2022, PDAémported claﬁrre.d outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Net differences between projected and'actual
investment earnings on pension plan
investments $ = $ 1,196,918
Changes in assumptions 446,985 =
Differences between expected and actual
experience 119,836 44,805
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and share of
contributions 264,843 141,231
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 593,320 -
$ 1,424,984 $ 1,382,954




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

17. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

At June 30, 2021, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Net differences between projected and actual

investment earnings on pension plan

investments $ 381,648 $ -
Changes in assumptions 610,378 =
Differences between expected and actual

experience 166,632 66,253
Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and share of

contributions 349,895 294,722
Contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 499,733

$ 2,008,286 $ 360,975

Amounts reported as deferred outflows related to pensions resulting from PDA contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability
in the year ending June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Year Ended Amount
June 30

2023 $ (124,436)
2024 (19,396)
2025 (19,125)
2026 (388,333)

$ (551,290)

36 I Fi e |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

17. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension liability at June 30, 2022 was determined by a roll forward of the
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, using the following actuarial assumptions, which apply
to 2020 measurements:

Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal
Amortization methed Level Percentage-of-Payrell, Closed
Remaining amortization period 19 years beginning July 1, 2020 (30 years beginning
July 1, 2009)
Asset Valuation Method 5 Year smoothed market for funding purposes;
20% corrider
Investment Rate of Return 6.75% net of pension plan investment expense,
including inflation for 2021 and 2020 valuations
Salary Rate Increase 5.60% awverage, including inflation 2021 and 2020
valuations
Price Inflation 2.00% for the 2021 and 2020 valuations
Wage Inflation 2.75% for the 202%.and 2020 valuations

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree Mortality Tables with credibility
adjustments for each group (Police and Fire:mmh‘iﬂ&d) and projected fully generational mortality
improvements using Scale MP=2019, based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience
study, which was for the period of July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2019.

The actuarial assumptions for contributions made in the years ended June 30, 2021 and June
30, 2020 can be found in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation report.

ong-

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was selected from a best
estimate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected
future real return range is calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation.

37| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

17. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Following is a table presenting target allocations and the geometric real rates of return for each

asset class:
Weighted
Average Long-
Term Expected
Real Rate of
Return
Target Target
Asset Class Allocation Allocation 2020 2021
2020 2021
Large Cap Equities 22.50% 22.50%  3.71% 6.46%
Small/Mid Cap Equities 7.50 7.50 4.15 1.14
Total Domestic Equity 30.00 30.00
International Equities (Unhedged) 13.00 14.00 3.96 5.53
Emerging International Equities 7.00 6.00 6.20 2.37
Total International Equity 20.00 20.00
Core Bonds 9.00 = 0.42 -
Global Muiti-Sector Fixed Income 10.00 J 1.66 -
Absolute Return Fixed Income 6.00 = 0.92 -
Core US Fixed Income 0 25.00 - 3.60
Total Fixed Income 25.00 25.00
Private Equity 10.00 10.00 7.71 8.85
Private Debt 5.00 5.00 4.81 7.25
Total Alternative Investments 15.00 15.00
Real Estate 10.00 10.00 2.95 6.60
100.00% 100.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75% for the 2021 and 2020
valuations. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined
contribution rates and the member rate. For purposes of the projection, member contributions
and employer service cost contributions are projected based on the expected payroll of current
members only. Employer contributions are determined based on the pension plan’s actuarial
funding policy and as required by RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

38| Fage



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

17. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (concluded)
itivi lysi
The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what PDA’s proportionate share of the pension liability would

be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one- percentage-point lower or one-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Disc Rate . 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) ___(7.75%)
PDA’s Proportionate Share of the

c o -
Net Pension Liability 6,120,3&_}91_- $ 4,?:79,644 $ 2.—@44,169

ion PI - v
Detailed information about the pension plan’s ﬁduciary'ﬁﬁ__gbosition is available in the separately
issued NHRS annual report available fromNHRS’ website at https://www.nhrs.org.

The pension plan’s fiduciary net position% beé%’hmmed "on the same basis used by NHRS.
NHRS's financial statements are prepared using ,ﬁl@ - | basis of accounting. Both plan
member and employer contrib Elons are recognized in the period in which contributions are
legally due, Benefits and r d when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan. Investn | at fair value. Investments in both domestic and
non-U.S. securities are walued at nt m et prices and expressed in U.S. dollars. NHRS
uses a trade-date muntmg ,_for these investments. Investments in non- registered
commingled funds are valued at net asset value as a practical expedient to estimate fair value.

of Co

On July 1, 2016, the Board of Trustees of NHRS announced a change to adopt revised actuarial
assumptions based on the results of a five-year experience study conducted by the retirement
systems consulting actuary. Included in these changes was the lowering of the assumed rate of
return from 7.75% to 7.25%. This rate was used to set employer contribution rates for fiscal
years 2019, 2020 and 2021. On June 9, 2020, the Board of Trustees voted to reduce the
retirement systém’s investment assumptions, lowering the assumed rate of return from 7.25%
to 6.75%. By statute, this valuation will determine employer contribution rates for fiscal years
2022 and 2023.

39 I e



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

18. Other Postemployment Benefits — New Hampshire Retirement System
Plan Description

In addition to providing pension benefits, NHRS administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined postemployment medical subsidy healthcare plan designated in statute (RSA 100-A:52,
RSA 100-A:52a and RSA 100-A:52-b) by membership type. The membership types are Group
II Police Officer and Firefighters, Group I Teachers, Group I Political Subdivision Employees and
Group I State Employees. The NHRS OPEB Plan provides a medical insurance subsidy to qualified
retired members. The medical subsidy is a payment made by NHRS to the former employer or
their insurance administrator toward the cost of health insurance for a qualified retiree, his/her
qualified spouse, and his/her certifiably dependent children with a disability who are living in the
household and being cared for by the retiree. Under specific conditions, the qualified
beneficiaries of members who die while in service may also be eligible for the medical subsidy.
For qualified retirees not eligible for Medicare the subsidy amounts were $375.56 for a single-
person plan and $751.12 for a two-person plan. For those qualified retirees eligible for Medicare,
the amounts were $236.84 for a single-person plan and $473.68 for a two-person plan. There
have been no increases in the monthly maximum subsidy amounts since July 1, 2007. The plan
is closed to new entrants.

Substantially all of the State’s employees who were hired on or before June 30, 2003 and have
10 years of service may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age
while working for the State and receive their pensions on a periodic basis rather than a lump
sum. During fiscal year 2004, legislation was passed that requires State Group I employees
hired on or after July 1, 2003 to have 20 years of State service in order to qualify for health
coverage benefits. These and similar benefits for active employees are authorized by RSA 21-1:
30 and provided through the Employee and Retiree Benefit Risk Management Fund (the “Fund”),
which is the State’s self-insurance fund implemented in October 2003 for active State employees
and retirees.

Contributions Reauired and Made

The State Legislature has indicated it plans to only partially fund (on a pay-as-you-go basis) the
annual required contribution ("ARC”), an actuarially determined rate.

Plan members are not required to contribute to the OPEB Plans. PDA makes annual contributions
to the OPEB Plans equal to the amount required by RSA 100-a: 52. For all Group I employees,
effective July 1, 2019 the annual contribution rate was decreased from 1.07% to 1.05% and
remained fixed through June 30, 2021. Effective July 1, 2021, the contribution rate decreased
to 0.78% and will remain fixed through June 30, 2023. For Group II employees, effective July
1, 2019 the annual contribution rate was decreased from 4.10% to 3.66% and remained fixed
through June 30, 2021. Effective July 1, 2021, the contribution rate decreased to 3.21% and
will remain fixed through June 30, 2023

PDA’s contributions to NHRS for the OPEB Plans for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021
were $39,283 and $51,285, respectively, which were equal to its ARC.

40 | Fat=



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

18. Other Postemployment Benefits — New Hampshire Retirement System (continued)

PEB Liabiliti OPE and D r t of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2022, PDA reported a liability of $356,789 for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30,
2020 and a measurement date of June 30, 2021. The net OPEB liability was rolled forward from
June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021. PDA’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on a
projection of the PDA’s long-term share of contributions to NHRS. relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially detérmined. ‘At June 30, 2021 PDA’s
proportion of the net OPEB liability was 0.0891%. p y

At June 30, 2021, PDA reported a liability of $390,020 for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability is based on an a€tuarial valuation performed as of June 30,
2019 and a measurement date of June 30, 2020. The net OPEB liability was rolled forward from
June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020. PDA’s proportion ef the net OPEB liability was based on a
projection of the PDA’s long-term share of contributions to NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020 PDA’s
proportion of the net OPEB liability was 0:0891%,

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, PDA recognized OPEB expense of $21,143 and
$77,880, respectively.

At June 30, 2022, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following seurces:

Deferred Deferred

Outfiows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Net differences between projected and actual

investment earnings on OPEB plan investments $ - $ 4,457
Differences between expected and actual experience = 74
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 39,283 e
$ 39,283 $ 4,531

41| Paae



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

18. Other Postemployment Benefits — New Hampshire Retirement System (continued)

At June 30, 2021, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net differences between projected and actual
investment earnings on OPEB plan investments $ 1,459 $ -
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and share of contributions 4,783 -
Differences between expected and actual experience - 1,130
Changes in assumptions 2,508
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 51,285 -
3 60,035 $ 1,130

Amounts reported as deferred outflows related to OPEB resulting from PDA contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability
in the year ending June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended Amount
June 30
2022 $ (1,094)
2023 (936)
2024 (1,050)
2025 (1,451)
$ (4,531)

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total OPEB liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as
of June 30, 2021, using the following actuarial assumptions, which apply to 2020 measurements:

Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal

Amortization method Level Percentage-of-Payroll, Closed

Remaining amortization period Not applicable, under statutory funding

Investment Rate of Return 6.75% net of investment expenses, including inflation
Salary Rate Increase 5.60% average, including inflation

Price Inflation 2.00% per year

Wage Inflation 2.75% per year

Healthcare cost trend rates Not applicable, given the benefits are fixed stipends
Aging factors Not applicable, given the benefits are fixed stipends

42 |Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

18. Other Postemployment Benefits — New Hampshire Retirement System (continued)

Mortality rates used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree
Mortality Tables with credibility adjustments for each group (Police and Fire combined) and
projected fully generational mortality improvements using Scale MP-2019, based on the results
of the most recent actuarial experience study, which was for the period of July 1, 2016 - June
30, 2019.

Lona-Term Rates of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was selected from a best
estimate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected
future real return range is calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation.

Following is a table presenting target allocations and the geemetric real rates of return for each

asset class:
Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return
Target Target
Asset Class Aliocation A 2020 2021
2020 2021
Large Cap Equities "Hl 22.50% 22.50% 3.71% 6.46%
Small/Mid Cap Equities . 7.50 7.50 4,15 1.14
Total Domestic Equity | 30.00 30.00
International Equities 13.00 14.00 3.96 5.53
(Unhedged)
Emerging International Equities 7.00 6.00 6.20 2.37
Total International Equity 20.00 20.00
Core Bonds 9.00 - 0.42 -
Global Multi-Sector Fixed 10.00 - 1.66 -
Income
Absolute Return Fixed Income 6.00 - 0.92 -
Core US Fixed Income 0 25.00 - 3.60
Total Fixed Income 25.00 25.00
Private Equity 10.00 10.00 7.71 8.85
Private Debt 5.00 5.00 4.81 7.25
Total Alternative 15.00 15.00
Investments
Real Estate 10.00 10.00 2.95 6.60
100.00% 100.00%

43 | Fa o



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

18. Other Postemployment Benefits — New Hampshire Retirement System (concluded)
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.75% for the 2021 and 2020
valuations. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer
contributions will be made under the current statute by RSA 100-A:16. Based on those
assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments
to determine the collective total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what PDA’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
PDA’s Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability $ 387,858 $ 356,789 $ 329,758

OPEB Plan Fiduciarv Net Position

Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued NHRS annual report available from NHRS' website at https://www.nhrs.ora.

The OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis used by NHRS.
NHRS’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Both plan
member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which contributions are
legally due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value. Investments in both domestic and
non-U.S. securities are valued at current market prices and expressed in U.S. dollars. NHRS
uses a trade-date accounting basis for these investments. Investments in non-registered
commingled funds are valued at net asset value as a practical expedient to estimate fair value.

44 | TR e e



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

19. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire
Plan Descripti

RSA 21-1:30 specifies that the State provide certain health care benefits for retired employees
and their spouses through a single-employer (primary government and component units)
defined benefit plan. These benefits include group hospitalization, hospital medical care, surgical
care, and other medical care. Substantially all of the State’s employ@es who were hired on or
before June 30, 2003 and have 10 years of service may become el for these benefits if they
reach normal retirement age while working for the State and Ve their pensions on a periodic
basis rather than in a lump sum. During fiscal year 2004, le ation was passed that requires
State Group I employees hired on or after July 1, 2003 to have 20 year’salstate service in order
to qualify for retiree health benefits. During flscal year 2011, legislation wé sed that requires
Group II employees to have 20 years of State servige to qualify for re » health benefits.
Additionally, during fiscal year 2012, legisiation waapssed requmng Group I employees hired
after July 1, 2011 to have 25 years of State serm:nd inc ing Group I and II employees
hired after July 1, 2011. These and similar be for e employees and retirees are
authorized by RSA 21-1:30 and provided through the/Employee and Retiree Benefit Risk
Management Fund which is the State’s self-insurance inteérnal service fund. The state OPEB Plan
funds the cost of medical and prescriptionidrug claims by charging actuarially developed working
rates to State agencies for participating employees, retirees, and eligible spouses. An additional
major source of funding for retiree benefitsis from the NHRS medical subsidy payment described
in Note 19. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financiai ge;gqrt?ng for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. The State administers the plan. It does not issue a separate stand-alone financial
report.

The State Legislature has indicated it currently plans to only fund the plan to cover benefit
payments (on a pay-as-you-go basis). PDA’s contributions to the State for the OPEB Plans for

the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $97,034 and $133,113, respectively, which were
equal to PDA’s share of benefit payments.

OPEB Liabili : a Outflows of and Deferred
OWS to

At June 30, 2022, PDA reported a liability of $7,021,875 for its proportionate share of the State
OPEB Plan liability. The OPEB liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of
December 31, 2020 (adjusted forward using standard actuarial techniques), and a measurement
date of June 30, 2021. The OPEB liability was rolled forward from December 31, 2020 to June
30, 2021. PDA’s proportion of the OPEB liability was based on a projection of the PDA’s long-
term share of contributions to the State relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, PDA’s proportion of the State OPEB
Plan’s liability was 0.3433%.

45 | Pag e



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

19. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire (continued)

At June 30, 2021, PDA reported a liability of $7,651,974 for its proportionate share of the State
OPEB Plan liability. The OPEB liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of
December 31, 2018 (adjusted forward using standard actuarial techniques), and a measurement
date of June 30, 2020. The OPEB liability was rolled forward from December 31, 2018 to June
30, 2020. PDA’s proportion of the OPEB liability was based on a projection of the PDA’s long-
term share of contributions to the State relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020, PDA’s proportion of the State OPEB
Plan’s liability was 0.3438%.

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, PDA recognized OPEB credits of $(1,529,691) and
$(53,998), respectively.

At June 30, 2022, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Changes in assumptions $ 1,430,653 961,564
Differences between expected and actual experience - 167,959

Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and share of contributions 712,906 526,892
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 97,034 -
$ 2,240,593 1,656,415

At June 30, 2021, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to OPEB from the following scurces:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Changes in assumptions $ 985,388 1,669,126
Differences between expected and actual experience = 101,068

Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and share of contributions 1,014,842 775,597
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 133,113 -
$ 2,133,343 2,545,791




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

19. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire (continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows related to OPEB resulting from PDA contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in
the year ending June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended Amount
June 30
2023 $ (302,776)
2024 75,356
2025 568,806
2026 145,758
$ 487,144

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total OPEB liability was determined by @ rollferward of the actuarial valuation as
of December 31, 2020, using the following actuarial @assumptions, which apply to 2021

measurements:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Investment Rate of Return
Salary Rate Increase — Group I

Salary Rate Increase - Group II
Discount rate

Price Inflation
Wage Inflation

Entry Age Normal

Level percent of payroll, open

30 years ™

Not applicable as there are no invested assets

14.75% decreasing over 12 years to an ultimate level
of 3.25%

27.75% decreasing over 8 years to an ultimate level of
4.25%

2.16% for the June 30, 2021 valuation; 2.21% for the
June 30, 2020 valuation

3.25% per year

2.75% per year

Heath care trend rates are based on the following:

« Medical

o Nen-Medicare: 0% for one year, then 5.50% decreasing by 0.25% each year to
an ultimate level of 4.5% per year. For 2020, (17.05%) for one year, then 17.20%
for one year, then 5.50% decreasing by 0.25% per year to 4.5% per year.

o Medicare: n/a through contract period, then 4.5% per year. For 2020, (12.2%)
for one year then 4.5% per year.

e Prescription Druas

o Non-Medicare: 15.0% for one year, then 7.50% decreasing by 0.25% each year
to an ultimate level of 4.5% per year. For the 2020 valuation, (12.17%) for one
year, 3.30% for one year then 7.5% decreasing by 0.25% each year to 4.5%

per year.

47 | Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2022 and 2021

19. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (continued):

o Medicare: 9.5% for one year, decreasing by 0.5% each year to an ultimate level
of 4.5% per year. For the 2020 valuation, 9.75% for one year, 6.20% for one
year then 6.5%, decreasing by 0.25% per year to 4.5% per year.

e Contributions
o Retiree contributions are expected to increase with a blended medical,

prescription drugs and administrative expense trend.
Mortality rates were based on the following:

e Pre-retirement - PubG-2010 Headcount-Weighted Employee General Mortality Tables for
Group 1 and PubS-2010 Headcount-Weighted Employee Safety Mortality Tables for
Group II projected generationally for males and females with scale MP-2019; the same
mortality tables were used for the 2020 valuation.

e Postretirement:
o Healthy: PubG-2010 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Retiree General Mortality
Tables for Group I and PubS-2010 Headcount-Weighted Health Retiree Safety
Mortality Tables for Group II projected generationally for males and females with
Scale MP-2019; the same mortality tables were used for the 2020 valuation.

o Disabled: PubNS-2010 Headcount-Weighted Non-Safety Disabled Retiree
Mortality Tables for Group I and PubS-2010 Headcount-Weighted Safety Disabled
Retiree Mortality Tables for Group II projected generationally for males and
females with Scale MP-2019; the same mortality tables were used for the 2020
valuation.

« The following scale factors for each member classification are applied to all mortality

tables:
Group 1 Group II
Scale - Male 101% 96%
Scale - Female 109% 999,

Effective January 1, 2019, the State implemented a Medicare Advantage plan which contributed
to the reduction in the overall plan liability in the year of implementation.

48 | 7+



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

19. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire (concluded)

Discount Rate

Because the State OPEB Plan is not funded, the discount rate is based on the yield or index rate
for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rate of AA/Aa or
higher as shown in the Bond Buyer 20-Bond General Obligation Index.(2.16% as of June 30,

2021 and 2.21% as of June 30, 2020). This determination is in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 75. :

The discount rate was decreased from 2.21% as of June 30,2020 to 2. 16%‘.* of June 30, 2021.
The trend assumptions were revised to reflect known inges in claims e \
expectations. Per capita health costs and administrative expenses were recaleu
more recent data. '

Sensitivity Analysis
The following presents PDA’s proporti _share of the net OPEB liability at June 30, 2022
calculated using the discount rate of Zc.hﬁ{ well as w%’s proportionate share of the
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated usi discount ate that is one-percentage-point
lower or one-percentage-point higher than the current rate:
S
T Current
| 1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
- | (1.16%) (2.16%) (3.161%)
PDA’s Proportionate Share of the | =
Net OPEB Liability .« | § 8396623 $ 7,021,875 $ 5,943,913

-

The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the
current trénd rates, as well as what PDA's proportionate share of the OPEB liability would be if
it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rates:

Current Trend
1% Decrease Rates 1% Increase
PDA’s Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability $ 5,772,033 $ 7,021,875 $ 8,668,426

49 | WA ae



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 20, 2022 and 2021

vy &VLL QII° LT LS

20. Commitments and Contingencies

Subsurface Investigation

During site subsurface investigations conducted at the Market Street Terminal (performed, in
part, to support storm water system improvements), the PDA-DPH’s environmental consultant
found several areas of subsurface soils contaminated with significant levels of the heavy metal
mercury. Initial investigations reveal that this contamination is most likely associated with a
commercial wood preservation process that was located on a portion of the site and probably
operated on the site sometime after 1875 and terminated operations before the State acquired
title to the property in the 1960’s and prior to July 1, 2001 when PDA-DPH operations were
transferred from the State to the PDA. The completed study has been submitted to the New
Hampshire Department of Environmental Services and management is awaiting its review and
comment. As of June 30, 2022, no liability has been recorded for future pollution remediation
obligations, as the amount of any such liability is not reasonably determinabie.

Grant Administration

PDA receives federal grants, which are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies.
Although these audits could result in expenditure disallowances under the terms of the grants,
it is believed that any required reimbursements would not have a material effect on the financial

statements.

Construction Contracts

PDA had commitments under construction contracts associated with federal grants totaling
approximately $9,100,000 and $13,312,000 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The more
significant commitments under construction contracts at June 30, 2022 inciuded $4,127,000 for
the PSM Runway Reconstruction project, $3,199,000 for the DPH Functional Replacement of the
Barge Dock and $1,250,000 for the Main Wharf Rehabilitation.

Litigation

From time to time, PDA is involved in pending or threatened lawsuits encountered in the normal
course of business. Management of PDA believes that the ultimate outcome of these matters, to
the extent not covered by insurance, will not have a material impact on PDA’s financial position
or operations.

Joint Stipulation of Dismissal - Conservation Law Foundation

On November 10, 2016, in an action brought under the Citizen Suit provision of the Clean Water
Act ("CWA"), the Conservation Law Foundation (“CLF”) filed a complaint in the United States
District Court for the District of New Hampshire (the “court”) against PDA, its Executive Director,
and Board Members, alleging certain violations of the CWA’s permitting requirements. The
matter is captioned Conservation Law Foundation, Inc. v. Pease Development Authority, et al.,
Civil Action No. 1:16-cv-00493-SM. In particular, the Complaint alleged PDA failed to obtain and
comply with a Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (Small MS4) permit and the
associated permit requirements. CLF’s Compliant sought injunctive relief and civil penalties.

50 | »aga



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

20. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

On January 11, 2019, the Court issued a Joint Notice of Settiement. Elements of the Settlement,
which became effective March 9, 2019 (the “Effective Date”), require that the PDA shall:

1. Design and implement various measures concerning the PDA small MS4 including:

e Submit an application for and supplementary information related to a NPDES
Permit, renewal, or modification, for coverage of disgha@rges subject to the Small
MS4 permitting program;

e Design and implement:
> A public education and outreach program;
An illicit discharge detection and elimination system; .
A construction and post-construgtion runoff and control pregrams;
A pollution prevention and geed housekeeping program; and

Y V¥V YV

e Provide annual reporting to the CLF.

As of June 30, 2022, the applicationand supplementary information noted above has been
submitted to the EPA for review. The m,ted programs. have been designed and their
implementation continues.

2. Within five years of the Effective Date, remove a minimum of five acres of Impervious
Surface, as defined. Aso?]une 30, ZQWJ the five acres had been removed.

3. Pay to CLF $800,,@!l as full and complete satisfaction of CLF’s claim for attorneys’ fees
and costs incurréd or to be if€urred, including any future attorneys’ fees and costs related
to the implementation or monitoring of compliance with the Settlement. As of June 30,
2020, the full 589&‘000 had been paid.

On October 6, 2020, the Conservation Law Foundation and the Pease Development Authority
filed a Stipulation of Bismissal in the case of Conservation Law Foundation, Inc. v. Pease
Development Authority, et al, case number 1:16-cv-00493-SM, in the United States District
Court for the District of New Hampshire. This filing concluded the ongoing litigation between the
parties concerning the permitting and handling of stormwater at the Pease Tradeport, which had
been stayed during the implementation of the parties’ settlement agreement reached in early
2019. The District Court entered the dismissal as a judgment on October 19, 2020.

51 Fage



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

T 20 9
June 30, 2022 and 2021

21, COVID-19 Considerations

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared coronavirus disease (COVID-19) a
global pandemic. Local, U.S., and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the
spread of COVID-19 by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and
imposing limitations on travel and the size and duration of group gatherings. Most sectors are
experiencing disruption to business operations and may feel further impacts related to delayed
government reimbursement. There is unprecedented uncertainty surrounding the duration of the
pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and additional government actions to mitigate
them. Accordingly, while management expects this matter to impact operating results, the
related financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated.

In April 2020, PDA was awarded $1,637,474 of CARES Act funding through the FAA. Under the
terms of the FAA grant agreement, only expenses incurred or debt service payments made on
or after January 20, 2020 are eligible for reimbursement. The CARES Act grant assurances for
eligible expenses will remain in effect through May 25, 2024. At June 30, 2020, PDA had
expended $1,514,684 of the FAA CARES Act funding and this amount is in accounts and grants
receivable at year end. During the year ended June 30, 2021, the remaining $122,790 was
expended and received.

In May 2021, PDA was awarded $1,427,609 in CARES Act funding through the FAA. Under the
terms of the FAA grant agreement, only expenses incurred or debt service payments made on
or after January 20, 2020 are eligible for reimbursement. The CARES Act grant assurances for
eligible expenses will remain in effect through May 25, 2024. At June 30, 2021, PDA has
expended and received the full award of the FAA CARES Act funding.

In June 2021, PDA was awarded a grant from the State of New Hampshire’s Governor’s Office
for Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR) in the amount of $16,865. The GOFERR grant is
to be used by PDA to cover eligible costs outlined in the grant agreement that were incurred
through December 30, 2020. At June 30, 2021, the PDA had satisfied the terms and conditions
of the grant agreement and the amount is in accounts and grants receivable at year end.

In December 2021, PDA was awarded $1,964,072 in Airport Rescue Grant funding through the
FAA. Under the terms of the FAA grant agreement, only expenses incurred or debt service
payments made no earlier than January 20, 2020 are eligible for reimbursement. At June 30,
2022, PDA has expended and received the full award of the Airport Rescue Grant funding.

In January 2022, PDA was awarded $13,000 in Airport Coronavirus Relief Grant Program
(ACRGP) funding for a grant of Federal funds associated with Skyhaven airport. Under the terms
of the grant agreement, only expenses incurred or debt service payments made no earlier than
January 20, 2020 are eligible for reimbursement. At June 30, 2022, PDA has expended and
received the full award of the ACRGP funding.

521



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY IN



“r ol gs

"spojsad BuILIOdas aA[323dSal 3y 104 SIEP JUDLISINSEBW Y] JO S PaIUaseld S| dA0ge Uojjewioiu]

‘a/qejleAp aL02q A3yl Se pappe 3G (IIM SJeaA jeUuoiIppY 'SieaA 0T MOYS 0} papusiul s/ 8|npayds

% 18°6S

%97 9T

000’€¥8'c$

- 878'E9T'v$

%Z960°0

_bT0T

% 7E'99

%ELTTT

000°620°€$

pS1'/89°c$

%8600

ST0T

1 {1

% L¥'G9 % 0€'8S

%80 VCT  %/L9THI

000'0EV'ES

166'G5C ¥$

%v/0T 0 %ZE0T 0

000'8¥8'c$

LL6'68Y'S$

£10T

% 99779 % €LV % 6569

% zr8s

% cC'TL

%Sy 91T %6ETTT

%18 thT

%6L W6

000°€08'c$  000°G9Z°€$ 000°GE/c$

000'986'vS  Z6EVEEFE

Z6Ev8EvS

v08'L6T'v$

 %TI600 ‘

%bT0T'0 %Z/80°0

810¢C

_610T

ozoz

 %S5960°0

000'19Z'v%

000's15v$

SEP'0LT9% p¥9'6/T'VS

1zoz

 %9960°0

A3lliqer] uoisuad [e30L
943 JO 9% e se uonisod
19N Adepnpid ueld
“ljodAed”
a9Ao|dw-paiano)
s, doAojdw] ay3 40 9%
e se Ajljigel] uolsuad 19N
2A1103]|0D BU3 JO 2leyS
ajeuoijiododd s,1aAoidw]

“JlodAed sakojdwig
-paJdaAod s,4aAo|dw3

~ Ajjiger] uoisusd 39N
9A1103(|0D B3 JO Bleys
2jeuolpodoldd s,19A0|dwi]

< R
UoISUad 12N 2A19)|0D d9WY3
J0 uolpodoud JaAodwg

{0€ duUN( JO se st uoijewdogul Buimojjoj syl

MIGerT Uoisuad 39N 9ARI9[[0J JO oINpPayYdS

(a311aNVNN) NOILVIWHOANI AYVLINIWIT1ddNS AIFINOIY

(ad1ysdwieH maN jo 3a3e3s 943 Jo un juduoduwio) v)

ALTYOHLINY LNIWdJOT3IAIQ ISVAd



{4

41 s

‘sporiad buiiodas aa13oadsal a4l 40 1234 [BISY S,Wdd JO SE pajuasald s| aA0qe uoRewojur

‘afgejiene awoodaq Aayj se D..i_!m aq [{IM S.ieaA [euonIppY "SIeaA T MOYS 0] papuajul SI 3jnpayds

%2CS 0T %T1S°0T %98°0T %9801 %20CT %8LTT %8 IT %L0°TT %CLET llodAed
. saAo|dw3-patano)

saAojdw3 ayy Jo

9%, & Se uoiAnglijuod)

JoAo|dwy

000°6Z0°€E $ 000°0EP'E § 000°8¥8'C $ 0O0'E08'c$ O000'S9Z'E $ 000GEL’E $ 0ODT9Z'F $ 000GISPE  000°€Ced $ llo1Aeq saAojdwi3

pa43an0) s,4aAojdwg

g == $ - & - $ suonnqLiuody
J9A0jdwig Jo
(Asuapyaq) / sseox3

T89’8TE § GSCv09E § 80641 $ €00'ETy $ OIGZSh 1§ I88'6er § 180680 & €c/'66v $§ 0cE's6s § suoinqLiuod
7 . JaAo|dw3 jenjoy

-

T89°8TE $ Scv'09€ $ 806ZIv /$. E£00°CTyr $ OIG2Sh. & 788'66b $ 180680 § €c/'660 $

0zE’EeSs  $ ~uopnquiuod
JsAojdwig padinbay

__vI0T  ST0C 9T0Z

x0T 810z 610z ozoz 1202 zZo0Z

:0€ 2UN[ papud sieaA ayj Joj SI uonewoyul Buimoljo) syl

(aaLxanvNn) (GINNILNOD) NOILVWIOANI AUV.LNIWI1ddNS AIUINOIY

(sd1ysdwey mapN jo aje3s ay3 jo jiun Jusauodwo) y)
ALTYOHINY LN3IWdOT3A3A 3SVad



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) (UNAUDITED)

Notes to the Reauired Supplementary Information

Notes:

The roli-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2020 to June
30, 2021 reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual
benefit payments.

The roll-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2019 to June
30, 2020 reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual
benefit payments.

The roll-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2018 to June
30, 2019 reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual
benefit payments.

The roli-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2017 to June
30, 2018 reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual
benefit payments.

The roll-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2016 to June
30, 2017 reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual
benefit payments, refunds, and administrative expenses for the plan
year.

The roli-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2015 to June
30, 2016 reflects expected service cost and interest reduced by actual
benefit payments.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2012-2013 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2014-2015 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2016-2017 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2018-2019 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2019-2020 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2020-2021 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2022-2023 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation.

55 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) (UNAUDITED)

Schedule of Collective Net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability

(NHRS OPEB PLAN)
The following information is as of June 30:
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Employer Proportion of the :
Collective Net OPEB Liability 0.0891% 0.0891% 0.0803% 0.0840% 0.0946% 0.0961%
Employer’s Proportionate )
Share of the Collective Net E
OPEB Liability $ 356,789 $ 390,020 $ 352,220 $ 384,676 3 432,717 $ 465,117
Employer’s Covered- = .
Employee Payroll $ 2,648,784 ¢ 2,579,327 $2,269,615 $2311,755 $.2,523,561 $ 2,499,949
Employer’s Proportionate
Share of the Collective Net
OPEB Liability as a % of the
Employer’s Covered-
Employee Payroll 3.47% 15.12% 15.52% 16.64 % 17.15% 18.61 %
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as
a % of the Total OPEB Liability 11.06 % 7.74 % 7.75% . 7.53% 7.91% 5.21%
Schedule is intended to show 10 years. Additional years will.be added asthey become available.
Information above is presented as of the measurement date for the respective reporting periods.
Schedule of i ;
The following information is for the years ended June 30:
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Required Employer
Contribution $ 39,283 $ 51,285 $ 50,499 $ 45,758 ¢ 45,795 $ 56,092
Actual Employer
Contributions $ 39,283 $ 51,285 $ 50,499 $ 45,758 % 45,795 §% 56,092
Excess / (Deficiency) of ’
Employer Contributions $ - s S - $ - = g -
Employer’s Covered
Employee Payroll $ 2,701,760 $ 2,648,784 $ 2,579,327 $ 2,269,615 $ 2,311,755 $ 2,523,561
Employer Contribution as a
% of the Employer's
Cogres-mpioyes hrvgl 1.45% 1.94% 1.96% 2.02% 1.98% 2.22%

Schedule is intended to show 10 years. Additional years will be added as they become available.

Information above is presented as of PDA’s fiscal year for the respective reporting periods.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) (UNAUDITED)

Notes to the Reauired Supplementarv Information

Notes:

The roll-forward of the total OPEB liability from June 30, 2020 to June 30,
expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments,
administrative expenses for the plan year.

The roll-forward of the total OPEB liability from June 30, 2019 to June 30,
expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments,
administrative expenses for the plan year.

The roli-forward of the total OPEB liabitity from June 30, 2018 to June 30,
expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments,
administrative expenses for the plan year.

The roli-forward of the total OPEB liability from June 30, 2017 to June 30,
expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments,
administrative expenses for the plan year.

The roli-forward of the total OPEB liability from June 30, 2016 to June 30,
expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments,
administrative expenses for the plan year.

2021 reflects
refunds, and

2020 reflects
refunds, and

2019 reflects
refunds, and

2018 reflects
refunds, and

2017 reflects
refunds, and

57 ¢



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONCLUDED) (UNAUDITED)

Schedule of Collective Net OPEB Liability (STATE OPEB PLAN)

The following information is as of June 30:

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

2017

Employer Proportion of the
Collective Net OPEB Liability 0.3433%  0.3438%  0.2940%  0.3616% _ 0.3501%

0.3345%

Employer’s Proportionate
Share of the Collective Net _ i
OPEB Liability $7,021,875 $7,651,974 $5,277,888 $6,907,205 $7,806,000

$9,618,388

Employer’s Covered-Employee f
Payroll $4,515,000 $4,261,000 $3,735,000 $3,765,000 43,803,000

$3,848,000

Employer’s Proportionate
Share of the Collective Net
OPEB Liability as a % of the

E;‘i'{;’”yers Covered-Employee 55550, 17058 %  440.31%  183.46%  205.26 %

249.96%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as
a % of the Total OPEB
Liability 0.00 % 0.00 % 00&* ; 0.00 % 0.00 %

0.00%

Schedule is intended to show 10 years. Additfonw, be added as they become available.

Information above is presented as of the measurement date for the respective reporting periods.

LY B

otes to the : _'

There are no assets accumulﬂzd ina tmst that meets the criteria in GASB 75 paragraph 4 to

pay related benefits.

Changes of auumptionss Changes in assumptions reflect trend assumption revisions to
reflect current experience and future expectations. The discount rate decreased from 2.21%
as of June 30, 2020 to 2.16% as of June 30, 2021. The discount rate decreased from 3.50%

as of June 30,2019 to 2.21% as of June 30, 2020.

Notes: The roll-forward of the total OPEB liability from December 31, 2020 to June 30,2021
reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments,

refunds, and administrative expenses for the plan year.

The roll-forward of the total OPEB liability from December 31, 2018 to June 30,2020
reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments,

refunds, and administrative expenses for the plan year.

The roll-forward of the total OPEB liability from December 31, 2018 to June 30, 2019
reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments,

refunds, and administrative expenses for the plan year.

% %k 3k %k X

58| Pagye



b' BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of Pease
Development Authority (PDA), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire, which comprise the
statement of net position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise PDA’s basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated REPORT DATE.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered PDA’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of PDA’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of PDA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of PDA’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

59 | ¥ o e



Board of Directors of
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether PDA's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of oUr testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion en the effectiveness of
PDA’s internal control or on compliance. This report is anJintegral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in gensidering PDA’s intermal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any ether purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
REPORT DATE

60| Face



Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Section II
Reports Required by Government Auditing
Standards and Uniform Guidance

Year Ended June 30, 2022

\%
&
PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
AND IINTFORM GUIDANCE

MW UNLI W ENETH el 5ol W

Year Ended June 30, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page(s)
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 1-2
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for each Major Federal Program; Report
on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 3-5
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 6
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 7
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs:
Section I. Summary of Auditor’s Results 8
Section II.  Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are
Required to be Reported in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards 9

Section III. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 9



) BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors ’
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally acceptéd auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the buSiness-type activities of Pease
Development Authority (PDA), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire, which comprise the
statement of net position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise PDA s basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated REPORT DATE.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered PDA’s internal control
over financial reporting (inteérmal contrel) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of PDA's internal
control. Accordingly, we do net express an opinionon the effectiveness of PDA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of PDA’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

berrydunn.com



Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether PDA's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
PDA's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering PDA’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
REPORT DATE



) BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;
AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Pease Development Authority’s (PDA) eompliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of PDA’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.
PDA’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and queﬁpﬁ“’ﬁagts

In our opinion, PDA complied, in all material réspects; with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and mteliﬂ effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2022,

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General.of the United States; and audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section
of our report.

We are required to be independent of PDA and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for the major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
PDA’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to PDA's federal programs.

LRk riiy

berrydunn.com



Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the PDA's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and
the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the PDA's compliance
with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
a test basis, evidence regarding the PDA's compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the PDA's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the PDA's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

4



Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the basic financial statements of PDA as of and for theyear ended June 30, 2022,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively g@mprise PDA’s basic financial
statements, We have issued our report thereon dated REPORT DATE, which, contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted fol pu pose of forming an opinion
on the financial statements that collectively comprise the asic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, asreéquired by T‘tle 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requ:remen@, “ost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of addltloﬁ analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility/@f management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other ‘records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected tothe auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and cgrtaln addﬁmn%:res, including comparing and

reconciling such information directly to the un g account d other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basig | | statemen mselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with U.S. genera accepm auditing standards. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is ﬁriv stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Manchester, New Hampshire
REPORT DATE



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Federal Pass-Through
Federal Grant/Pass-Through Assistance Identifying
Grantor/Program Title Listing Number
U.S. Department of Transportation:
Direct:
Airport Improvement Program:
3-33-0016-062-2018 20.106
3-33-0016-064-2019 20.106
3-33-0016-066-2019 20.106
3-33-0016-067-2020 20.106
3-33-0016-069-2021 20.106
3-33-0016-070-2021 20.106
SBG 15-09-2020 20.106
3-33-0016-073-2022 - COVID-19 20.106
SBG-15-11-2021 - COVID-19 20.106
3-33-0016-074-2022 20.106
Total AL 20.106
National Infrastructure Investments
693JF71910009 20.933
Total U.S. Department of Transportation
U.S. Department of Treasury:
Passed-Through State of New
Hampshire:
Coronavirus - State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds 21.027 N/A

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:

Direct:

Port Security Grant Program 97.056

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

Total
Federal

Expenditures

$ 22,758
281,717
3,996

6,665

17,745
11,908
118,588
1,964,072
13,000

8,574

2,449,023

1,070,432
3,519,456

1,496,003

117,728

$_5,133,187



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2022

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of Pease Development Authority (PDA) during the year ended June 30,
2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the
Schedule presents only a portion of the operations of PDA, it is nat intended to, and does not,
present the net position, changes in net position or cash flows of PDA.

2. of nificant Accountin ici

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of aecounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, for
federal agreements entered into before December 26, 2044, and the Uniform Guidance for
federal agreements entered into on or after December 26, 2014, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented where available. '

PDA has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section I. Summaryv of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal contro! over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be
material weaknesses? yes X__none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X__no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be
material weaknesses? yes X__ none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Uniform Guidance? yes X__no

Identification of major programs:

AL Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.106 U.S. Department of Transportation:
Airport Improvement Program

21.027 U.S. Department of Treasury:
Coronavirus - State and Locai Fiscal
Recovery Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X ___yes no



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section II Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be
Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing Standard

None noted.

Section III. F i d Questioned Costs for th r Fed 0

None noted.



>

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION

Director Parker:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to finalize and execute Amendment No.
11 to the Parking License Agreement with Lonza Biologics, Inc. for parking
spaces located at 55 International Drive; extending the Agreement from
November 1, 2022 through October 31, 2023: all in accordance with the

draft License Agreement Amendment No. 11, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2022\Lonza Parking - 55 Intl Dr 10-20-22.docx

O0O0OO TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedev.org



Licensor:

Licensee:

License Agreement Amendment No. 11
Pease Development Authority (“PDA” or “Licensor”)

Lonza Biologics, Inc. (“Lonza” or “Licensee™)

Licensed Premises:  Parking area adjacent to 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH

License Date:

October 31, 2011

and Licensee:

Premises™);

This License Agreement Amendment No. 11 made effective November 1, 2022, by and between PDA

WHEREAS, Licensee desires to extend its License, as amended, through October 31, 2023 for the
continued use of certain parking area adjacent to 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH (the “License

WHEREAS, PDA has agreed to extend the term of the License through October 31, 2023;

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is acknowledged, the

Parties agree to amend the License Agreement as follows:

1. The term of the License is extended for one (1) year from November 1, 2022 through October
31, 2023.

2 Exhibit A showing the “Licensed Premises” of 79 parking spaces is removed and replaced by
a new Exhibit A, attached hereto, showing the “Licensed Premises” of 99 parking spaces.

eH Licensee shall pay PDA a License Fee of Twelve Hundred and no/100 Dollars ($1,200.00) per
month, in advance, for use of the Licensed Premises.

4. Should any PDA parking spaces at 55 International Drive be occupied or unavailable due to
construction of Lonza’s Lynx Parking project, PDA shall have the right upon at least twenty-
four (24) hours’ notice to Lonza, to use a concurrent number of parking spaces from the
Licensed Premises for PDA use without charge or reduction in the License Fee.

5. All other terms and conditions of the License shall remain in full force and effect and continue
to be binding upon the Parties.

Date: , 2022 Date: , 2022
Lonza Biologics, Inc. Pease Development Authority
By:
Duly Authorized Paul E. Brean
Executive Director
(Print Name)
Title:

PALONZA\Parking\Parking License Amd | 1docx



EXHIBIT A

Exhibit Depicting Lonza Parking at 55 International Dr DESIGNED BY: MRM  DATE: /22  SCALE 1=120%
PP~ PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY S5 HTERNATIONAL DRIVE, RORTSMOUTH, 1 801




>

z
-
m
(o]
z

55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

ol-
> m
c<
e A
™|z
oC|>
v |~
-=
—Am
<Z|,
bl

Director Anderson:

MOTION

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby

authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Right of Entry with WSP USA

(fka Wood Environmental & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc.) for the premises

located at 35 Airline Avenue from November 1, 2022 through May 31,

2023; all in accordance with the draft Right of Entry dated October Ll

2022 attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2022\WPS USA (fka Wood Environmant & Infrastructure) ROE 10-20-22.docx

OO0O0O0O TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedev.org



October 11, 2022

VIA Email: joe.malone@wsp.com

Kathy Gross, Project Administrator
WSP USA (tka Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions
511 Congress Street
Portland, ME 04101

Re:  Right of Entry Extension - 35 Airliné3
Pease International Tradeport, Portsnig

Dear Ms. Gross;

This letter will authorize WSP USA (
("WSP") and/or its agents and contractors to
35 Airline Avenue in Portsmouth, NH, as showj i !
period on beginning Nove 2022 throu -J' b MA 37 or the purpose of utilizing 3,200
square feet within the P, dts sole risk, fo; storage of $well testing equipment and associated
materials; and for n out the priorigxpress written consent of Pease Development
Authority ("PDA"). This :
upon providing one month' S @
May 3 1, . =

astructure Solutions, Inc.)
sr-upon the premises located at
ixhibit A (the "Premises") for the

LhL

signafure i ' to assume full responsibility for any and all risks of loss
or damagedgip ' or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the

1 esgagents or contractors upon the Premises and/or the exercise of any
gin. WSP expressly waives all claims against the PDA for any such
,:_:,.'-f" or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of WSP’s use of
griduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this
authorization. WSP fjitther agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend the PDA, its
officers, board members, agents and employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands or
actions, liabilities, judgements, costs and attorney’s fees arising out of WSP’s use of the Premises
or any activities conducted or undertaken in connection with or pursuant to this authorization.

QOOCO TAKING YOU THERE
Phone: 603.433.6088 Fax: 603.427.0433 www.peasedev.org

55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801



Page Two
October 11, 2022
RE: Right of Entry - 35 Airline Avenue
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 03801

2. WSP agrees to pay PDA a total of $350.00 per month, in advance, for the use of
the Premises for the purpose of utilizing 3,200 square feet for storage of well testing equipment and
associated materials; and for no other use without the prior express written consent of Pease
Development Authority ("PDA").

3. WSP and any agent or contractor of WSP providing PD th satisfactory evidence
of comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit:of. not less th ,.,T:wo Million Dollars
($2,000,000), naming the PDA as an additional insured as its interests may appear. WSP and any
agent or contractor of WSP providing PDA with satisfactory evidence of automobile liability
insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000. 00 and workers’ compensation coverage to
statutory limits. Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) an

agreement by the insurer that such policy shall not be canceled without thirty (30) days prior
written nottce by mail to PDA (||) wlth the exceptlon of workers compensatlon coverage, provide

liability insurance coverage required to b
respect to any insurance carried by PDA.

will by PDA or termm'at'ed at w1|| and that PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or
termination. The use of the Premises shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance
and shall not cause dlsruptlon to other An‘port activities.

“be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which
may arise from 0 ttrlbuta"ble or incident to the condition or state or repair of the Premises, or
the use and occupatio thereof or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of WSPS

or the mv1tat10n of any ‘one of them.

7/ WSP and its contractors expressly waive all claims against PDA for any such loss
damage, bodily injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of such possession and/or
use of the Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this

Right of Entry.



Page Three
October 11, 2022
RE: Right of Entry - 35 Airline Avenue
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 03801

8. WSP’s agreement herein that WSP shall be responsible for the cleanup of all debris
on the Premises resulting from work performed by WSP and/or its agents and contractors.

o "'

9. WSP’s agreement to maintain the Premises in a neaf'and orderly manner for the
duration of this Right of Entry and to leave the Premises in a negd rderly condition which is

equal to or better than the condition of the Premises upon th& ement of this Right of
Entry. :

10.  WSP’s agreement herein that that PB £

L. mina Lo with or
without cause at any time. WEIC further agrees thé iptiof thi Wiitten notice
from PDA it shall vacate the Premises and, at PDA’s e Store,said premisesio its condition

prior to the commencement of any work.

<
i
A a‘g

1. No ground disturbing ac
Engineering through a PDA Dig Permit.

12.  WSP’s agreement that it is
driveway as shown on E hibits

Any term of thisiRi ; 31, %023 is subject to the approval of the PDA
Very Truly Yours,

Paul E. Brean
Executive Director

Anthony 1. B}

Henkinsdp, Deputy Director / General Counsel
Jared Sheehan,

vironmental Compliance Coordinator

]



Page Four
October 11, 2022
RE:  Right of Entry - 35 Airline Avenue
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 03801

Agreed and accepted this day of ,2022.

I ’[ G |

plroe\WSP (fka Wood Environmental) ROE - 35 Airline Avenue (11-1-2022 through 5 -31-2023)



Page Five
October 11, 2022
RE: Right of Entry - 35 Airline Avenue
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 03801

EXHIBIT "A"
PREMISES

35 Airline Avenue Right of Entry DENGMEDBY: MAM  DATE: 8221  SCALE 12002

D>‘ PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 IMYERMATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, Nt 03901

ey




Y

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM

TO: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors

FROM: Paul E. Brean, Executive Director RGD

RE: Lease Reports

DATE: October 11, 2022

AR ok o ook ook ok ook sk ok ok ok ok Kok ok ok ok ook sk oo o ok ok o ok ok ook o ook ok ok ko ok ok o sk ok ko ok ook ko oK o o ok K

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-Sublease
Agreements” PDA approved the following lease option with:

1. Tenant:
Space:

Use:
Term:

The Housing Partnership

222 International Drive
General Office

Three (3) years commencing October 1,2022 with two (2) three (3) year options)
anticipated to be no later than August 1, 2022.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements also requires
the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In these instances, Director Lamson was
consulted and granted her consent.

PA\BOARDMTG\2022\Lease Report 9-15-22.doc

TN TN N /‘“j

L) TAKING YOU THERE

Phone: 603.433.6088 Fax: 603.427.0433 www.peasedev.org



\!Y(

>
N
m

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors

From: Paul E. Brean, Executive Directo@

Date: October 6, 2022

Re: Sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership and The Housing
Partnership ' '

In accordance with the Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-
sublease Agreements adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA
has approved of a sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership (“222ILP") and The
Housing Partnership (“HP”) for 1,213 square feet at 222 International Drive for a period of three
§3) years, effective October 1, 2022 with two (2) three (3) year options. HP will use the premises

or general office use.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that:

“A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to,
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

1. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted
under the original sublease;

2 The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original
Lease;

3 The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to
Eerform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original

ease; and
4. The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.”

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on 2221LP’s

continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the PDA/200ILP
Sublease.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Aptproval of Sub-sublease Agreements
also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director
Lamson was consulted and granted her consent.

QOO0 TAKING YOU THERE
Phone: 603.433.6088 Fax: 603.427.0433 www.peasedev.org



NOTICE OF CONSENT

This NOTICE OF CONSENT (“Notice”) is given by the PEASE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY (“Lessor”) to 222 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (“Lessee”).
Lessor and Lessee may be referred to jointly as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

A. The Parties entered into a Lease for 222 International Drive at Pease International
Tradeport on September 7, 1999 (the “Lease”) and amended by Lease Amendment No. 1 effective

April 1, 2000 to include 195 New Hampshire Avenue, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth,
New Hampshire.

B. Section 19.3 of the Lease states that Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold its consent
to sublease if:

1. the use of the subleased Premises associated with the Lease is permitted under
the original Lease;

2 the sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original Lease;

3. Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to perform all other
obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease; and

4. the proposed sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.

3 Lessee has requested authorization to sublease approximately 1,213 square feet within
the Leased Premises at 222 International Drive to The Housing Partnership (“HP”) a not-for-profit
entity duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, and qualified to do
business in the State of New Hampshire.

D. The proposed sublease to HP is for general office use and for no other uses.
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. Lessor hereby authorizes Lessee to execute the sublease, attached hereto as Exhibit A, with

HP for approximately 1,213 square feet within the Leased Premises.

2 Upon execution of the sublease with HP, Lessee shall provide Lessor with a copy of the
executed sublease, copies of all required insurance certificates and a certificate of good standing from
the State of New Hampshire for HP.

8 Lessee hereby agrees that occupancy shall be subject to the issuance of a Certificate of
Occupancy as may be required in accordance with PDA Zoning Regulations, Section 315.03(a).



4. Lessee hereby agrees and affirms that it shall remain primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and
to perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease.

This Notice of Consent is executed, effective this ® & day of 40%@43,2022 by the
Pease Development Authority.

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
TN

Its: _ Bkecutive Director

AGREED AND ACCEPTED

222 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

q:1%- 22 By: Mﬁ/%

Date Its:  ~  Co- V'{_z»tac.‘/

PATWOINTL\222 International\Consent\The Housing Partnership.docx



EXHIBIT A

SUBLEASED PREMISES



ORIGINAL

SUBLEASE
BETWEEN
222 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

AS
"SUBLESSOR"

AND
THE HOUSING PARTNERSHIP

AS %
"SUBLESSEE"

222 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE

SUITE #165

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03801

Sephembr
DATED AS OF ZEGIRT ._|_ 2022



z
—
m

s

o}
Z

55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

ol-
>»>m

c<
~ Mz
™|z
o°|>»
v |~
= 2
= m
<Z >
|-

MOTION
Director Fournier:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to consent to T-
Aviation, L.L.C.’s request to exercise its last one year lease extension
option for the premises known as Hangar 5, including certain surrounding
apron area, located at Skyhaven Airport (DAW), through October 31, 2023;
substantially in accordance with the memorandum from Andrew Pomeroy,
Manager, Aviation Planning and Regulatory Compliance, dated October 1 1,

2022, attached hereto.

NARESOLVES: 20224 Skyhaven - T-Aviation Exercise of Option  .docx

OOOO TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedev.org



PEASE

AIRPORT LA e s
MANAGEMENT

Memorandum

To: Paul Bean, Executive Director?
From: Andrew Pomeroy, Manager, A«aﬁ Planning and Regulatory Compliance @

Date: 10/11/2022
Subj: T-Aviation, LLC

On November 1, 2020, the PDA entered into a lease agreement with T-Aviation, LLC of
Kensington, NH to operate an aircraft maintenance and repair facility in Hangar 5 at Skyhaven

Airport, providing a much needed service to Skyhaven and increasing the marketability of the
airport.

Despite the difficulties of starting a new aviation business over the winter months, as well as the
challenges posed by the Global Pandemic of 2020, T-Aviation has experienced slow and steady

growth and has brought the desired attention to the airfield. This has continued steadily over the past
two years.

Under the lease, Lessee currently pays the PDA building area rent ("Building Area Rent") in the
amount of $1,200 per month on a triple net basis for the Leased Premises. In addition to the
Building Area Rent, the Lessee pays to the PDA 3% of its net earnings from its operations on
the Leased Premises (“Concession Fee”).

T-Aviation has requested to exercise its last one year option to extend, under the same terms and
conditions, and at the same rate for both Building Area Rent and Profit Share that they currently pay,
in order to continue their growth at Skyhaven Airport. Over this coming year, T-Aviation intends to
work with the PDA in an attempt to negotiate a new lease with a possible larger land lease area.
Please see attached letter.

The aviation industry is currently experiencing a shortage of qualified aviation mechanics.
Skyhaven is extremely fortunate to have acquired the services of T-Aviation. T-Aviation has proven
to be an asset to the airfield bringing in business and providing services such as aircraft recovery for
disabled aircraft. As such, I request that you seek approval from the PDA Board of Directors at its
October 20, 2022, meeting, to approve the exercise of T-Aviation’s last one year option under the
current terms and rate structure in order to continue the lease of Hangar 5 at Skyhaven Airport,
through October 31, 2023.




“World Class Maintenance Logistics Support”

REQUEST TO EXERCISE
OPTION YEAR 2
LEASE EXTENSION

SKYHAVEN AIRPORT (KDAW)
ROCHESTER, NH

T-Aviation, LLC. 10/12/22 Pease Development Authority

T-Aviation, LLC. Tel 703-932-7078 Tom.taviation@gmail.com



12 October, 2022

T-Aviation, LLC

120 South Rd
Kensington, NH 03833
Cell: 703-932-7078

Andrew B. Pomeroy, C.M.

Manager, Aviation Planning and Regulatory Compliance
Pease Airport Management Department

KPSM & KDAW

(603) 433-6536

Mr. Pomeroy,

T-Aviation, LLC is grateful for the opportunity to have served the PDA as its aircraft
maintenance vendor at Skyhaven Airport, Rochester, NH.

The last 12 months have been strong in terms of revenue growth to the tune of 15.5%, but
have seen a 23% cost in materials/services due to the ill effects of COVID and the current
state of the economy. Despite the shortfall between revenue and costs, we continue to
make adjustments to address this and have great expectations to overcome them by 1Q23.
This rate is expected to not change as we close out our second year. We remain steadfast
in our continued focus on reinforcing the groundwork objectives laid out in our business
plan/model. Though we have had numerous challenges in our expansion to establish
additional capabilities and provide services to Skyhaven, we remain confident these shall
be overcome. For example, the revenue generated by small aircraft is not sufficient to
suppott current and estimated expansion overhead; especially in light of the lack of
additional qualified/willing workforce. To overcome these shortfails, we’ve modified,
albeit temporarily, our targeted aircraft/customer class/base. As of this letter to the PDA
Board, we have accepted a business class/private VIP Hawker 800XP as our next major
project. At the conclusion of the project, we’ll be able to see the cost benefit analysis of
this dynamic shift and whether it merits a permanent shift in this direction. Our activities
continue to support the tenant community at the airport by providing expedient and top-
notch aircraft maintenance and customer services. As in our previous letter to you, we have
great expectations that these growth factors are prime indicators that our continued
presence at Skyhaven will continue to mutually benefit our organization and the PDA.

Please accept this correspondence as official notification that T-Aviation, LLC requests to
extend its operations at Skyhaven Airport, Rochester, NH for an additional year.
Furthermore, we request to exercise Option Year 2 as indicated under Article 4 of the lease
agreement signed in 2020. Lastly, we request the lease terms remain unchanged during the
Option Year 2 extension and begin the process of laying out the groundwork of a lease
renegotiation in anticipation of a November 2023.

T-Aviation, LLC. 120 South Rd
Tel 703-932-7078 Kensington, NH 03833
Tom.taviation@gmail.com




“Werld Class Muaintenance Logistics Support”

Thank you again for considering T-Aviation, LLC for the opportunity to serve PDA as a
vendor at SkyHaven Airport; as we are excited and anxious to continue serving the tenant
aviation community at Skyhaven and the area at large.

Best Regards,

e oo Sirm Y

Co-Owner, Managing Partner Co-Owner,
Tom.Taviation@gmail.com Ginny.Taviation@gmail.com
703-932-7078 703-932-6267

T-Aviation, LLC. 120 South Rd

Tel 703-932-7078 Kensington, NH 03833

Tom. taviation@gmail.com




z
-
m

>

(o]
z

oi-
> m

c<
M x
Solunlt 72
o%|>»
o |~
-~
-2
—m
ol I

MOTION

Director Ferrini:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes Seacoast Newspapers, Inc. (“Seacoast”) and/or
Optima Dermatology Partners LLC to submit an application for a Special
Exception to permit testing laboratories and facilities as a permitted use at
111 New Hampshire Avenue, and authorizes the Executive Director to
negotiate and finalize a Lease Amendment with Seacoast to permit testing
laboratories and facilities as a permitted use at the pre‘mises at 111 New
Hampshire Avenue, conditioned upon the granting of the Special
Exception; all otherwise on terms and conditions substantially similar to
those set forth in the memorandum from Michael R. Mates, Engineering
Manager, dated October 6, 2022, and draft lease Amendment No. i,

attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2022\Seacoast Newspaper Inc. - Special Exception & Lease Amd (10-20-22).docx

OO0OO TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedeav.org

55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801



-
A

M

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801
DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORITY MEMORANDUM

To: Paul E. Brean, Executive Directorr?:.ﬁ

From: Michael R. Mates, P.E., Engineering Manager Hg-‘y(

Date: October 6, 2022

Subject: Special Exception for 111 New Hampshire Avenue

The PDA and Seacoast Newspapers, Inc. are parties to a ground lease concerning the development at 111
New Hampshire Avenue. For many years, Seacoast Newspapers has subleased a portion of the building at
111 New Hampshire Avenue to Convenient MD, LLC for its corporate offices. Convenient MD is planning to
move its corporate offices to a new Portsmouth location. Seacoast Newspapers, Inc. has notified the PDA
that it is in the process of subleasing the Convenient MD space to Optima Dermatology Partners (“Optima”).

Optima intends to utilize the space for two purposes: business offices and a testing laboratory related to its
dermatology practice.

When reviewing subtenant uses at Pease, we look to both permitted uses under PDA zoning and permitted
uses under a ground lease. Here, the PDA Land Use Controls allow for the business office use in the Industrial
Zone, however a testing laboratory use is only allowed in this zone as a special exception per Part 303-A.03.
This special exception will require Optima to submit a Special Exception Application to the City of Portsmouth
Zoning Board of Adjustment for consideration, if the PDA Board of Directors first approves of the submittal of
such an application. In terms of the ground lease, business office is a permitted use, however, the lease does
not currently permit a testing laboratory. As such, should Optima receive a special exception, the ground
lease would need to be amended to permit the laboratory use. Staff believes that Optima’s proposed use is
appropriate at this location and that Optima should be authorized to submit a Special Exception Application.
Consistent therewith, a lease amendment to add laboratory use should be authorized conditioned upon the
approval of the special exception.

Optima’s proposal also includes construction of a 5'+ wide by 15’+ long sidewalk from the existing sidewalk to
a new entry doorway it would construct on the building. Consistent with longstanding PDA procedure, this
site improvement can be approved administratively as long as any site changes are unlikely to have an impact
on traffic, safety, or intensity of use as determined by the applicable enforcement official, which in this case
is the PDA Engineering Manager. | have determined that the site changes (additional sidewalk) are unlikely
to have an impact on traffic, safety, or intensity of use, so an administrative approval of the site changes is
appropriate in this case. Consistent with PDA practice, | shared my determination with the Portsmouth
Planning Director, who agreed with my conclusion.

As additional background, upon completion of the fit up of the subleased space, Optima will require a
Certificate of Occupancy from the City of Portsmouth prior to occupancy.

At the October board meeting, please request approval for the submission of an Application for a Special
Exception to the City of Portsmouth Zoning Board of Adjustment to allow a testing labcratory use at 111 New
Hampshire Avenue, located in the Industrial Zone, and approval of a lease amendment to permit laboratory

use conditioned on receiving the special exception approval form the City of Portsmouth.
N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2022\111 NH Ave Special Expection.docx

OOO0O TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedev.org



LEASE AMENDMENT NO. 1

Lessor: Pease Development Authority (“Lessor” or “PDA”)
Lessee: Seacoast Newspapers, Inc. (“Lessee”)
Premises: 111 New Hampshire Avenue - Pease International Tradeport

Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Lease Date: December 23, 2005

This Lease Amendment No. 1 effective 3 2022 i.iay_.and between the
above referenced Lessor and Lessee: ‘ o, T S

WHEREAS, Seacoast Newspapers, Inc.: (“Seacoasl ) as Sublessee and Pease
Development Authority, as Sublessor entered into'a certain Sublease effective December 23, 2005
(the “Sublease™) for property located at 111 New Hampshire ‘Avenue, Pease International
Tradeport, consisting of 435,600 square feet (approxmlately 10 acres), Statutory Notice of
Sublease of which is recorded at the Rockmgham County Reglstry of Deeds at Book 4613, Page
1338 (the “Property™); B ’

WHEREAS, by Quitclaim Deed (and Exhlblts A-G, mclusnve) made and entered into on
October 15, 2003 and Quitclaim Deed dated September 16; 2005 (the "Deeds"), the government,
acting by and through the Secretary of the Air Force did grant to PDA the land and improvements
located in the City of Portsmouth, Town of Newington and Town of Greenland, as contemplated
by the Master Lease, Appllcatlon and Acceptances, which Deed included the Premises. In
accordance with the provisions of Artmle 3, Section 3.1 of the Sublease and the Deeds, the sublease
isnow a dlrect lease, (the "Lease“), v

WHEREAS 'LESSEE has requested and LESSOR has agreed to make certain
amendments to the Lease;- :

NOW THEREFORE Lessor and Lessee agree for good and valuable consideration, the

receipt and suﬂimency of whlch is hereby acknowledged, that the Lease be amended as set forth
below: : _

1. Artiele 9, Use of Leased Premises, Section 9.1, is deleted in its entlrety and replaced
with the following language:

9.1 The purposes for which Lessee may use the Leased Premises are business
office, testing laboratories and facilities, newspaper production facility,
and customary accessory uses thereto, including but not limited to
multimedia gathering and dissemination, printing, assembling, producing
and distributing its newspapers, print material and other media off-street
parking and loading, and such further accessory uses as are consistent



therewith and for no other uses without Lessor's prior written consent.
Lessee shall not use, or permit to be used, the Leased Premises for any
other purpose without the prior express written consent of Lessor.
Lessor's consent shall be subject to the execution of an appropriate
agreement which shall include a provision requiring the payment of
established fees and charges that may be applicable to any such additional
uses consented to by Lessor. Lessee is prohibited from any use of the
Leased Premises not specifically granted in this Section 9.1.

2. All other terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain in full force and effect and

shall continue to be binding upon Lessor and Lessee.

WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have executed this Lease Amendment No. 1
made effective ,2022.

Lessee: Seacoast Newspapers, Inc.

By:

Name:

Its:

Lessor: PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

By:
Name: Paul E. Brean
Its: Executive Director

(REMAINING PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK)



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM,; ss.

On this __day of _ 2022, before me, , a Notary Public
in and for said County and State, personally appeared Paul E. Brean, personally known to me (or
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the Executive Director of the Pease
Development Authority and on oath stated that he was authorized to execute this instrument and
acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes set forth herein.

Notary Publlc in and for sa1d County and State
Printed Name: "
My commiission explres

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF ROCKINHSM ss.

On this __ day of ,2022, beforc me, _ ko , a Notary Public
in and for said County and State, personally appeared ; , personally

known to me (or proved to me on the baS!s of sat;sfactory evidence) to be the

authorized to execute this'i 1nstrument and acknowledged it to be hls free and voluntary act for the uses
and purposes set forth hcrem : %

- Notary Public in and for said County and State
Printed Name:
My commission expires:

P:\Seacoast Newspapers\Lease\Lease Amend No 1.docx



A

NTE

55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

U_
- |+
(o}
z

Director Lamson:

MOTION

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors approves of and

authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract with Motorola,

for the purchase of four (4) portable radios at a cost not to exceed

$10,610.80;

in accordance with the memorandum of Chasen

Congreves, Manager of Airport Administration, dated October 11, 2022,

attached hereto.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8, Vill, the Board

justifies the waiver of the RFP requirement as Motorola is a State approved

vendor for the radio equipment.

Note:  This motion requires 5 affirmative votes.
Roll Call vote required.

N:\RESOLVES\2022\Airport - Radios.docx

OCOO TAKING

Y OU

THERE

www.peasedev.org



PEASE

AIRPORT 38 dirling Ave  Forismon
MANAGEMENT

Memo

To: Paul Brean, Executive Directo%

I’
From: Chasen Congreves, Manager of Airport Administration Z-

Date: 10/11/2022

Re: Digital Communications Upgrade

Recently, four mobile radios used within Pease Development Authority (“PDA”")
vehicles to communicate with the air traffic control tower, mutual aid, and co-workers,
stopped functioning and require immediate replacement.

PDA staff would like to purchase four mobile vehicle radios to replace the inoperable
units. The installation and programming of the equipment will be completed by the NH
Department of Safety and PDA personnel with no external labor fees. Motorola is an
approved State of New Hampshire vendor and holds state contract number 8001937
for provision of the associated equipment. As such, staff is also requesting authority

to waive the bid requirement. Please see the attached line item invoice for a total cost
of $10,610.80.

At the October 20, 2022, PDA Board of Director's meeting, please request authority
from the Board to waive the formal RFP process and to purchase four mobile vehicle

radios, along with the supporting accessories, under New Hampshire State Contract
8001937 in an amount not to exceed $10,610.80.

OOQO TAKING YOU THERE



19B13U0 dAN aY) 12d 1B UOIJIPUOI pue S
paljddy sjunoasig LNIOd INTVA OdSYN

Q3ddIHS SY 3DI0ANI WOYd St 1IN 'SINYIL
SAVA Q0€-ST ‘AH3IAIN3A
W02 sUQ[IN|OSe|0J010MW eys)Inio303s
S0SS-0£Z(8L6) dueysyins) 103§

: 1IVINOD 3Sv3Ild :ONIH3gy0
08'0L9'0L $ Iviol

00°08S S | oospT $ (%0 00'SYTS |¥ ¥7o 3DIAY3IS TVILNISST A€ ‘aav

08°68T S | sty S |%SE 00'ELS 14 CTM dINV3dd 34 ‘adv

09'TLT $ |oszy $ [o%se 00995 |¥ 1€89 LINVLSISIY 4ILVM MST UNdS :aav

0v'S0T S | seTs S [%se 00'6LS |V 7689 AINVISISTH YILYM VIO DIN ONVH HN3

g s| - S (%0 0005 |v €619 (LNVINdIOD d¥D SZd-NON) AINO daV :aav

00'658'T S | sevov S |%se 00'STLS | 1180 TVYNOILNIANOD SZd 3YVYMI40S :aav

09°'¥S $ | s9et $ |%se 00TZS |? 6629 791-8°0ST dOL 4004 IAVM ¢/T :aav

09°90¥'T s | so1se $ [%se 00'IY¥SS |¥ 0800V AQv3H 10¥.LNOD ZO XdV :aav

= sy - S [%0 000$ |¥ Yo IYYMLI0S AV3IH TOYLNOD XdV :aav

0z'0os8 $ | ssTie S |%s€ 00°/2ZES |V £9D WMM ZO LNNOW 310W3Y :aav

09'€6C°S $ | ov'EET $ |%s€ 00°9€0°2S |¥ NETMJESSHZZIN 4HA Q3DNVHN3I 00SPXdY

dHA Q3DNVYHN3 00StXdY

V101G "1X3°d 1s2@ 1S "ALD 13a0W NOILdI¥IS3a

10°A3PaSE3aA®SIN3IBU0I D

SET9-VEE

(€09) 4 6€76-99£ (£09) :M ££22-£56 (€09) 2

T08E0 HN ‘Yinows1iod ‘anuany auilly 9

3sDad 10 JOdUY [DUDIIDUIAIU| YINOLISLIOY

uojesisiujwpy Hodaiy jo 1a3euen

: saAa43uo) uasey)

zzoe/st/e :31va 2¥3INOLSND

VIOHOLOW @




74
-
m

>

o
z

55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

ol—
> m

e <
—mM|x
= L 4
o9|>
|-
-=
—m
=]

MOTION

Director Levesque:

The Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors
authorizes the Executive Director to exercise the last one-year option to
renew the contract with Piscataqua Landscaping and Tree Service, LLC,
effective November 1, 2022, for the purpose of providing landscaping,
tree, and snow removal services to the PDA, and approves the price
increases for certain provided services: all in accordance with the
memorandum of Ken Conley, Maintenance Manager, dated October 13,

2022, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2022\Piscataqua Landscaping and Tree Services, LLC Cost Increase- 10-20-22.docx

O00OOC TAKING YOU THERE

wWww.peasedev.org



>y

z
-t
m

25 International Drive, Portsmauth NH 03801

ol -

»m
<

Ml o
x|z
0°|>
2

Aml,
=€ -

Memorandum

To: Paul Brean, Executive DirectO}Q? ‘

From: Ken Conley, Maintenance Manager //7; e o /

Date: 10/13/2022 =
Subj: Piscataqua Landscaping Service Contract

The Pease Development Authority (“PDA™) has one option year remaining on its contract with
Piscataqua Landscaping & Tree Services, LLC (“Piscataqua”) for landscaping, tree service, and snow
clearing services, which PDA Maintenance would like to exercise effective, November 1, 2022,
through October 31, 2023. Since 2018, when the current contract was entered into, there have been
significant pricing increases in market and Piscataqua has requested to amend the pricing of various
services which they provide to the PDA, as set forth below.

Tree Maintenance: from $75.00 to $85.00 per tree

Other Work as Requested: from $50.00 to $55.00 per hour

Tree Trimming Bucket Truck: from $70.00 to $75.00 every 20 hours
Annuals:

o 6” from $6.15 to $6.80

o 4.5” from $3.75 to $4.75

o 1 Gallon Perennial from $9.00 to $14.00

. Sidewalk Clearing: $60.00 to $62.00 per man per hour

. Salt: reflection of current market price from $85.50 to $105.50 per ton

PDA Maintenance has reviewed the pricing amendment requests and believes they are
reasonable in light of current market conditions. As such, please request that the PDA Board of
Directors authorize the Executive Director to exercise PDA’s last one year option for landscaping and

snow services with Piscataqua Landscaping and Tree Services, LLC, with price increases as proposed
above, through October 31, 2023.

OOOCCO TAKING YOU THERE

Phone: 603.433.6088 Fax: 603.427.0433 www.peasedev.org



>\

INTERNATIONAL 55 Intarpational Drive Parkemoyth N (3801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM

TO: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors

FROM: Paul E. Brean, Executive Director

RE: Signage Report

DATE: October 11, 2022

******************************************************************************

In accordance with the “Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of
Minor Revisions to Existing Signs” PDA reports as follows:

1. Entity: Lonza Biologics
Location: 164 Corporate Drive
Summary: Modification of the existing monument sign at the entrance as well
as the building fagade sign to reflect the change in tenancy to
Lonza.
i Entity: RafterOne (fka Pixelmedia)
Location: 75 New Hampshire Avenue
Summary:  Modification of the existing sign, utilizing the same monument

sign base and the installation of new panels reflecting the name
change to RafterOne.

The Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of Minor Revisions to
Existing Signs also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this
instance, Director Fournier was consulted regarding the sign changes.

P\BOARDMTG\2022\Signage Report 10-20-22.docx

~

(OO TAKING YOU THERE

Phone: 603.433.6088 Fax: 603.427.0433 www.peasedev.org



.

o [
T

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY O
To: Paul E. Brean, Executive Directon’_&b
From: Mike Mates, P.E., Engineering Manager MM
Date: October 6, 2022
Subject: Sign Revisions Report for 164 Corporate Avenue and 75 New

Hampshire Avenue

In accordance with your authority under the “Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and
Approval of Minor Revisions to Existing Signs” adopted by the Board on June 20, 2005, I am
reporting the following:

Lonza Biologics as the new tenant at 164 Corporate Drive, previously occupied by John
Hancock, wishes to modify the existing monument sign at the entrance as well as the building
fagade sign to reflect the change in tenancy to Lonza. They will be using the existing monument
sign base and the fagade sign will be in the same location and similarly sized as the original.
The sign revisions are on the attached sign proof sheets.

Additionally, RafterOne, formally known as Pixelmedia, wishes to modify their signage located
at the 75 New Hampshire Avenue. The tenant will be using the same monument sign base and
installing new panels to reflect their name change to RafterOne. The tenant logo revisions were
approved by the building owner and are on the attached sign proof sheet.

These sign revisions meet the all of the following conditions:

1. In-kind replacement when required for maintenance; revision to sign graphics to
reflect a new name or logo for an existing tenant; or a revision to sign graphics
reflecting a change in tenancy.

2. No substantive change in size or style of sign.

3. Consistent with the terms and conditions of the original sign approval.

4. All other conditions of the PDA Land Use Controls are satisfied.

Director Fournier has reviewed both of the tenants’ sign revisions and has given his approval.
At this month’s Board meeting, please report the revisions of the 164 Corporate Drive signs
and the 75 New Hampshire Avenue sign.

N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2022\75 NH & 164 Corp sign report Lonza & RafterOne.docx

OO0O0OOC TAKING YOU THERE

Www.peasedev.org



#40r 95996 # 31000 2 000602022 HN LINows 104 saiBojolg eZ607 IWeN 311

. VIR :Q34IN0Y 3INVIGYA 0 133 34vnds oK
Q N .—.wm I w 1334 34UN0S WLBL .

N004Z @37 HUM NDLLYHIWATI

Ad02 S53HOQY JNAHOV LHM 82€L GISIONI /M 10V8 - V38 35ve
OV - V38 b ST
SE30VdS HLIM GIINNOH SYILEIT TINNVHO LITOTVH - XOV18 95 .E 4d0d
ILHM V3~ IV 2/) L ANV
3LIHM 9S - V38 3L/

NSIS INIWANOW 111 031

NSIS INIWNNOW - SNOLLYD141034S ‘84N

IE
Ll
=

S Zs
EE el — aauinday 4S €CEE 0 X W1€ TIVLSNI
S 28 = SIS
S == 4S 05 0L X .G IAOWIY ..
” m a "AILVYNINATT 38 THM NOIS 'NOIS SNOIATHd SY INIHd 1004 INVS NI NOIS TTVISNE
= = — "Ad02
m m e NV YIQWNN SSIHOY HNIALIY Q3SIONI /M JEVE MIA0D 3104 ¥ IAVH THM NOIS
o [} “SYIDVAS /M OILNNOW SHILLIT TINNVHD LITOTVH
= £S5 WNOISNIWIQ /M NBIS LUINANOI 3/0 GILVNINATY G5 (1) TLSH! ¥ SanLavdnine
) I6VA 2LIINDD ONY S1504/150¢
S 33£S JAVS 'NOIS ININNNGA ND0ONYH NHOM. SNILSDE (1) 3504500 ¥ Je0m3y
m = YHDM 40 34028
52
=53 | 6 _
=3 _
SES 140} 3LYHOJHOD 4

Ad0O Q3SIONI

ML 3AIHA 31vHOdHO00 91

HINNVITY IV N —./k
NSIS SNLLSP
- RPZU O™
Ok Je
a
F i 1
S0 U'THOIWH ~ _ _
% 8 .A # I L8 ! ;
i 001 1

TRl .0-.1=.2/1 ‘3138



LR A

ON 3 53 TJ “034 3k3 OLOR4 ON O3 S3A 1 “03H %010 IWIL
ON (1534 8 HOLIMS 30AY3S A¥G D) drvva O 13 M :KOLLYDET ONCD S3A M3y M

TG T 'SdWV T GD3H sundHId sy O
027 SLIDA 07 'SdWY T :03d SLNaYIa KN m
SHIHLO ] 0THYE T :Ag NHOM WIBL3T [e314j92)2 3js
E BT CEEE T T

‘1334 38¥NS WI0L

HO0LL Q37 UM NOLLYHIWATT
Y39 3LHM S2L° X .8 IV
SHAIVAS ALIHM .2/} ) $430¥dS

YO8 9/S 0. ‘SNULIY/I3VL
SEIL

B41T 0111 - SHOMVALI0348:

zeNne1e

JAIH0 I1YHOHOD #9L

10860 HN ‘HLNOWSLHOd

"SHINOYE NO SHILIIT TINNVHD LJT0WH 40 L3S {1) TIVISKI ® JUALIVIRNYN

‘NOILYAZT3
INOY4 WOUS SHILI3T 1INNVHS JHOOSHYH NHOC DNILSIXT (1} 3504510 ® IM0HTY

39 | | MHOMA0

g
e

4S8 G219 MIN TTVLSNI
A4S 26 ONILLSIX3 IAONWTA

@
3
=
m
]
=
m
ol
=
=

83 -4INGISI0

-
F
—
o
(=1

oLITs |

—

. 0 o o

IVNOILYNYILN

il

Hiin

]

i

a3dind3y
A3RYNS 3118

<

DZUOT

_ HIE TS _

Sl l

NOILYA313 INOHd

J01=.2/1 TS



¥9¥609022 INOYILAVY IWYN T

v9¥6 -4 310n0

01 133HS

Q3ALNIHd ATTVLIBIO .
AIY3A 01 IN3D - 31NAIHSS HOT03

Wil

2 =3
N O £E “L3NIBYD IS LNJWNNOW
L — SNILSHE NI QI TIVASNI 38 0L S0V ‘G311ddY SIHAYYES TANIA GUNINA
S = rrm ATTVLEENG HLIM S0V NV ZLHM HOTHL9H/E (2) TNLSHI 9 JURLOVINKYN
=
— W e w | "LINIBYD NDIS INTWANOW DNILSIXT NI S30V (2) 3504510 2 JADW3Y
= =
|
=2 YHOM 40 34038
gg &
== m
m
(2]
=
—_
o re
= =
R aUOIaUDY
= B
m
o =
e 3
RES
|
:ajeq uononpold
‘aleq :Buyepdn M3IHA LHOIN QLY INWIS

‘aleq s9jes

:8leq ubisag
‘ER]

TWADUAY LIIr(Hd

NOIS ONLLSIXA

:O.. _.H:

, uﬂ.’.. e -
————

oL

2-M0
~ m
[ s F2
no | O : 22
| = =7
=
| B
_

Sl

OA 8L

L3NIEVI SNLLSIX] .0-8

U O SRS D



>
wn
m

55 international Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

z
=
m
o
z

ol-
>m
c<
il e
T |z
o%|>
v |-
-=
- m
==

MOTION

Director Anderson:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of the addition of a 5.7 square foot sign below the address of the
City of Portsmouth’s ground sign at 97 Grafton Drive: all in accordance
with the memorandum of Michael R. Mates, P.E., Engineering Manager

dated October 11, 2022, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2022\Signs - COP 97 Grafton Drive Water Treament Plant (10-20-2022).docx

OO0OOO TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedev.org



>

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MEMORANDUM

To: Paul E Brean, Executive Directcﬂ(‘ nﬁ;
M

From: Michael R. Mates, P.E., Engineering Manager ”?—'\
Date: October 11, 2022
Subject: Sign at Water Treatment Plant, 97 Grafton Drive

In March of 2021, the Board approved a 24 square foot sign for the water treatment plant located at
97 Grafton Drive. The City of Portsmouth has recently added an additional 5.7 square foot sign below
the address as shown in the attached photos and is seeking formal approval.

As you can see, the sign includes the “Think Blue!” mascot. According to the City’s website “...the
Portsmouth Department of Public Works introduced “Blue, the Happy Fish” as a mascot for its efforts
to educate the public about increasing their water use efficiency and protecting Portsmouth’s water
resources.”

The proposal conforms to the PDA Zoning Regulations and staff recommends approval.

At the October Board of Directors meeting, please ask the Board to approve the City of Portsmouth’s
sign request for the water treatment plant at 97 Grafton Drive.

N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2022\Sign Addition 97 Grafton WTP.docx

O000O TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedev.org



an|g pauled :S191197 aNjg Juiyl Buuana [AUIA

HILVMINHOLS - HILVMILSYM - HALVM HNUINOWSUOdaN | gUIYLE)

jon[g yury L, o.y

IUYM pa1uIRy ysi4 pajuid jenbig
9|qqad BinIxaf anbiyddy b/

INASPIanuec

o

'

; (Ysy/m ,GT) .ZT X .G'BS /6#
uojjeas ; .
| AuQ UOHEL) L6 | (Usy/m ,GT) .ZT X b9 ‘GET# 0218
— !
T Ayjuend

ATINO siaply :adAL
ianig Yuiyg qof
juswieal] 19jeM Isead :Auedwod

uonIppy 0307 an|g yulyL
usIS Allj1oe4 JUsWIleal] JO1BAN BSedd



L6848
L626€
18809

7€0'82

alAa
ZT0Z Ad

TE6' 19203
86/'Z1€
SEB'PRE
£8b°061
086°05T
+18°601
651'v6
0T/'8€T

756611
9TH'161

vET'SET

1€9°042
£56'792%

TTOoT Ad

£TH'0€T
+98'L€
795611
p19°LE

ala
€207 Ad

BET 7564

897'£6€

628'09€
0’962

€C0C Ad

S334 WOOY ANV d00d

SaNOVIT
AVid INJWYNENOL

65-0¢ SdNOYD

SNOILLONNS
3s¥N0d /8n1d

aNNC
AV

dV
HOYVYIW
Advnya3d
AHVYNYL

¥38W3030
HIHWIAON
¥380100

L EEINEREEL
Lsnony
Anc

S3TVS SSOUD
8 1A

06599 WLOL
T0T8% HIAWIWNON
685'8T ¥3AGWIAW
~SAN ¥ TC0C
£59T9 WV10L
866k HIGWIWNON
6SE'ET YIGWIW
- 0C
BSEELTS TE87C
L7153 =
SeTé
‘62b't$
09g’cTs
085'9zZ$
£€ST'ves
e
9/ 'v1$
vHT'v$
9z¢e$ 605°T$
S16% [T8%
8511 § S6+$
TTOT Ad €207 Ad

YIGWIAWNCN =
YIGWAW =

53d AON 150 d3s ony anc NDC AW Y MW

~1 00070

——— s R UK

Looo0'TT

aNNe

AV

ddv
HOUVI
AdvNyea3d
AdVNNVL
¥38W3230
YIFWIAON
4380100
YW L43S
1snany

ANC

SINNIATYH
YOLVINWIS
4709

(NosY3s) SANNOY YIATWIWNON / ¥IGWIW ZT0T

99 ob 8¢ SAVA NIVY
STE79 06599 45979 A3IAVId SAONNOY
NOSY¥3s NoOsy3s NOSV3S
020T TZ0T 0T
000'F1 00'7T 00°01 000'8 000’9 000" 0007 0
T m ] I = 1 mr wv
M N
_ | | 3 | }
120 m
[4qva |

(NOsY3s) @3IAVd 4109 40 SANNO

V1VAd OSNIXHVIWHONAIE 3SAN0D 4709 A3




23aa MON Do 1d3s o ang NAC AVH Hdv VK L:EE] NV

WSd 18 $5320Y SInoH 13y buitAuag n \ 00uor
&mu ] Nwmhmlll.l.lllllll 000'0¥

—

o
Pedwy uey suedLUNH ] -\\\.\\\‘Rm‘uu...\lh.wi 000/09
UCN_GO__< u 796'TL - o
Aepoiils  =m ;
shemuy Aouojuy m ol
ebniegsnqiivy  m 000'07
sdo3s |ediuyday jjjng yealg = 7707 it T 0707 —amm

UORBIAY [BJaUudD)

%6T
%< |esawwWo) €£9'99 d.LA sjudwdueldu3z zzoz
il - L 189'p syuswaueidug [e3o)
b'p20'€CT'T suojjes |e3ol 8/1'7 suawaueldug passvey)
¢C 151964 $334 3I9vMO14 13nd €0SC Sjuswaue|du3 psjnpayos
L0'6€$ @ suonoesuel] GGy e0t SIN3IW3INVIdN3
¢SLLT$ ONDIIVd INNIATY

CC20C ¥439N311d3S ONIAN3 AOI¥3d
140d3d LH0dUIV



AIRPORT 36 Airline Ave. Portsmouth, NH 03801
E

NT 603.433.6536

Memorandum

To:  John Meehan, Lead Airport Operations Specialist /
From: Sandy McDonough, Airport Community Liaison, C\\
Date: 10/11/2022

Subj: Noise Report for September, 2022

The Portsmouth International Airport at Pease received one noise complaint in September, 2022,
when Runway 34 was in use. :

- On September 23, 2022, a noise complaint was submitted by a resident of Rye, New
Hampshire concerning two based aircraft flying into Portsmouth International Airport
between 12:00 AM and 4:00 AM. The caller tracked the two PC12 aircraft flights and
included their altitudes. The caller was not concerned about the altitudes of the two aircraft
just nighttime flying in general. Both aircraft were flying within the traffic pattern altitudes
published in the Airport Facilities Directory.

OO0OO0OO TAKING YOU THERE



55 international Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

Director Parker:

MOTION

The Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors

approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to expend funds in the

amount of $236.00 for legal services rendered to the Pease Development

Authority from Anderson Kreiger as outside counsel for Federal Regulatory

Advice from August 1, 2022 through August 31, 2022.

N:\RESOLVES\2022\Legal Services 10-20-2022.docx

OO0OO0O0O TAKING

www.peasedev.org

THERE



ANDERSON
KREIGER

50 Milk Street, 21st Floor
Boston, MA 02109
(617) 621-6500
EIN: 04-2988950

September 16, 2022

Pease Development Authority

Anthony Blenkinsop, Deputy Director/General Counsel
55 International Drive

Portsmouth, NH 03801

Reference # 143812 1 1047-4136

In Reference To: Federal Regulatory Advice

Professional Services

Attorney/Paralegal Summary

Name Hours
David S. Mackey 1.30
Payments

08/30/2022 Payment CK#036147

Sub-total Payments:

Hours Amount

Rate Amount

590.00 767.00
7,173.00

$7,173.00

Total Current Billing: $767.00
Previous Balance Due: ($531.00)

s

Total Now Due: $236.00



>

o
z

55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

c—
>»m
c<
™M=
T |z
o9|>
o |4
7z
—m
|

Director Ferrini:

MOTION

The Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors hereby

authorizes the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the Northeast

Chapter of AAAE to be the host airport of its 2024 Annual Conference on a date

yet to be determined in 2024 and to be the premier sponsor for a fee up to

$60,000; all in accordance with the memorandum from Paul E. Brean, Executive

Director, dated October 5, 2022, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2022\NEC AAAE Annual Conference 2024 Host & Sponsor (10-20-22).docx

OOOO TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedev.org



‘{(

>
n
m

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

Memo

To: Board of Directors

From: Paul E. Brean, Executive Director Qﬁ
Date: 10/5/22

Re: NCE/AAAE 2024 Annual Conference

The Northeast Chapter of the American Association of Airport Executives NEC/AAAE) serves
to support and develop leaders in the aviation industry through education and the creation of
networking and professional development opportunities that bring added value to members
within an environment of integrity and camaraderie. Pease Development Authority has been a
longtime member of the Chapter and I currently serve on the Chapter’s Executive Committee as
a member of the Board of Directors.

Several members of our Airport Staff participate on a variety of Chapter committees involving
regulatory compliance, environmental initiatives, and airport development. Additionally our
airport personnel participate in Chapter sponsored training and accreditation programs focused
on airport administration, aviation security, and airfield maintenance.

The Chapter has invited Portsmouth International Airport to host the 2024 NEC/AAAE 65th
Annual Conference in Portsmouth, NH. Historically, this is a three day conference in early
August with an itinerary focusing on current and proposed aviation policy, environmental and
sustainable initiatives, and a review of specific aviation projects within the Northeast.
Approximately 350 attendees representing airports, airlines, regulatory agencies, and aviation
companies will visit Portsmouth International Airport, the city of Portsmouth, and the greater
seacoast area to collaborate as an industry.

There is a close partnership between the Chapter and host airport for the annual conference. The
attached Sponsorship Agreement clearly outlines the respective roles and responsibilities of both
the NEC and host airport. Most significant is a premier sponsor value ranging between $35,000 -
$60,000 in the form of cash, conference registrations, or in-kind sponsorship. As a past
conference committee member for several NEC events, I am confident PDA can offset a

OO00) TAKING YOU THERE
Phone: 603.433.6088 Fax: 603.427.0433 www.peasedev.org



significant portion of this expense through in-kind sponsorship. Remaining obligations under the
sponsorship agreement would be funded in the FY25 airport marketing budget. I have no doubt
this event would be a fantastic marketing event for Portsmouth International Airport and the
entire seacoast area.

At the October 20, 2022, Pease Development Authority Board of Directors meeting, please
authorize me to enter into a sponsorship agreement with Northeast Chapter NEC/AAAE and to
allocate up to $60,000 dollars in marketing funds to host the 2024 NEC/AAAE Annual

Conference in Portsmouth, NH.

P\BOARDMTG\2022\AAAE Conference Memo (10-20-22).doc



NORTHEAST CHAPTER

NEC

= IYY\d

PRESIDENT
Melinda Montgomery, A.A.E

VICE PRESIDENT
Zachary Sundquist, A.A.E.

TREASURER
Darren Large, A.A.E.

SECRETARY
Derek Martin, MBA, A.A.E.

PAST PRESIDENT
Carlton Braley Jr., A.AE.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
David W. Jones, P.E., C.M.
Kurt Rodman, A.A.E.
David Staples, A.A.E.
Jason Terreri, AP, A.A.E.
Paul Brean, C.M.

Chad Nixon

Stephen Williams

AAAE NATIONAL DIRECTORS

Melinda Montgomery, A.A.E.
Scott McMahon, A.A.E.

REGIONAL EXAMINER
Marshall Stevens, A.A.E.

NEC AAAE Annual Conference
Roles and Responsibilities of NEC and Host Airport

The Northeast Chapter AAAE (NEC) closely collaborates with the host airport
for its annual conference. Outlined below are the respective roles and
responsibilities of both the NEC and Host Airport.

NEC Roles and Responsibilities

NEC is the conference underwriter. The procurement and purchase of
most goods and services is conducted by the NEC. These include but are
not limited to hotel contracts, food & beverage orders, event/venue
management, audio/visual, awards, transportation to events as required,
signage and registration materials,

NEC is the conference manager. Management includes but is not
limited to planning, marketing, registration, printing, assembling
materials, surveys, accounting, procurement, and purchasing. NEC also
solicits and sells exhibitor space/booths and sponsorships.

NEC develops the conference agenda including the keynote speaker as
well as the Conference theme and tagline. The NEC'S Executive
Committee largely develops the conference agenda. Input and
coordination from the Host Airport is welcomed.

Host Airport Roles and Responsibilities

Host Airport will coordinate with NEC for the appearance of a Military
Color Guard and National Anthem performance for the Opening Session.
Host Airport may invite a public official (s) to welcome the delegates at
the Opening Session.
Host Airport will assist as necessary in securing key industry leaders as
speakers for the General Sessions.
Host Airport will provide airport staff to actively participate on the
Conference Committee. -
o Committee should consist of the following sub committees

= Presenters

= Social Events

*  Volunteers
Host Airport is encouraged to provide welcome signage at the airports
[typically placed in baggage claim areas) to assist participants upon
arrival to the airport.
Host Airport will staff an exhibit booth to promote its facilities.
The exhibit booth will be provided without charge by NEC.
Host Airport will provide a tour of its airport[s) which will be
included in the conference program.

Northeast Chapter of the American Association of Airport Executives
230 Washington Ave Ext. Suite 101 | Albany, NY 12203 | 518-313-1141 | info@necaaae.org



NORTHEAST CHAPTER

NEC

S AMEES

PRESIDENT
Melinda Montgomery, A.A.E

VICE PRESIDENT
Zachary Sundquist, A.A.E.

TREASURER
Darren Large, A.A.E.

SECRETARY
Derek Martin, MBA, A.A.E.

PAST PRESIDENT
Carlton Braley Jr., A.A.E.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
David W. Jones, P.E., C.M.
Kurt Rodman, A.A.E.
David Staples, AA.E.
Jason Terreri, IAP, A A.E.
Paul Brean, C.M.

Chad Nixon

Stephen Williams

AAAE NATIONAL DIRECTORS
Melinda Montgomery, A.A.E.
Scott McMahon, AA.E.

REGIONAL EXAMINER
Marshall Stevens, A.A.E.

 Host Airport will provide airport staff to support NEC staff at
specific areas and times throughout the conference for the
purposes of delegate and exhibitor registration, directional
assistance, airport tour, bus loading, etc.

* Host Airport is typically the premier sponsor at a value ranging
between $35,000 - $60,000 in the form of cash, conference
registrations or in-kind sponsorship, (or via a combination of these

options).
I, agree to the aforementioned
stipulations.
Host
City:
Date:
Signature:

Northeast Chapter of the American Association of Airport Executives

230 Washington Ave Ext. Suite 101 | Albany, NY 12203 | 518-313-1141 | info@necaaae.org




>

z
—
m
@)
z

55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

ol
> m
c<
-M|=
T |z
ol b
o |-
-=
—m
<Z >
= |-

Director Levesque:

MOTION

In accordance with the provisions of Section 3.11 of the Second

Amendment to By-Laws of the Pease Development Authority (“PDA”), the

PDA Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive

Director to create and fund, two full-time benefited positions: 1.) a PDA

Director of Operations; and 2.) an Executive Administrative Assistant; all in

accordance with the memorandum of Paul E. Brean, Executive Director,

dated October 12, 2022 attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2022\Create and Fund Dir of Ops and Ex Admin Asst Positions 10-20-22.docx

O0O0O0O TAKING

www.peasedev.org

THERE



A

55 International Drive Portsmouth NH 03801

4
-
m
(o]

2
—1"’12

c"
> m

c<

M|z
S U 1>
o®|>»
’,"0—1
-<2>
|-

Memorandum

To:  PDA Board of Directors

From: Paul Brean, Executive Director

CC: Tanya Coppeta, Human Resources

Date: 10/12/2022

Subj: New positions: PDA Director of Operations & Executive Administrative Assistant

Over recent years, the Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) has undergone some significant changes with
the retirement of a number of long-standing employees. One of my objectives since assuming the role of
Executive Director in 2020 has been to examine the PDA organizational chart and identify areas where the
organization can be strengthened in order to better meet the goals and objectives of the PDA Board.
Throughout 2022, I have worked closely with Human Resources Manager Tanya Coppeta to examine staff
positions and responsibilities. We have identified four existing positions where responsibilities will be
shifted and job titles changed, as well as the need for two new positions. These situations are described in
greater detail below. Creation of the two new positions requires the approval of the PDA Board of Directors.

Four current position job description enhancements/title changes:

Environmental Manager (formerly Environmental Coordinator): This position will be tasked with
increasing PDA’s involvement in sustainable initiatives, overseeing compliance issues, and educating staff
regarding environmental issues.

Director of Aviation Planning and Compliance (Formerly Planning and Compliance Manager): With
recent changes in PDA’s Engineering Department, an individual with PDA and airport institutional
knowledge to liaise with NHANG and the FAA is needed in our Engineering Department as our new
Engineering Director transitions to his new position. The Director of Aviation Planning and Compliance
will assume this responsibility, as well as oversee certain airport related contracts and agreements currently
housed in Engineering.

Purchasing Agent/AP Clerk (Formerly Receptionist/AP Clerk): In order to streamline and bring
consistency to PDA’s purchasing operations, our current Receptionist/AP Clerk position will transition to a
role combining Purchasing Agent/AP duties. We anticipate hiring a part time employee as our new
receptionist.

Airport Operations Manager (Formerly Manager of Airport Administration): As explained in further
detail below, I am seeking approval for the creation of the position of PDA Director of Operations. In
anticipation of the creation of this new position with oversight over the entirety of PDA operations, the

OOOO TAKING YOU THERE
Phone: 603.433.6088 Fax: 603.427.0433 www.peasedev.org



>y

55 International Drive Portsmouth NH 03801

(o}
z

o
> m
c<
M=
=z
o%|>

0|
~
==
-m

=S| -

Manager of Airport Administration position will be transitioned to an Airport Operations Manager, who will
be responsible for oversight of all daily operations at Portsmouth International Airport.

Two new full-time, benefitted positions:

Pease Development Authority Director of Operations: This new position will assume responsibility for
oversight of day-to-day operations issues for the PDA. This position will work closely with the Executive
Director across all units of the PDA.

Executive Administrative Assistant: This new position will oversee PDA’s administrative functions, as
well as create, implement, and disseminate standards for PDA documents. This position will hold regular
meetings with PDA administrative staff to address administrative issues or questions.

At this time, all job duty realignments, title changes, and new FT, benefitted positions have been funded in
the PDA FY 2023 budget. Detailed job descriptions will be prepared for all positions.

At the October 20, 2022, meeting of the Board, please authorize the addition of the two full-time
benefitted positions of PDA Director of Operations and Executive Administrative Assistant.

Thank you for your consideration and support.

OOOO TAKING YOU THERE

Phone: 603.433.6088 Fax: 603.427.0433 www.peasedev.org



Division of Ports and Harbors Advisory Council
555 Market St.

Portsmouth, NH 03801

Tel 603-436-8500

Fax 603-436-2780

PORT ADVISORY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 14, 2022 6:00 PM

PRESENT: Roger Groux, Chair

Brad Cook, Vice-Chair

Erik Anderson

Mike Donahue

Chris Holt - :
Geno Marconi, Director, PDA-DPH
Grant Nichols, Assistant Port Director

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM

APPROVE MINUTES
Erik made a motion to accept the May 11, 2022 minutes, Brad seconded, no further
discussion, the council voted and the motion carried.

FINANCE REPORT

The Division is running in the black. The main pier (Market St.) is not open due to the
rehabilitation project, there should be no loss of income due to the closure. Although
construction will still be ongoing, the pier will be open again in October for salt ships.

PISCATAQUA RIVER VESSEL TRANSIT REPORT
The May report was presented. Chris reported that it was a slow month, other ports
(Portland, Boston, and Penobscot Bay) seem to be slow as well.

. DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Marconi reported and presented materials from the May 21, 2022 PDA Board Meeting
which included the following items:
¢ Reports
e Commercial Mooring for Hire, Great Bay Yacht Club
e Rye Harbor Informational Summary
* Rye Fuel System, Sump purchase
e Commercial Mooring Transfer, Kimball to Kimball
e Approvals
¢ Army Corp of Engineers, use of facility for Hampton Jetty project
Appledore Marine, 6 month contract extension
Right of Entry, 381 Constructions
BUILD mitigation efforts, ARM fund payment

Geno passed around photos of repairs made to the Hampton docks, which are now
completed, the completed paving and painting of the driveway in Rye, an aerial view of
Page 1 0of 3



6.

8.

the Portsmouth Fish Pier (also completed), and lastly an aerial photo of the Market St.
Marine Terminal main pier showing the beginning of the construction efforts (BUILD
Grant).

NEW BUSINESS

The PDA Board will be presented with a request (in packet) to create a new position of
Assistant Director of the Division of the Ports and Harbors (APD) at their June 15%
meeting (tomorrow). After discussion, which included the importance of the Port’s role
in the Navy Yard projects and the increased activity at the Divisions facilities, Bill made
a motion to strongly support the addition of an APD. Chris H. seconded. A vote was
taken, all were in favor, with one member (Erik Anderson) abstaining from the vote,
citing that he will vote at the PDA meeting tomorrow.

Geno spoke on the Master Plan for the Rye Harbor Marine Facility, proposed by the PDA
Board, and provided a copy of the Statute, RSA 12-G:43, which outlines the purpose of
the Division. The Council will likely be asked to submit their recommendations for
guidelines for the Master Plan at some point and asked the Council to review this RSA as
a reminder.

OLD BUSINESS
The earliest fuel could be available at Great Bay Marine is July 15™.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

e Business Development/FTZ- Discussion surrounded Off Shore Wind and Mike
reported that the 3 state consortium was reconvened by BOEM, and the first
meeting was done by ZOOM. Things are moving along quickly, despite the
unknowns. As of May 19" the leases will be out by the end of 2024. Prior to that
they will act on Maine’s request for a research array, which will be of significant
size. BOEM has a mandate to get the units out there. Massachusetts has identified
Salem and Massport as facilities that could accommodate the large cargo needs
for Offshore Wind. Salem is currently being developed toward that end. Two NH
bills passed recently to help keep the efforts moving, 1 outlines the criteria to
participate in purchasing, and the second allows coastal zone management to
participate under federal authority outside of the 3 mile limit. Maine has identified
Searsport as a location to support the offshore wind industry. Federal
stakeholders have significant concerns. Further discussion included talks on the
purchase agreements, the federal money that Maine received, and the availability
of leasing areas. There is a 45 day comment period for any areas being
considered for offshore wind leases. The Coast Guard went on record with
concerns about Maine’s proposal. The Coast Guards Port Access Study is in the
works, keep an eye out for more information. Roger reported that Senator
Watters is planning to set up an Offshore Wind Summit in the Portsmouth area,
which will include a tour of the river, in September. The offshore wind local
group meeting will be held July 11%.

e Dredging-Chris reported that there is a rock on the line of the Turning Basin
dredge area. The ACOE has not signed off on the Turning Basin project yet and

Page 2 of 3



9

10.

11.

so the ships are still being turned in the original turning basin. No new
information for dredging the simplex shoal or Hampton.

¢ Fisheries- Considering all the people that will be impacted by the offshore wind, it
was a disappointing turnout from the fishing community at the Offshore Wind
meeting. Commercial operators are starting to get set up, but costs are up on
everything, and some locals are trying to catch bait locally to help with costs.
Supply chain issues are impacting availability for boat parts (such as filters &
lube oil).

» Government-The Round Island Regatta is Aug 27" from noon to 4 pm. Geno
mentioned the Division is meeting with City Manager and her group about
parking for the tall ship event, which is being held Aug 11-14®, The meeting is
next Wed at 2:45 PM. , ,

* Moorings- There is an administrative appeal hearing next week for someone who
lost his mooring during this last renewal period.

e Recreational Piers-Brad reported the Division facilities are up and running.
Weather & price of fuel has negativity impacted the recreational activity. The 6-
pack charter vessels cost about $1000 for a full day trip. The advance bookings
are down and it appears both the large (whale watches, harbor cruises) and small
operators are consolidating trips in an effort to take less trips out to save on
expenses.

PUBLIC COMMENT °

Peter Welch (Newington) asked about the New Castle Bridge replacement project, Geno
will reach out to NH DOT. Roger reported that the letter regarding the water line under
the General Sullivan Bridge. Sylvia Cheever (Rye Harbor Lobster Pound) was in
attendance and asked with the new driveway configuration in Rye will any flex parking
be available in Rye. Geno reported that the flex parking moved inside the guardrail in the
staff parking section. Each shack will have 1 spot (but not assigned a specific spot). If
the shacks spot is taken, the customers will be directed to the paid parking area. Efforts
will be made to accommodate any customers that want to visit the harbor short term
seeking information etc. Erik commended Del Record for all the hard work on cleaning
up the Commercial side of Rye Harbor.

PRESS QUESTIONS
There were no members of the press present.

ADJOURNMENT
Prior to adjournment Roger reminded the Council that there are no meetings in July or

August. Chris H. made a motion to adjourn and Erik seconded. The meeting adjotrned
at 7:20 PM.

Page 3 of 3



Division of Ports and Harbors Advisory Council
555 Market St.

Portsmouth, NH 03801

Tel 603-436-8500

Fax 603-436-2780

PORT ADVISORY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2022 6:00 PM

PRESENT: Roger Groux, Chair
Brad Cook, Vice-Chair
Erik Anderson
Mike Donahue
Chris Holt
Bill McQuillen
Chris Snow
Geno Marconi, Director, PDA-DPH
Grant Nichols, Assistant Port Director

1. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM

oA APPROVE MINUTES
Bill made a motion to accept the June 15, 2022 minutes, Chris H. seconded, no further
discussion, all members were in favor and the motion passed.

B FINANCE REPORT
There were no questions on the finance report, Bill made a motion to accept the report into
the record. Chris H. seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed.

4, PISCATAQUA RIVER VESSEL TRANSIT REPORT
The June, July and August reports were presented. Traffic has been moderate for the
summer. Dec, Jan, Feb, March will be fairly busy. Discussion included the 3 coal barges
with about 17,000 tons each to the Schiller Station, the coal is being trucked to Bow, NH.

S DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Marconi reported on items from the June and August 2022 PDA Board Meeting which
included the following items:
¢ From the PDA Board Meeting, June 16, 2022
¢ Reports ;
e Commercial Mooring Transfers & Commercial Moorings for Hire
* Andy Widen, Charter Right of Entry, Rye Harbor
* Portsmouth Fish Pier, Change order 10, $9,915.86
» Harbormaster position, Rye Harbor, Judy Dubois retired from full-time
work, the Division hired Mandy Huff to take her place. Judy is working
with Mandy and training her on the administrative duties. Additionally,
there is a new harbormaster in Hampton, Don Barnard left and Chris
Devine filled that position.
e Rye Police Detail Report

Page 1 of 4



e Approvals
¢ Right of Entry, Rye Harbor, Independent Boat Haulers
e Morton Salt, request for deferred payment
e Assistant Port Director position-Grant Nichols

e From the PDA Board Meeting, August 18, 2022
¢ Reports
e Commercial Mooring Transfers & Commercial Moorings for Hire
e Portsmouth Fish Pier, Change order 10, additional items, $2,513.00
e Hampton Water Line repairs
e Right of Entry, Swell Oyster, Farm Tours
e Approvals
e Right of Entry, XI Northeast Fisheries, Portsmouth Fish Pier
e Hampton floats, Change Order 1, Riverside & Pickering-original
estimate, ARPA funds award $560,000. Phase [, replace commercial
floating docks and concrete dock. Phase II, replace remaining floats
which will be installed in the spring of 2023.
e Functional Replacement, Amendment 1, Marine Engineering
e Delegation of Authority, BUILD Project Construction Change Orders
e Riverside & Pickering Marine Contractors-2 projects
= Portsmouth Fish Pier, Fender Pile replacement (6)
»  Burge Wharf-Guide Pile re-set

Prior to the proceeding, Roger recognized Bill McQuillen on his promotion to City of Portsmouth
Fire Chief.

6.

NEW BUSINESS

A presentation on Offshore Wind was given by Grant Nichols and Tom Reis, the 2 had just
attended a 2 day seminar called FLOTE in Portland, ME. The detailed presentation lasted
about an hour. Discussion included the role the Port of NH will play, the “Request for
Interest” that BOEM has introduced (deadline Oct 3'), the NH Task Force, timelines, Jones
Act requirements, floating turbines vs. fixed turbines, leases of OSW areas, impacts on the
job market, and all of the infrastructure that goes along with the OSW industry (ex:
availability of land). Tom described the size of the units which are the size of 2 soccer fields
and will not fit underneath the bridges once assembled. The units are assembled in sections
on land, constructed on a platform then floated out to the location for placement and
anchoring. Pier facilities require 6000 psi at a minimum for assembly purposes. Miles and
miles of high voltage DC cables will be needed to support each turbine. A factory in SC is
currently being built to provide cable. Supply chain and material shortages will be epic, both
on the east and west coast. China put in 14GW of wind turbine power last year. The NH Port
could be a place used to support Operation and Maintenance once the turbines are installed
as this will be a permanent maritime job to maintain these units. The Port could also be used
as a “tie in point”. The insurance process and funding mechanisms are tragically undefined
at this point. Cost of the units need to be brought down, there is about a 20 year life cycle on
the units. There is a pilot program that Maine is doing but it appears that things will not
happen quickly, especially regarding permitting. Input sessions are being held. A

Page 2 of 4



cooperative approach will be needed across the states to be successful. Service work is done
by smaller boats, about 60’ and less than 100 tons. A graphic was shown on the big screen to
show the area in the Gulf of Maine that is proposed for the wind farm. There is an epic
amount of raw materials that go into each unit as well. Further discussion included US oil
use and US oil reserves (running low), and Hydropower. Bottom line, it seems the push now
should be to get electricity working and address the challenge of replacing the US
dependency on oil. Tom also recommended a book called Arctic Blue Deserts, which talks
about Hydropower, for anyone interested in this type of power. The Port should try to focus
on figuring out a collaboration with the State of Maine for the long term work that will be
required in the future. Erik passed out a letter from the NH Commercial Fisherman’s
industry which will be submitted to BOEM in response to their RFI. Tom indicated that the
BOEM group is relatively small, and seem to be open to comment and working very hard on
the OSW efforts.

Geno discussed the Main Pier Rehab project and showed some drone photos of the work
being done. Pending a few more tests, the contractor is hoping to pour concrete deck before
the end of September to allow it plenty of time to set up before winter. Discussion centered
mainly on the installation of the pilings. Mike asked about the Functional Replacement
Project, and more specifically the fee increase from the August board package. The increase
is mainly due to delays in the project, but also includes construction services, which is the
bulk of the additional fee. Discussion on the maintenance dredge on the face of the pier,
which is separate from the FR dredging.

Grant presented a power point and indicated he will be spearheading the “Study Committee
for the future of Rye Harbor” and discussed the plan and timeline. It is in the very early
stages still but the plan will include reviewing every aspect of the business in Rye, revenues,
expenses, right of entries, moorings, parking, boat storage, pier use permits, and immediate
needs that need to be addressed, such as the rip-rap, floats, and boat launch ramp. Grant will
gather facts and information and eventually compile a report to present to the PDA Board.
Grant will be reaching out to the Port Council, and the Port Committee folks. The parking
study that was completed will be included in the report. Also taking into consideration
potential climate change impact and future sea level rise. Roger mentioned the NOAA
website which has an interactive tool to estimate sea level rise by area. Brad asked if Grant
will go back to determine how the facility was built in the first place, as this will be
important information environmentally wise. Other discussion included if any changes
would impact the Hampton facility, which remains to be seen, and availability of ARPA
Funding. Any ARPA funding received would be used immediately towards efforts to protect
and improve the existing infrastructure, rip rap, fuel systems, floats and the boat ramp.

Roger reported on a meeting that he and Tracy Shattuck attended on Monday regarding boat
registrations and how the fees are dispersed throughout the State agencies and
municipalities. Meetings will continue but most likely no changes will be made for this
renewal period. It came up in the meeting that some towns are collecting boat registration
fees and it is being deposited into their general funds rather than being used for water related
programs.

OLD BUSINESS

Page 3 of 4



10.

11.

There have been no public hearing posted for the New Castle/Rye Bridge replacement, if it doesn’t
happen this Friday it will be in a couple weeks. Roger reminded the Council of the DOT
Navigational Impact Report which was previously sent out to the Council.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

e Business Development/FTZ- Reiterated that the Port can play a role in supporting
OSW in the Operation & Maintenance sector.

o Dredging- The 34.5 rock is still there, when Simplex Shoal area gets dredged, it
should be removed at that time. There is no official sign off from the ACOE on the
Turning Basin up the river, Chris was told that it’s done and there would be no
approval or disapproval. Chris added that the high spot (rock) shouldn’t pose a
problem since the ships do not go down that deep. Geno added he saw an ACOE
survey vessel coming up the river today. Not sure why as the Port was not notified.

e Fisheries-Erik commented on the OSW and the fisheries industry has taken the time
to attend public hearings with BOEM. 3 more hearings, one tomorrow in Hampton,
one on the 20" by DES and one on the 22". He passed out the letter he spoke of
earlier. Any public comments must be validated with data and are due by Oct 3rd. A
federal court decision was made last Friday will require additional protections for
Right Whales. These new regulations will destroy the lobster fishery in New
England. One regulation allows no buoy line fishing in closed areas, but that would
be like driving a car with square wheels. Discussion on the adjustment on the coastal
zone (for OSW areas only), and now NH can comment on regulations that apply in
federal waters (25 miles out) rather than only state waters (3 miles out). The main
concern for the fisheries is the high voltage transmission lines as there is no
information on the impact of those lines to the fisheries.

o Government-Bill spoke about Prescott Park and Peirce Island area and the impact
projected sea level rise may have for future decisions on those locations.

e Moorings-Chris S. commented on the Bailey mooring appeal and complimented the
Port on the service they provided to the customer. Chris shared the waitlist data from
the Port website. The long wait time in some areas is unfortunate and hopes there is a
way to shorten those wait times. Rye Harbor has a 24 year wait. Sagamore Creek has
30 folks waiting for moorings, this could be improved or made worse based on what
decision is made on the Rt. 1B bascule bridge.

e PDA Liaison-There is a Port Committee meeting scheduled for Oct 6.

e Recreational Piers-Brad reported that the recreational folks had a better year than
anticipated, the gross sales were good but the fuel costs did ,

PUBLIC COMMENT
No public comment.

PRESS QUESTIONS
There were no members of the press present.

ADJOURNMENT
Erik made a motion to adjourn the meeting, Chris S. seconded. The meeting adjourned at

8:05 PM.

Page 4 of 4



o\
PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 555 Market Street, Suite 1 Portsmouth, NH 03801
PORTS AND HARBORS

Date: October 7, 2022

To: Pease Development Authority (PDA) Board of Directors

From: Geno Marconi, Division Director a VY / a7

Subject: Report: Portsmouth Fish Pier, Borings & Samplings, Fuel System

When the seawall at the Portsmouth Fish Pier failed in 2019, it was imperative that due to the close proximity of
the fuel dispensing system to the failed wall, the fuel system be shut down, purged, and secured. The Division
contacted Lakes Region Environmental (LRE), the Company that services the Division’s fuel systems, with a
request to close the system and secure it, which they did.

The construction project to repair the seawall was completed in June of 2022. However, when the Division and
the general contractor, HL Patten Construction Inc. (“Patten”) were getting ready to close the project, NHDES
notified both entities that the formal “closure” of the old fuel system was not completed properly and required
reports were not filed. This closure procedure would have included soil samples from the excavation area where
the fuel transmission lines were located. NHDES informed the Division that soil samples are required. Please
note that during the installation of the replacement lines, NHDES was on site conducting inspections.

The Division contacted Patten for a proposal to do boring samples and testing in accordance with NHDES
Regulations. The original proposal (attached), through Patten’s subcontractor, GZA Engineering, was to do 15
borings (with lab samples for each) at a projected cost of $15,200. Since that original proposal, NHDES informed
the Division that additional samples at a greater depth would be necessary. However, there was some debate over
the scope of that additional work of collecting the samples and the additional cost of lab testing. Oncethose issues
were resolved, GZA provided a revised quote of $19,300 to perform the required sampling.

On September 19, 2022, the Division met with NHDES Assistant Commissioner Mark Sanborn at the Fish Pier
to discuss the additional lab sampling. The Division was informed that because the area of excavation and back
fill now has co-mingled soils, the regulations require the additional lab sampling of the deeper samples which
were not excavated and therefore not co-mingled with fill brought in from the gravel pit. The additional cost of

the lab testing for the 15 deeper samples is $3,795, increasing the total cost of drilling, sampling, and testing to
$23,09s.

Through the Delegation of Authority for the Project, the Division requested and received authorization from PDA
Treasurer Tom Ferrini, and PDA Executive Director Paul Brean to proceed with the soil sampling and expend
funds from the Portsmouth Fish Pier appropriation in an amount of $23,095, which has an unencumbered balance
of $177,278, to cover the cost.

O0OO0OO TAKING YOU THERE

ph: 603-436-8500 fax: 603-436-2780 www.peasedev.org



GZ\

Known for excellence.
Built on trust.

GEOTECHNICAL
ENVIRONMENTAL
EcoLocicaL
WATER

CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT

5 Commerce Park North

Suite 201
Bedford, NH o03210

1:603.623.3600
F:603.624.9463

www.gza.com

Via Email

August 24, 2022
File No. 09.P000078.23

Bruce Anderson
H.L. Patten, Inc.

4 Shapleigh Rd
Kittery, ME 03904

Re: Proposal for Soil Sampling and Piping Closure
Commercial Fish Pier
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Dear Mr. Anderson:

As requested, GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc. (GZA) has prepared this Proposal for H.L.
Patten, Inc. to provide soil characterization services related to historical piping removal
at the Commercial Fish Pier, located on Pierce Island in Portsmouth, New Hampshire
(Site). Based on the information provided to GZA, we understand that as part of
reconstruction of the Commercial Fish Pier, approximately 150 feet of marine fuel piping
was removed between the building and retaining wall. We further understand that New
Hampshire Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) is requiring the Site owner to
submit closure documentation for the previously removed piping that includes soil
samples collected approximately every 10 feet along the historical piping run.

The objective of GZA’s services will be to assist H.L. Patten with soil sample collection
and analysis, characterization, and preparing documentation to support Permanent
Closure of Underground Storage Tank {(UST) Piping for NHDES in accordance with Env-Or
408.06.

SCOPE OF SERVICES
GZA’s Scope of Services includes:

e Preparation of a soil sampling plan for review by H.L. Patten;

¢ Collection and laboratory analysis of soil samples along and at the depth of the
historical piping; and

e Preparation of piping closure documentation for submittal to NHDES.
Based on NHDES'’s recommended sampling frequency (i.e., one sample per 10 linear feet

of piping), we anticipate that 15 soil samples would be required to satisfy the NHDES
requirements.

In addition to meeting the DigSafe uility clearance requirements, GZA will pre-clear the
soil boring locations using ground penetrating radar (GPR) and then collect the soil

An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/V/H



August 23, 2022

Commercial Fish Pier, Portsmouth, NH
09.P000078.23

Page | 2

samples using direct push methodologies. Soil samples will be collected for laboratory analysis at the depth of the
historical piping. Soil sampling procedures will consist of 5 discrete grab samples from each location that will be
composited consistent with guidance included in Env-Or 408.08, as applicable to the Site conditions and based on our
discussions with NHDES.

Based on the NHDES’s requirements, laboratory analyses will include total petroleum hydrocarbons (TPH) by EPA
Method 8100 (level 2 fingerprint analysis) and VOCs by EPA Method 624, and the estimated cost of the laboratory
analyses included in this list is $253 per sample {$3,795 for the fifteen samples).

Following review of the analytical laboratory data and if the data support a request for closure, GZA will prepare the
piping closure documentation specified in Env-Or 408. GZA will provide H.L. Patten, Inc. with a draft of the
documentation for review prior to finalization and submittal to NHDES. We have included up to 8 hours of coordination
time with NHDES since the piping removal was completed without required documentation or sampling, and therefore
NHDES may require a modified submittal. If contamination is detected at concentrations that do not support closure,
GZA will discuss strategies with you that may include supplemental sampling and targeted soil removal or treatment.

ASSUMPTIONS

GZA's Scope of Services and budget estimate for the project includes the assumptions noted in the Scope of Services
and the following.

e There are no utilities other than those shown on the as-built plan dated February 16, 2022 and the area is accessible
using a track-mounted direct push rig.

e Soil samples can be collected during one 8-hour day on-Site.

e Analysis of 15 composite samples for the parameters listed in the Scope of Services.

SCHEDULE
The intent of the schedule is to begin coordination with NHDES within one week of your authorization to proceed and
complete the soil sampling at the GPR and direct push contractors’ first availability (currently late October). GZA will

provide draft piping closure documentation within two week following receipt of the final laboratory report from the
laboratory.

BASIS OF BILLINGS

Billings for GZA professional services will be based on actual accrued time and expenses, in accordance with the
attached Schedule of Fees. GZA’s estimated cost to complete the Scope of Services outlined above is $15,200.

This estimate is based on the anticipated Scope of Services described above, which represents our present judgment

as to the level of effort required. Actual charges may vary, either upward or downward, depending upon the execution
of the work. All services will be charged as incurred on a monthly basis.

CONDITIONS OF ENGAGEMENT

GZA will complete this project in accordance with the terms set forth in the attached Terms and Conditions for
Professional Services and Schedule of Fees.



August 23, 2022

Commercial Fish Pier, Portsmouth, NH
09.P000078.23

Page | 3

ACCEPTANCE

This proposal may be accepted by signing in the appropriate spaces below and returning one complete copy (with
attachment) to us. The executed agreement must be received prior to the initiation of the services described above.
This Proposal for Services and the attached Terms and Conditions for Professional Services and Schedule of Fees
constitute the entire agreement between the parties.

GZA greatly appreciates the opportunity to be of continued service to Dartmouth EHS on this important project. If you
have any questions, please call Katherine McDonald at 207-229-7562.

Very truly yours,

GZA GEOENVIRONMENTAL, INC.

Katherine (Kate) McDonald James M. Wieck, P.G
Senior Project Manager Consultant/Reviewer

Steven R. Lamb, P.G., C.G.W.P.
Principal

KHM/SRL/IMW

\\GZAPort1\Rfps\2023109.P00007E.23 - Portsmouth Commercial Fish Piar Piping Closure\09.P000078.23 Proposal Commercial Fish Pier Piping.docx

Cc:

Attachments:  Terms and Conditions for Professional Services, Schedule of Fees

This proposal for services, the attached Terms and Conditions for Professional Services, and Schedule of Fees are hereby
accepted and executed by a duly authorized signatory, who by execution hereof warrants that he/she has full authority
to act for, in the name of, and on behalf of H.L. Patten Inc.

H.L PATTEN, INC.
By: Title:

Typed Name: Date:

Billing Address (if different from above):




TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

© 2016 by GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc.

Client (“You"): H.L.Patten, Inc.
Proposal No: 09.P000078.23
Site: Commercial Fish Pier, Portsmouth, NH

These Terms and Conditions, together with GZA's Proposal, make up the Agreement between GZA and you, Client, named above.

BEFORE SIGNING THE PROPOSAL, BE SURE YOU READ AND UNDERSTAND THE PARAGRAPHS ENTITLED "INDEMNIFICATION” AND
"LIMITATION OF REMEDIES" WHICH DEAL WITH THE ALLOCATION OF RISK BETWEEN YOU AND GZA.

1. Services. GZA will perform the services set forth in its Proposal and any amendments or change orders authorized by you. Any request or
direction from you that would require extra work or additional time for performance or would result in an increase in GZA's costs will be the
subject of a negotiated amendment or change order.

2. Standard of Care. GZA will perform the services with the degree of skill and care ordinarily exercised by qualified professionals performing
the same type of services at the same time under similar conditions in the same or similar locality. NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,
INCLUDING WARRANTY OF MARKETABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, IS MADE OR INTENDED BY GZA’S PROPOSAL OR BY
ANY OF GZA’S ORAL OR WRITTEN REPORTS.

3. Payment.

a. Except as otherwise stated in the Proposal, you will compensate GZA for the services at the rates set forth in the applicable Proposal,
amendment or change order; reimburse its expenses, which will include a communication fee calculated as a percentage of labor invoiced;
and pay any sales or similar taxes thereon.

b. Any retainer specified in GZA’s Proposal shall be due prior to the start of services and will be applied to the final invoice for services.

c.  GZA will submit invoices periodically, and payment will be due within 20 days from invoice date. Overdue payments will bear interest at
1% percent per month or, if lower, the maximum lawful rate. GZA may terminate its services upon 10 days' written notice anytime your
payment is overdue on this or any other project and you will pay for all services through termination, plus termination costs. You will
reimburse GZA's costs of collecting overdue invoices, including reasonable attorneys' fees.

4. Your Responsibilities.

a. Except as otherwise agreed, you will secure the approvals, permits, licenses and consents necessary for performance of the services. If
you are the owner or operator of the Site, you will provide GZA with all documents, plans, information concerning underground structures
(including but not limited to utilities, conduits, pipes, and tanks), information related to hazardous materials or other environmental or
geotechnical conditions at the site and other information that may be pertinent to the services or, if you are not the owner or operator of
the Site, you agree to make reasonable efforts to obtain these same documents and provide them to GZA. Unless otherwise indicated in
writing, GZA will be entitled to rely on documents and information you provide.

b. If you use the services of a construction contractor at the Site, you agree to use best and reasonable efforts to include in your
agreement(s) with the construction contractor provisions obligating the latter:

(i) to indemnify, defend and hold harmless, to the fullest extent permitted by law, you and GZA, its officers, employees and
principals, for or on account of any claims, liabilities, costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, arising out of or relating to the
design or implementation of construction means, methods, procedures, techniques, and sequences of construction, including
safety precautions or programs, of the contractor, or any of its subcontractors or any engineer engaged by it;

(i) to name you and GZA as additional insureds under general liability and builder's risk insurance coverages maintained by the
contractor, or any of its subcontractors; and

(iii) to require that all of its subcontractors agree and be bound to the obligations set forth in (i) and (ii) above.

¢. In the event that you are unable to secure such provisions in the agreement(s) with the construction contractor, you shall promptly
notify GZA and GZA shall have the opportunity to negotiate with you reasonable substitute risk allocation and insurance indemnities
and protections.

5. Right of Entry. You grant GZA and its subcontractor({s) permission to enter the site to perform the services. If you do not own the site, you

represent and warrant that the owner has granted permission for GZA to enter the site and perform the services; you will provide reasonable
verification on request; and you will indemnify GZA for any claims by the site owner related to alleged trespass by GZA or its subcontractors.

(08/08-Edition/05-9011) Page 1 of 3 August 24, 2022



6. Reliance. The services, information, and other data furnished by you shall be at your expense, and GZA may rely upon all information
and data that you furnish, including the accuracy and completeness thereof. You acknowledge that the quality of the services provided by
GZA is directly related to the accuracy and completeness of the information and data that you furnish to GZA. GZA’s REPORTS ARE
PREPARED FOR AND MADE AVAILABLE FOR YOUR SOLE USE. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT USE OF OR RELANCE UPON THE
REPORT OR THE FINDINGS IN THE REPORT BY ANY OTHER PARTY, OR FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT OR PURPOSE, SHALL BE AT YOUR OR
SUCH OTHER PARTY’S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT ANY LIABILITY TO GZA.

7. GZA Professionals. GZA employees or consultants may act as licensed, certified or registered professionals (including but not limited to
Professional Engineers, Licensed Site or Environmental Professionals, or Certified Industrial Hygienists, collectively referred to in this section as
“GZA Professionals”) whose duties may include the rendering of independent professional opinions. You acknowledge that a federal, state or
local agency or other third party may audit the services of GZA or other contractor/consultant(s), which audit may require additional services,
even though GZA and such GZA Professionals have each performed such services in accordance with the standard of care set forth herein. You
agree to compensate GZA for all services performed in response to such an audit, or to meet additional requirements resulting from such an
audit, at the rates set forth in the appticable Proposal, amendment or change order.

8. Hazardous Materials; GZA “Not a Generator”. Before any hazardous or contaminated materials are removed from the site, you will sign
manifests naming you as the generator of the waste (or, if you are not the generator, you will arrange for the generator to sign). You will select
the treatment or disposal facility to which any waste is taken. GZA will not be the generator or owner of, nor will it possess, take title to, or
assume legal liability for any hazardous or contaminated materials at or removed from the site. GZA will not have responsibility for or control
of the site or of operations or activities at the site other than its own. GZA will not undertake, arrange for or control the handling, treatment,
storage, removal, shipment, transportation or disposal of any hazardous or contaminated materials at or removed from the site, other than
any laboratory samples it collects or tests. You agree to defend, indemnify and hold GZA harmless for any costs or liability incurred by GZA in

defense of or in payment for any legal actions in which it is alleged that GZA is the owner, generator, treater, storer or disposer of hazardous
waste.

9. Limits on GZA's Responsibility. GZA will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of contractors or others at the site, except for its own
subcontractors and employees. GZA will not supervise, direct or assume control over or the authority to stop any contractor's work, nor shall
GZA's professional activities or the presence of GZA or its employees and subcontractors be construed to imply that GZA has authority over or
responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction, for work site health or safety precautions or
programs, or for any failure of contractors to comply with contracts, plans, specifications or laws. Any opinions by GZA of probable costs of
labor, materials, equipment or services to be furnished by others are strictly estimates and are not a guarantee that actual costs will be
consistent with the estimates.

10. Changed Conditions.

a.  You recognize the uncertainties relating to the furnishing of professional services, which often require a phased or exploratory approach,
with the need for additional services becoming apparent during the initial services. You also recognize that actual conditions encountered
may vary significantly from those anticipated, that laws and regulations are subject to change, and that the requirements of regulatory
authorities are often unpredictable.

b. If changed or unanticipated conditions or delays make additional services necessary or result in additional costs or time for performance,
GZA will notify you and the parties will negotiate appropriate changes to the scope of services, compensation and schedule.

¢. If no agreement can be reached, GZA will be entitled to terminate its services and to be equitably compensated for the services already
performed. GZA will not be responsible for delays or failures to perform due to weather, labor disputes, intervention by or inability to get
approvals from public authorities, acts or omissions on your part or any other causes beyond GZA's reasonable control, and you will
compensate GZA for any resulting increase in its costs.

11. Documents and Information. All documents, data, calculations and work papers prepared or furnished by GZA are instruments of service
and will remain GZA's property. Designs, reports, data and other work product delivered to you are for your use only, for the limited purposes
disclosed to GZA. Any delayed use, use at another site, use on another project, or use by a third party will be at the user's sole risk, and without
any liability to GZA. Any technology, methodology or technical information learned or developed by GZA will remain its property. Provided GZA
is not in default under this Agreement, GZA's designs will not be used to complete this project by others, except by written agreement relating
to use, liability and compensation.

12. Electronic Media. In accepting and utilizing any drawings, reports and data on any form of electronic media generated by GZA, you
covenant and agree that all such electronic files are instruments of service of GZA, who shall be deemed the author, and shall retain all
common law, statutory law and other rights, including copyrights. In the event of a conflict between the signed documents prepared by
GZA and electronic files, the signed documents shall govern. You agree not to reuse these electronic files, in whole or in part, for any
purpose or project other than the project that is the subject of this Agreement. Any transfer of these electronic files to others or reuse or
modifications to such files by you without the prior written consent of GZA will be at the user’s sole risk and without any liability to GZA.

(08/08-Edition/05-9011) Page 2 of 3 August 24, 2022



13. Confidentiality; Subpoenas. Information about this Agreement and GZA's services and information you provide to GZA regarding your
business and the site, other than information available to the public and information acquired from third parties, will be maintained in
confidence and will not be disclosed to others without your consent, except as GZA reasonably believes is necessary: (a) to perform its services;
{b) to comply with professional standards to protect public health, safety and the environment; and (c) to comply with laws and court orders.
GZA will make reasonable efforts to give you prior notice of any disclosure under (b) or (c) above. You will reimburse GZA for responding to any
subpoena or governmental inquiry or audit related to the services, at the rates set forth in the applicable Proposal, amendment or change
order.

14. Insurance. During performance of the services, GZA will maintain workers compensation, commercial general liability, automobile
liability, and professional liability insurance. GZA will furnish you certificates of such insurance on request.

15. Indemnification. You agree to hold harmless, indemnify, and defend GZA and its affiliates and subcontractors and their employees,
officers, directors and agents (collectively referred to in this paragraph as "GZA") against all claims, suits, fines and penalties, including
mandated cleanup costs and attorneys' fees and other costs of settlement and defense, which claims, suits, fines, penalties or costs arise out of
or are related to this Agreement or the services, except to the extent they are caused by GZA’s negligence or willful misconduct.

16. Limitation of Remedies.

a. To the fullest extent permitted by law and notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, the aggregate liability of GZA
and its affiliates and subcontractors and their employees, officers, directors and agents {collectively referred to in this paragraph as "GZA")
for all claims arising out of this Agreement or the services is limited to $50,000 or, if greater, 10% of the compensation received by GZA
under this Agreement.

b. You may elect to increase the limit of liability by paying an additional fee, such fee to be negotiated prior to the execution of this
Agreement.

¢.  Any claim will be deemed waived unless received by GZA within one year of substantial completion of the services.

d. GzA will not be liable for lost profits, loss of use of property, delays, or other special, indirect, incidental, consequential, punitive,
exemplary or multiple damages.

e. GZA will not be liable to you or the site owner for injuries or deaths suffered by GZA's or its subcontractors’ employees.

f.  You will look solely to GZA for your remedy for any claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, including any claim arising out of or
relating to alleged negligence or errors or omissions of any GZA principal, officer, employee or agent.

17. Disputes.

All disputes between you and GZA shall be subject to non-binding mediation.

b. Either party may demand mediation by serving a written notice stating the essential nature of the dispute, the amount of time or money
claimed, and requiring that the matter be mediated within forty-five (45) days of service of notice.

¢. The mediation shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its most recent Construction Mediation
Rules, or by such other person or organization as the parties may agree upon.

d. No action or suit may be commenced unless mediation has occurred but did not resolve the dispute, or unless a statute of limitation

period would expire if suit were not filed prior to such forty-five {45) days after service of notice.

QU

18. Miscellaneous.

a. Massachusetts law shall govern this Agreement.

b. The above terms and conditions regarding Limitation of Remedies and Indemnification shall survive the completion of the services under
this Agreement and the termination of the contract for any cause.

c. Anyamendment to these Terms and Conditions must be in writing and signed by both parties.

d. Having received these Terms and Conditions, your oral authorization to commence services, your actions, or your use of the Report or
Work Product constitutes your acceptance of them.

e. This Agreement supersedes any contract terms, purchase orders or other documents issued by you.

f.  Neither party may assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or duties hereunder without the written consent of the other party.

g. Your failure or the failure of your successors or assigns to receive payment or reimbursement from any other party for any reason
whatsoever shall not absolve you, your successors or assigns of any obligation to pay any sum to GZA under this agreement.

h. These Terms and Conditions shall govern over any inconsistent terms in GZA’s Proposal.

i.  The provisions of this Agreement are severable; if any provision is unenforceable it shall be appropriately limited and given effect to the
extent it is enforceable.

j.  The covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement shall apply to, inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and upon their respective successors and assigns.

(08/08-Edition/05-9011) Page30of 3 August 24, 2022



Schedule of Fees — Fiscal Year 2023

Page|10f1
Client (“You”): H.L. Patten, Inc
“Proposal No: 09.P000078.23
Date: August 24, 2022
Principals $ 220 per hour
Senior Technical Consultant $ 200 per hour
Senior Project Manager $ 185 per hour
Project Manager $ 160 per hour
Assistant Project Manager $ 140 per hour
Engineer/Scientist | $ 115 per hour
Engineer/ Scientist Il $ 105 per hour
CAD Designer Grade | $ 140 per hour
CAD Designer Grade Il $ 110 per hour
CAD Designer Grade Il $ 100 per hour
Senior Administrative Assistant S 100 per hour
Administrative Assistant $ 85 per hour
Project Support $ 70 per hour
Outside Services and Out-of-Pocket Expenses Cost Plus 10%

The above rates for Technical and Support Personnel will be charged for actual time worked on the project. In addition there will be
charges for:

Time required for travel from Company office to job or meeting site and return, or from/to home if mileage is less.
For work requiring out-of-town overnight stay, the minimum charge for work on the project will be eight (8) hours per day.
Laboratory service charges based on standard unit prices.

Communication fee charged at 3.0% of labor invoiced for total cost of local, long distance, and cellular phone equipment and
connectivity; electronic data communication and transmission; facsimile and document scanning; and USPS postage.

A fifty percent (50%) premium will be added to the above rates for expert witness and other special services of Senior Principals,
-Principals, and Associate Principals.

Labor rates may be adjusted on an annual basis commensurate to salary increases.

(R:\2023\09.P0O00036.23 - Buckland MA Biosolids Evaluation\Schedule of Fees Fiscal Year 2023 - POR.docx)



GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc.

707 Sable Oaks Drive, Suite 150 CHANGE ORDER
South Portland, Maine 04106
GZ\ Voice: 207.879.9190/ Fax: 207.879.0099 NO. 01

To: Bruce Anderson Job Name: Soil Sampling & Piping Closure Date:  9/15/2022
H.L. Patten, Inc. Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier
PO Box 450 Location: Pierce Island Project No.: 09.0026166.00
Kittery, Maine 03904 Portsmouth, New Hampshire
Existing Contract Information:
Phone: 207-439-2008 Purchase Order/Contract Date: 9/6/2022
Existing Contract Amount: $15,200

We agree to perform the additional scope of services specified below:

Advance soil borings to a depth of approximately 12 feet below grade and collect up to 15 additional samples from the native
material underlying the piping backfill.

Submit the additional samples "on hold" to the analytical laboratory for VOCs by EPA Method 8260 and
TPH level 2 fingerprint by EPA Method 8100.

If analysis is required by DES and requested by the Client, GZA will coordinate with the laboratory for analysis of samples
and incorporate the results into the piping closure documentation.

Cost presented below includes 2.5 hours of staff coordination time and laboratory fees for 15 samples.

CONTRACT INFORMATION
l:' Lump Sum IZ] Total Contract Change Amount
[zl T&M EI Estimated Contract Change Amount
Increase by this Change Order D Decrease by this Change Order $4,100
Net Change by previous Change Orders: $0
Original Contract Amount: $15,200
Revised Contract Amount including this Change Order: $19,300
NOTES:
GZA GEOENVIRONMENTAL, INC. H.L. Patten, inc.
By: AT Date: _ 9/15/2022 | By: Date:

P:\09 Jobs\0026100s5109.0026166.00 - HLP - Portsmouth Fish Pier\Project Control\GZA Change Order Form.xlsx




